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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM")
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:(1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable .
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
EESRE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group”), it is my great pleasure to report to
the shareholders the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has been actively
expanding its business to cover a broader spectrum in the field of
internet technology (“IT”) including mobile-online games, provision of
communications software platform and related services as part of its
business development strategy. Completion of acquisition of 60% of the
issued share capital of First Surplus Investments Ltd. and its subsidiaries
in October 2016 allowed the Group to capture the opportunities in the
mobile game business and expand the provision of communications of
websites development and communications software platform. Due to
the expansion of money lending business, the revenue of the Group in
2016 had grown steadily and rapidly. The Group continues to enhance
our core competitiveness and explore new business opportunities.

PROSPECT

The Group is dedicated to sustainable development of IT-related products
and services for local and worldwide markets and provides a wide range
of digital and innovative solution services to our customers. Although
the competition in the IT industry is becoming intensified, the Group
intends to expand our portfolio through continuous development of IT
applications.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to deploy appropriate operation
strategies to meet the challenges posted by the competitive market
in different IT sections, enhance the quality of the products and
services, diversify its businesses and look for new potential investment
opportunities to bring greater returns to the shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) of the Company.
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EESRE

APPRECIATION &)

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to T AAEZERRESTSEHBERTORXGE
give my sincere gratitude to my fellow Directors and all the staff who have ERAEEEEET - HAKBREREN  ZHFAR

contributed their time, efforts and supports to the Group. £ -
Chan Wai Kit BIF/E
Deputy Chairman B {2 45
14 March 2017 —E—+F=A+WMH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue from
continuing operations of approximately HK$33,938,000 as compared
to that of approximately HK$18,596,000 for the same financial year
in 2015. The increase in turnover was mainly due to revenue from the
money lending business. The money lending business commenced on 22
October 2015 and had grown from approximately HK$1,382,000 in 2015
to approximately HK$14,138,000 in 2016.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$37,986,000 as compared with that of approximately HK$20,131,000
in 2015. The increase in loss was mainly attributable to (i) the
reclassification of the cumulative exchange reserve of approximately
HK$7,410,000 from equity to profit or loss in respect of disposal of
entire equity interest of Native Hope Limited and its subsidiaries (the “NH
Group”); (ii) the disposal of NH Group recorded a loss from discontinued
operation of approximately HK$4,370,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 as compared with a profit from discontinued operation
of approximately HK$3,448,000 for the same period last year; and (iii)
the increase in administrative expenses of approximately HK$12,247,000,
including staff costs, property rentals and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group engaged in
(i) developing and marketing of the patented server based technology
and the provision of communications software platform, and software
related services with primary focus in the government industry sector, (the
“Software Platform”); (ii) money lending business (the “Money Lending
Business”) and (iii) the mobile data solutions and mobile game related
services (the “Mobile Game Business”).

Software Platform

The segment revenue from continuing operations for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to approximately HK$19,689,000 (2015:
the segment revenue from continuing operations of approximately
HK$17,214,000).
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The custom-made software development services including urban
grid management system, internet marketing and other projects were
classified as discontinued operation since the Group disposed of entire
equity interest in NH Group which was principally engaged in the
custom-made software development. The related financial information
of the discontinued operation is disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the disposal of NH Group are set out in
announcements of the Company dated 9 March 2016, 16 June 2016 and
30 June 2016, the circular of the Company dated 31 May 2016 and note
31(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The provision of website development and electronic learning products
was not well performed due to the weak demand and tough competition
in the market. Subject to the severe challenges, the Group disposed of
the entire equity interest in KanHan Educational Services Limited (“KHE")
which was principally engaged in the provision of website development
and electronic learning products. Details of the disposal of KHE are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 25 November 2016 and
note 31(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Apart from the above disposals, we continue to develop patented server
based technology, the provision of communication software platform and
software related services.

Money Lending Business

On 22 October 2015, the Group commenced its money lending business
(the “Money Lending Business”) through Aurum Pacific Finance Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which was granted
a money lenders license by the licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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The Group adopted the money lending policy and procedure manual
which provide guidelines on the handling and/or monitoring of money
lending procedures according to the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of the Hong Kong). The Money Lending Business
made positive progress in its development and became one of the
sources for the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The interest income for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$14,138,000 (2015: the interest income of
approximately HK$1,382,000).

Mobile Game Business

The Group has been actively seeking new business opportunities from
time to time in order to diversify its business, broaden its income source
and enhance the long-term growth potential of the Company and the
Shareholders’ value. On 25 October 2016, the Group completed the
acquisition of 60% equity interest in First Surplus Investments Ltd.
("Acquisition of First Surplus”) and its subsidiaries (together, “First
Surplus Group”), which principally engages in the game publishing,
development of mobile game, application, related intellectual property
and platform and provision of related solutions. Details of the acquisition
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 11 March
2016, 8 August 2016 and 25 October 2016, the circular of the Company
dated 24 September 2016 and note 29(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. The segment revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately HK$111,000.

By the Acquisition of First Surplus, the Group could tap into the mobile
online game industry and capture the opportunities in the mobile online
game and related solution industry. In addition, by utilising the Group's
information technology related experiences, the synergy effect could be
achieved with existing principal businesses of the Group through the
Acquisition of First Surplus.

OUTLOOK

We intend to continue taking efforts in developing and upgrading our
products and services with a generic growth of the business in order
to broaden our income sources. The Group will continue to deploy
appropriate operation strategies to meet the challenges posted by the
competitive market to improve the performance and maximize the returns
of shareholders as a whole.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

The Group's business operations and investments are in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). At 31 December 2016, the
Group had cash and bank balances of approximately HK$11,500,000 (31
December 2015: HK$38,725,000). Most of the cash and bank balances
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group will closely monitor
exchange rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce the
exchange risk.
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Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2016, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$451,871,000 (31 December 2015: HK$273,819,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$153,427,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$38,252,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total
liabilities over total assets, was 34.0% (31 December 2015: 14.0%) and
the current ratio, calculated as current assets over current liabilities,
was 25.1 (31 December 2015: 9.4). The Directors will continue to take
measures to further improve the liquidity and gearing position of the
Group.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company
was HK$120,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04
each, of which 907,200,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

Share Consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting
on 19 February 2016, pursuant to the share consolidation (the “Share
Consolidation”), every 10 issued and unissued shares of HK$0.004 each
were consolidated into 1 consolidated share (the “Consolidated Share”)
of HK$0.04 each. Following the Share Consolidation which has become
effective on 22 February 2016, the authorised share capital of the
Company are HK$40,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 Consolidated
Shares of HK$0.04 each, of which 504,000,000 Consolidated Shares are
in issue and fully paid. Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 8 January 2016 and 19 February
2016 and the Company'’s circular dated 29 January 2016.

Increase in Authorised Share Capital

Upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$40,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each to HK$120,000,000
divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each by the
creation of an additional 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
and such shares shall rank pari passu with all existing shares of the
Company was approved by the shareholders of the Company in an
extraordinary general meeting on 19 February 2016.
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Open Offer

On 29 March 2016, the Company and Gransing Securities Co., Limited
entered into an underwriting agreement in relation to the issue of shares
by way of open offer to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of one
offer share for every two existing shares held on the record date (i.e.
21 April 2016) at the subscription price of HK$0.24 per offer share (the
“Open Offer”). The Open Offer raised approximately HK$60,480,000
before deduction of expenses by issuing 252,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.04 each. The Open Offer was completed on 17 May 2016. The
Group intended to apply the net proceeds from the Open Offer as to (i)
approximately HK$40,000,000, to be utilised for the development of the
Money Lending Business and (ii) the remaining, to be utilised for general
working capital. Details of the Open Offer are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 29 March 2016, 14 April 2016 and 16 May 2016
and the Company’s prospectus dated 22 April 2016.

The actual use of the net proceeds from the Open Offer up to 31
December 2016 in the following manner:

(i) Approximately HK$16,670,000 was used for the Property
Acquisition (defined as below);

(i) Approximately HK$22,440,000 was used to settle the mortgage
loan and interest expenses; and

(iii)  The remaining proceeds was used for the Money Lending Business.

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 8 July 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement with
China Times Securities Limited as placing agent (the “Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which the Placing Agent would place, on a best effort basis,
to independent placees up to 151,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04
each of the Company (the “Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.129 per
Placing Share (the “Placing”).

The completion of the Placing took place on 3 August 2016. An
aggregate of 151,200,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual
general meeting held on 30 May 2016. The aggregate nominal value
of the Placing Shares was HK$6,048,000. The net proceeds from the
Placing were approximately HK$19,309,000 and the net issue price was
approximately HK$0.1277 per Placing Share. The proceeds were used for
the deposit of the Acquisition of First Surplus. Details of the Placing are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 8 July 2016 and 3 August
2016.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

NHAEE
RZE—XNE=ZA=Z+AHA ' AARREFKF
HEBRARFILBHERE - NEBEAUARE
ERAERERBEERD024B T2 RBERS
BRBREETRG  EEANESAMAIZE
—NFEAZ+—B)EBEMRIR ARG ED
—BRBERG((AHAZE]) - NIKRBAZAE
i8¥17252,000,000 8 FRREIE0.04/8 T 2 & il
B AFIEEEEE 460,480,000 T o AREE
ERZTE—R"FRATEATK - NEEHD)
AR E TS ZIEF B (1)4940,000,000 7
TAEERMEZEB RS T RIBEREATE
BES - BAEARBENFBINARAIEEH
RIB-RE=ZAZTNA  ZT—XFWEA
THOEE-ZZE—R"FRATABZAERAEAR
AIRAZE —"FNA=Z+=-AZER -

BE_Z—X"F+-A=+—H
BRIBFEERREAT

CRFEBERR

(i) #916,670,000/8 TR MEIWEE (FFAT
%)

(i) #922,440,0008 THRENIZIBER M
FERAY &

(i) BRTFISRTERARMEER -

RIE—MIRBILEFTR (7
RZZE—RELANB ARFREFARESLRE
RAR(EARENRE)[REREDIVEE
g Bt RERBEBRZASE HRABILE
LA SRREERR7D0.1298 T 2Bl EE @ BBE
H%7R/A7F]151,200,000 B EE0.04E L2
TR (TEERM D) (TEREEE]) -

REEBEER=E—"FNA=ZHEK - &
#£151,200,000 REEE R D ERIENR =T — X
FRAA=ZTHBTZREBRAFAERTES
L BEEBRREERET EEROMDILEE
746,048,000 7T © B E FHFTS RN IEF L
19,309,000/ 7T - MFEITELNTEERM L
0.12773 7T » Fif5 3018 A{EUEEFirst Surplusz
e  BAREEFEFBEIHBEIENRART R
HR-FT—R"FtANBERZZTE—XR"FNA=
BZR%E -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Placing of new shares under refreshed general mandate

On 16 December 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with KGI Asia Limited as placing agent (“KGI"), pursuant to which
KGI would place, on a best effort basis, to independent placees up to
181,440,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each of the Company (the
“Second Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.16 per Second Placing Share
(the “Second Placing”).

The completion of the Second Placing took place on 10 January 2017.
An aggregate of 181,440,000 Second Placing Shares were allotted and
issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 12 October 2016. The aggregate
nominal value of the Second Placing Shares was HK$7,257,600. The net
proceeds from the Second Placing were approximately HK$28,270,000
and the net issue price was approximately HK$0.1558 per Second Placing
Share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$11,500,000 were used
for Money Lending Business and the remaining proceeds were used for
general working capital. Details of the Second Placing are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 16 December 2016 and 10 January
2017.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange
exposure.

Material Risk Factors
Details of the Group’s financial risk and analysis are set out in note 28(a)
to 28(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2016, the land and buildings of the Group at carrying
amount of approximately HK$47,079,000 was pledged to secure interest-
bearing borrowings of a subsidiary of the Company.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has issued a corporate guarantee
in respect of a loan made by a finance company to a subsidiary (2015:
HK$Nil). Details of the corporate guarantee are setting out in note 36(c)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Upon the completion of acquisition of FS Group, the Company has issued
a corporate guarantee in respect of the Promissory Note issued by the FS
Purchaser, which is a subsidiary of the Company (2015: HK$Nil). Details of
the acquisition are setting out in note 36(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant
Investment

On 20 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and a
vendor entered into a memorandum of understanding in relation to a
proposed acquisition of a target company which is principally engaged
in mobile games development, operation and promotion in the PRC.
The proposed acquisition was terminated on 19 July 2016. Details of
the termination of memorandum of understanding are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 July 2016.

On 9 March 2016, the Company and a purchaser who is a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
proposed disposal of entire equity interest of NH Group (the “NH
Disposal”). As the NH Disposal is only a connected transaction between
the Company and a connected person at the subsidiary level on normal
commercial terms, given that (i) the Directors have approved the NH
Disposal; and (ii) the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the terms of the NH Disposal is fair and reasonable, the NH Disposal
is on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole, such connected transaction is exempted from
the circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules. NH Group is
mainly involved in the business of the provision of software platform.
Details of the NH Disposal are set out in announcements of the Company
dated 9 March 2016 and 29 April 2016. The NH Disposal was completed
on 30 June 2016. Details of the completion of the NH Disposal are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 16 June 2016 and 30 June
2016, the circular of the Company dated 31 May 2016 and note 31(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

On 11 March 2016, the Company and vendors entered into a
memorandum of understanding in relation to a proposed acquisition of
60% equity interest of First Surplus (“Acquisition of First Surplus”) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in game publishing, development
of mobile game, application, related intellectual property and platform,
and provision of related solutions. On 8 August 2016, the Company as
a guarantor and a subsidiary of the Company as a purchaser entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with two vendors in relation to the
Acquisition of First Surplus at the total consideration of HK$150,000,000.
The Acquisition of First Surplus was completed on 25 October 2016.
Details of the Acquisition of First Surplus and the completion are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 11 March 2016, 8 August
2016 and 25 October 2016, the circular of the Company dated 24
September 2016 and note 29(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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On 31 March 2016, the Company and a vendor entered into a
memorandum of understanding in relation to an acquisition of 100%
of the issued share capital of Viva Star International Limited (“Property
Acquisition”) which is principally engaged in property investment and its
principal asset is a commercial property located in Hong Kong. On 11 May
2016, a subsidiary of the Company and the vendor entered into a sale
and purchase agreement in relation to the Property Acquisition. On 27
May 2016, the property acquisition was completed at the consideration
of approximately HK$26,670,000. Details of the Property Acquisition are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 31 March 2016, 11
May 2016 and 27 May 2016 and note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 21 June 2016, the Company entered into the memorandum of
understanding with a vendor in relation to the proposed acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of the target. The target and its
associates are principally engaged in constructing and managing
fiberglass internet networks in the Netherlands. On 20 December
2016, the Company entered into a supplemental memorandum of
understanding (“Supplemental MOU") with the vendor pursuant to
which the parties have agreed to extend the exclusive period under
the memorandum of understanding to 12 months from the date of the
memorandum of understanding. Save as amended by the Supplemental
MOU, the memorandum of understanding shall remain in full force and
effect. Details of the memorandum of understanding are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 June 2016 and 20 December
2016. The proposed acquisition has not yet been completed as at the date
of this report.

On 25 November 2016, the Group and a purchaser who is a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules entered into the agreement pursuant to which the vendor has
agreed to sell to the purchaser the entire issued share capital of KHE at
the consideration of HK$5,000,000 in cash (the “Disposal of KHE”). The
Disposal of KHE constituted a connected transaction of the Company. As
the relevant percentage ratios under the GEM Listing Rules did not exceed
25% and the total consideration was less than HK$10,000,000, the
Disposal of KHE is exempt from the circular and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Disposal of
KHE was completed on 19 December 2016. Details of the Disposal of KHE
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25 November
2016 and note 31(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Apart from those disclosed in the sections headed “Material Acquisition,
Disposal and Significant Investment” in this report and the section
headed “Non-adjusting events after the reporting period” in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group did not have any other
material acquisition, disposal and significant investment during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2016, after the completion of the disposal, the
Group had approximately 108 employees (as at 31 December 2015:
103 employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$28,034,000 (2015:
approximately HK$24,219,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The Group’s remuneration policy is revised periodically and determined
by reference to market terms, company performance, individual
qualifications and performance, and in accordance with the statutory
requirements of the respective jurisdiction where the employees are
employed.

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognize and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period
of 10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option
Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March
2013.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of “Invested
Entity” be added to the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the
Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Amendments to the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2016
and the Company’s circular dated 13 April 2016.

As at 31 December 2016 and up to date of this report, the Company had
not granted any options and no outstanding options under the Share
Option Scheme. Details please refer to the section headed “Share Option
Scheme"” in the Report of the Directors in this report.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details of events after the reporting period are set out in the note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRE

The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and
quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders for
the sake of maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix
15 of the Rules (the “GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016 except the CG Code provision A2.1 and
A6.7.

Under the CG Code provision A2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the title
of Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") since the resignation of the former
CEO, Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence of the Company on 8 October 2015.
Mr. Chan Wai Kit, the deputy chairman of the Company, also assumes
the duties of the CEO during the year under review. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the same
individual provided the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long-term business strategies.

Under the CG Code provision A6.7, independent directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Dr. Lee Nim Wai did not attend the general meetings of the
Company due to other work commitments. The Company will strengthen
its general meeting planning process, by giving all directors sufficient time
to arrange their work in advance and providing any necessary support
for their presence and participation in the meeting, so as to facilitate all
directors attending the Company’s future general meetings.

Below are the major corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company with specific reference to the CG Code.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for leading and controlling
the Company, overseeing as well as the supervision of its business,
approval of strategic plans and monitoring the Company’s performance.
The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to the executive directors
and senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval.

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprise seven Directors, of which
four are executive Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Kit, Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan,
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah and Ms. Wong Chi Yan; and three are independent
non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”), Mr. Lenug Man Chun, Mr. Fok
Kin Fung, Eric and Dr. Lee Nim Wai. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors. The
Directors’ biographical information is set out in pages 46 to 50 under the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive Directors and
INEDs so that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of the Company
and that the current board size is adequate for its present operations.
Each Director keeps abreast of his/her responsibility as the Director and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active anticipation of a majority of Directors, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. There were 39 board meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the year

ended 31 December 2016:

BEREEFHERE_T-—RF+_A=1+—H
LHEERITZESZEEZEN

Attendance/eligible to attend

KRB BEREERE
Board meeting General meeting
EZge3 BRRAE

Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Zhang Weijie' 6/6 0n
RIEHETAET
Mr. Chan Wai Kit? 36/39 6/6
PR (2 5 A2
Mr. Guo Keqin? 6/6 01
By by
Ms. Wong Chi Yan* 39/39 5/6
=EHEB LT
Ms. Lam Kit Yan® 3/3 11
R B L5
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah® 34/34 5/5
5 5 5 A6
Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan’ 32733 5/5
HER AT
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert® 6/6 01
EEC kLS
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau?® 9/9 0N
B RRSE A
Mr. Lam Wing Tai'® 172 N/A i A
MoKZRSE A
Mr. Zeng Shiquan' 378 0/1
BAOREE"
Mr. Leung Man Chun'? 32/33 4/5
RXE 2
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric' 29/32 4/5
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Dr. Lee Nim Wai' 18/28 0/5
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Notes:
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Mr. Zhang Weijie has been appointed as an executive Director and Chairman on
16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016.

Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as a Co-Chairman on 7 May 2015 and he
has been re-designated from Co-Chairman to Chairman and Chairman to deputy
Chairman with effect from 8 October 2015 and 16 October 2015 respectively.

Mr. Guo Keqin has been appointed as an executive Director on 16 October 2015
and resigned on 9 March 2016.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May 2015
and resigned as company secretary on 18 January 2016.

Ms. Lam Kit Yan has been appointed as an executive Director and company
secretary on 18 January 2016 and resigned as executive Director and company
secretary on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Mui Yuk Wah has been appointed as an executive Director and company
secretary on 23 February 2016 and resigned as company secretary on 3 August
2016.

Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan has been appointed as an executive Director on 2 March
2016.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.

Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

Mr. Zeng Shiquan has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman (“Chairman”) is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its
agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other directors
for inclusion in the agenda while the CEQ is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the Co-Chairman
on 7 May 2015 and subsequent became a sole Chairman from 8 October

2015

to 15 October 2015 after the resignation of Dr. Lan Hong Tsung,

David on 8 October 2015. Mr. Chan has been re-designated as a deputy
Chairman on 16 October 2015.
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There is no CEO of the Company after the resignation of Mr. Mo Wai
Ming, Lawrence on 8 October 2015. The deputy Chairman temporarily
took up the role as CEO of the Company for a transitional period with a
view to identifying a suitable candidate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently no non-executive directors (“NED(s)") during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied at all times with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and
5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules that at least three INEDs sit in the Board
(more than half of the Board members) and at least one of them has
appropriate professional accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Each INED has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, all the INEDs have entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years,
unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served
by either party on the other. The CG Code provision A.4.1 has been
complied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing the risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
three committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions
of the senior management. Nomination Committee assists the Board
in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the size and
composition of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on
appointment of directors. Each of the Committees is established with
defined written terms of reference which are available on the Company’s
website and the GEM website.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and determining
the specific remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market terms, individual
experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company
and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The amounts paid to each Director
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2016 by band is set out as follows:

FEEE(ER)

Remuneration band (in HK$)

il
%

FME
FHEERAARAEEAHES RSAEE
IRREBREFRRUER 18

JE 2 % B
ERARREZRESAEEEZABHM -

R

EECHMBRIEFMEZEEERMSIE
o EAKER  BERAEERES -

EEFMERARRALENBRARMARAR
HNBRARZEREE  MEFER MR -
HE_Z-—R"F+_A=+—HILFEREZE
EXNZHE - BREEMBRRMEEI0 -

BIBECEERTAEBNSE  AFEHE—T
—RETA=T-BHUIFESRERAEZ
FEERAFR [EERSREEABRBE]|—
£ RREEAB(EERIN) O FEHBZ 6
EEFIR T

Number of individuals

AE

Nil to 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000
As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun,
Dr. Lee Nim Wai, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Mr. Chan Wai Kit. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Man Chun.
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The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year. TNEEetEEERVBITRNEE - HH
Four meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2016. The ZEEeREBEE_T—XRFt+-_A=+—8HI#
attendance of each member is set out as follows: ERRBTEIEH  SKEZEFEBRES 10
T
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
SERHERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert! 3/3
ERLCEE
Mr. Lam Wing Tai? 01
MoK TR S A2
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau? 3/3
BN IR S A3
Mr. Zeng Shiquan* 171
AR kA
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)® 2/2
RS E(EE)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric® 171
ERRE T LS
Dr. Lee Nim Wai’ N/A
FORBET
Executive Director
HITES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit 4/4
BRIZHESE &
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

2. Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

3. Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.
4. Mr. Zeng Shiquan has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director

on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016.

5. Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

6. Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

7. Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016.

Summary of works

During the year 2016, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages of the all the Directors and the senior
management and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the newly appointed executive Directors and INEDs
in accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of
reference.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorship, reviewing the nomination of directors and
making recommendations to the Board on such appointments.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three INEDs and one executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Man Chun,
Dr. Lee Nim Wai, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Mr. Chan Wai Kit. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by the INED, Mr. Leung Man Chun.
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The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year REZECHESTFRLVBIT—RNEEH UK

for the review of the structure, size and composition (including skills, AEEG AR - RERAEK(BIEREE - A
knowledge and experience) of the Board. In addition, the Nomination MBS ) o Ikoh - IRBEESINE B

Committee also meets as it is required to consider nomination related TE% UWEERBEBEE - RRZE8eR
matters. Five meetings were held during the year ended 31 December BHE-_ZT—"F+-_A=+—BHLFESTH
2016. The attendance of each member is set out as follows: KRG - FRBZHEFEBEREIWMT -
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
BERLERY

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert! 3/3
EECEAE

Mr. Lam Wing Tai? 0n
i

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau? 3/3
B

Mr. Zeng Shiquan# 7l
BAREE

Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)® B3
RS E(EE)

Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric® 2/2
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Dr. Lee Nim Wai’ 01
FREEAT

Executive Director
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Mr. Chan Wai Kit 5/5
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

2. Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

3. Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.
4. Mr. Zeng Shiquan has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director

on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016.

5. Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

6. Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

7. Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016.

Summary of works

During the year 2016, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Board
diversity policy, the structure, size and composition of the Board and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s strategy and also reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the newly
appointed executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and
company secretary in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s
written terms of reference.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 1 September 2013. A summary of this policy, together with the
measurable objectives set for implementing this policy, and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognized and embraced the benefits of having a diverse
Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a numbers
of measurable aspects including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
knowledge and length of services. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises three
INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length of
services, professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the Board
Diversity Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment and removal of external auditor, to evaluate
the overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
frameworks, to review the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and other financial reporting matters and ensure the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statements, to
monitor compliance with statutory and listing requirements and to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. At least one member has an
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Company’s quarterly, interim and
annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors and
senior executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required. Each of
the Audit Committee members has unrestricted access to the Group’s
external auditor and the management.
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As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Man Chun, Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric and Dr. Lee Nim Wai.
The Audit Committee is chaired by the Mr. Leung Man Chun.

The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least four times a year.
Six meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

RARERH  BEREZE SR =RBIIFNT
EEEK  KEDHIRRXELEE EfRESR
ERFLRELE - RNEREREETERZES
EE e

EREARHAGFROSENRARY - NE
—B—XE+=A=T-ALFERERTA
REH - BREAZHEERBIIOT

Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
SEREERH
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert! 11
ERLCEAE
Mr. Lam Wing Tai? 171
MoK TR S A2
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau? il
IR A3
Mr. Zeng Shiquan* N/A
AR kA
Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman)® 5/5
RS E(EE)
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric® 5/5
& S S
Dr. Lee Nim Wai’ 4/5
FoRBE
Notes: Mt -
1. Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive 1. EECAER-Z—HAFRALAREERBIIE

Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

2. Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

3. Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.
4. Mr. Zeng Shiguan has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director

on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016.

5. Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

6. Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

7. Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016.
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Summary of works

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee reviewed
the quarterly, interim and annual results; made recommendations to the
Board on the terms of engagement of the external auditors; and reviewed
the system of risk management and internal control on an ongoing basis,
and its other duties in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written
terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the CG
Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Under its amended terms of reference, dated 7 January 2016,
the Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group's preliminary
quarterly results, interim results and annual financial statements and
to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group, to
review the scope, extent and effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system, internal audit and risk management matters and to review the
Group's financial and accounting policies.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the policies of
the corporate governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company is set
out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

External Auditor’'s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the
audit fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-audit
service (including professional advice on financing activities, taxation,
acquisition and disposal) for the year ended 31 December 2016 provided
by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was HK$690,000 and HK$796,000
respectively.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The internal control system includes safeguard of the
interest of shareholders and the Group's assets. It has been an important
duty of the Board to conduct a review of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at any
time necessary. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions.

The Group has engaged ALE Corporate Services Limited as an
independent internal control review advisor to conduct the annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system. Review of the Group's
internal controls covering major operational, financial and compliance
controls, as well as risk management functions of different systems has
been performed on a systematic rotational basis on the risk assessments
of the operations and controls. No major issues on the internal control
system have been identified during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged at the expenses of the
Company where necessary. For the year 2016, each of the Directors
has participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or studying materials relevant to director’s duties and
responsibility. Their training records have been provided to the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors have received the

following trainings:

HE_-ZT

BRI

—RETA=t+—-BHIFE EF

Training on corporate governance,
regulatory development and other
relevant topics

ThEER EEBRR
H i 16 B R E 9 3% 5
Studying Attending
materials Seminar
mEEH i FE 3
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Weijie' v -
RIZEEFAET
Mr. Chan Wai Kit? v v
BRIZ S 42
Mr. Guo Keqin? v -
2050 g o A3
Ms. Wong Chi Yan* v 4
=mEB LT
Ms. Lam Kit Yan® — =
MR B 2 L5
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah® v -
B EE ST S
Mr Hung Tat Chi, Alan’ v -
AR AT
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYEHITES
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert® v =
EECKES
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau?® v 4
B RRSE A
Mr. Lam Wing Tai' v =
MK F A0
Mr. Zeng Shiquan' = =
BARSTE
Mr. Leung Man Chun'? v -
R & S 12
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric' v -
ElEERES
Dr. Lee Nim Wai'# v -
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Notes:

Mr. Zhang Weijie has been appointed as an executive Director and Chairman on
16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016.

Mr. Chan Wai Kit has been appointed as a Co-Chairman on 7 May 2015 and he
has been re-designated from Co-Chairman to Chairman and Chairman to deputy
Chairman with effect from 8 October 2015 and 16 October 2015 respectively.

Mr. Guo Keqin has been appointed as an executive Director on 16 October 2015
and resigned on 9 March 2016.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan has been appointed as an executive Director on 27 May 2015
and resigned as company secretary on 18 January 2016.

Ms. Lam Kit Yan has been appointed as an executive Director and company
secretary on 18 January 2016 and resigned as executive Director and company
secretary on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Mui Yuk Wah has been appointed as an executive Director and company
secretary on 23 February 2016 and resigned as company secretary on 3 August
2016.

Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan has been appointed as an executive Director on 2 March
2016.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 16
March 2016.

Mr. Lam Wing Tai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016.

Mr. Zeng Shiguan has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 23 February 2016.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 March 2016.

Dr. Lee Nim Wai has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
16 March 2016.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. Leung Ching Man (“Ms. Leung”), is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.
She is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the
relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and facilitating the induction and professional
development of directors. During the year under review, Ms. Leung
has attended relevant professional seminars to update her skills and
knowledge. She met the training requirement set out in rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had adopted a
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which
has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the related party transactions,
if any, are periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All the
shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice
of annual general meeting at which Directors are available to answer
guestions on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s
activities is provided in its annual report, interim report and quarterly
reports which are sent to shareholders and investors. The Company's
announcements, press releases and publications are published and are
also available on the GEM website and on the Company’s website at
www.aurumpacific.com.hk.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, there has not been any change
in the Company’s constitutional documents. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the GEM website.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the “Extraordinary
General Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors
or the secretary for the purpose of requiring an Extraordinary
General Meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors fail
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by
email at administrator@aurumpacific.com.hk or by post to the
Company’s Hong Kong head office at 21/F., Henan Building,
90 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also make
enquiries with the Board directly at the general meetings.

Make proposals at general meetings

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”) (as amended from time to time), the Shareholders who
wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting follow the procedures as set out
above.
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PREAMBLE

The Group actively adheres to environmental and social
responsibilities. The Board is ultimately responsible for leading
the Environmental, social and governance (“ESG") works by
establishing dedicated teams to manage ESG issues. The teams
cover health and safety, environmental protection and community
within each business division. Designated staff are assigned to
enforce and supervise the implementation of relevant policies.

The Group is committed to making continuous improvements
in environmental and social responsibility in order to meet the
changing needs of an advancing society. The Group is pleased
to present its ESG report this year to demonstrate its efforts in
sustainable development.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE
REPORT

The ESG report covers the operational boundary of the software
platform business in Hong Kong and PRC and money lending
business in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2016
("FY2016"). For corporate governance section, please refer to the
Group’s Annual Report 2016 on pages 15 to 32. The reporting
period of this ESG report is for the financial year 2016, from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016, unless specifically stated
otherwise.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

To conduct of the Group’s materiality assessment in identifying
and understanding the main concerns and material interests of
stakeholders, the Group has engaged its stakeholders, including
employees and shareholders. Stakeholders are selected based
on stakeholder influence and stakeholder dependence on the
Group. Stakeholders with high influence and high dependence
on the Group are selected by the management of the Group. The
selected stakeholders have been invited to express their views and
concerns on major social and environment issues. The stakeholder
engagement has been conducted through online survey. For this
ESG report, the Group has identified occupational health and
safety measures, employees’ development and legal compliance on
employment practices as material concerns to stakeholders.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

After assessing the feedback from stakeholders through an online
survey, the Group has reviewed the sustainability strategies,
practices and measures undertaken in FY2016 and highlighted
material and relevant aspects throughout this report so as to align
with the stakeholders’ expectations.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

In recent decades, environmental protection issues are becoming
more and more important as a result of global climate change,
air pollution and water pollution caused by human activities.
The Group has been paying great attention on protecting the
environment and taking the responsibility to curb global warming.
The Group strives to protect the environment by integrating
a range of environmental initiatives across its business and
commits to minimise the environmental impact of the Group’s
business operation by reinforcing environmental awareness and
implementing measures for use of resources in responsible manner,
energy saving and waste management.

A.1. Emissions
The Group is committed to operating in compliance with
applicable environmental laws and regulations in all material
respects and protecting the environment by minimising the
negative impact of the Group's existing business activities on
the environment.

The Group continuously performs the separate collection
method on the daily domestic garbage to ensure reuse of
the recyclable waste, for example: plastic bags, plastic lunch
boxes, paper and so on. The Group provides microwave in
the office to encourage staff to bring their own lunch boxes
instead of ordering foods, in this way to minimise the wastes
generated from food packaging bags. The Group also chooses
cups or glasses instead of paper cups for the guests to
minimise waste and be more environmental-friendly.

The Green House Gas (“GHG") emission from the Group is
mainly generated from its purchased electricity consumed
by the daily operation. To reduce the amount of carbon
emission, the Group has implemented several practical
measures on saving energy as further described in the next
section “Use of Resources”.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.2. Use of Resources

A.3.

The Group strives to save energy and resource through
persistent implementation of internal policies and use
of advanced technologies. The Group has taken specific
measures on saving electricity described as below:

o Use energy saving lamps for office lighting;
o Switch off office facilities, lights, air-conditioning when
not in use;

o Place posters “Saving Electricity, Turn off the Light
when Leaving” in prominent places to encourage
employees; and

o Clean the office equipment regularly (such as
refrigerator, air-conditioner, paper shredder, etc.) to
maintain they are running efficiently.

Water consumption by the Group is entirely generated
from the domestic use during the working hours. In order
to save water resource, the Group has placed “Saving
Water Resource” posters in prominent places to encourage
employees.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The main natural resource consumed by the Group is paper
from the documentation printing. To minimise the use of
paper, the Group has put great efforts described as below:

o Place boxes and trays beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse and used paper
for recycling;

o Use environmentally friendly paper to print the annual
reports and interim reports;

. Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via
email or e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

o Set duplex printing as the default mode for most
network printers; and

o To “think before print”: use posters and stickers as the
reminder for office staff to avoid unnecessary printings.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B.1. Employment

The Group treasures talent as it is the most valuable asset
and key for driving success and maintaining sustainable
development. The Group strives to provide its staff with
a safe and suitable platform for career development and
advancement.

The Group's human resources policies strictly adhere to
the applicable employment laws and regulations in Hong
Kong and the PRC, including the Employment Ordinance,
Employees' Compensation Ordinance, Minimum Wage
Ordinance, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
Labour Law of the PRC (FEI% &)%) and Labour Contract
Law of the PRC (FEI%E)4& [A)%). This ensures that the
Group provide fair welfare and benefits, and a fair working
environment to its employees. The Group’s Human Resources
Department reviews and updates relevant company policies
regularly in accordance with the latest laws and regulations.

Talent acquisition is vital to the Group’s business future
development. To attract high-calibre workforce, the Group
offers competitive and fair remuneration and benefits based
on individuals' performance, professional qualifications and
experiences. The Group also makes reference to market
benchmarks and the Group’s financial performance. In order
to motivate and reward existing management and employees,
the Group conducts regular compensation review according
to the overall market environment, inflation, profitability
of the Group and employee performance in the past to
determine the staff salary adjustment to ensure that they
are recognised by the Group appropriately with regard to
their working efforts and contributions. Eligible persons are
motivated by share options schemes as a long-term incentive.
Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract
should be based on reasonable and lawful grounds. The
Group strictly prohibits any kinds of unfair or unreasonable
dismissals.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
B.1. Employment (Continued)

V. #EREENE)

EBREREIER(E)
B.1. {E{E(mﬁ

The Group determines working hours and rest period for
our employees in line with local employment laws and
employment contracts with employees. In addition to
statutory holidays stipulated by the employment law of the
local government such as the paid annual leave and sick
leave, employees may also be entitled to additional leave
entitlements such as maternity leave and paternity leave. To
cultivate employees' sense of belonging, the Group hosted
a series of activities for the employees in 2016 such as
annual dinner and spring dinner. These events have helped
the employees to relieve stress, and served to strengthen
the Group’s corporate culture of the spirit of solidarity and
cohesion among its employees.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed
to create a fair, respectful and diverse working environment
by promoting anti-discrimination and equal opportunity
in all human resources and employment decisions. For
instance, training and promotion opportunities, dismissals
and retirement policies are determined irrespective of their
gender, race, age, disability, family status, marital status,
sexual orientation, religion beliefs, nationality or any other
non-job related factors in all business units. The Group's
equal opportunities policy enforces zero tolerance to any
workplace discrimination, harassment or victimisation in
accordance to relevant government legislation, ordinances
and regulations such as Hong Kong'’s Disability Discrimination
Ordinance and Sex Discrimination Ordinance. If there is any
violation of anti-discrimination incidents, employees can
report to Human Resources Department. Human Resources
Department is fully responsible to strictly comply with
national and corporate regulations on assessing, dealing with,
recording and taking disciplinary actions on such events.

In terms of internal coaching and communication, effective
two-way communication between general staff and
managerial staff is highly encouraged. Employees maintain
timely and smooth communication with the management and
colleagues within the Group through the emails, trainings
and meetings. The interactive communication benefits the
Group's decision-making process and results in a barrier-free
employer-employee relationship.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.2.

B.3.

Health and Safety

To provide and maintain good working conditions and
a safe and healthy working environment, the Group’s
safety and health policies are in line with various laws and
regulations stipulated by the local government, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance.

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism in
committing the workplace safety by incorporating a range
of occupational health and safety measures for all of its
employees in the office. The Group prohibits smoking and
drinking liquor in workplace, builds up safety warning signs,
carries out the disinfection treatment of carpets and sets up
first aid boxes with an aim to maintain a clean, tidy, smoke-
free, non-toxic, non-hazardous, healthy and safe working
environment in the office. Besides, the Group held regular
occupational health and safety training, tips and briefings to
its staff to minimise the risk of accidents and enhance the
employees’ health and safety awareness. The Group targets
to achieve accident-free workplace environment. In FY2016,
no injury accidents and zero fatal accident were recorded.

Development and Training

The Group offers different training and development
opportunities to its staff in order to strengthen work-related
skills and knowledge and improve operational efficiency. The
Group emphasises on staff’s personal development. Internal
training programs are provided to the staff to strengthen
work-related skills and knowledge on products, regulations,
compliance procedures and market updates such as anti-
money laundering and new regulatory updates. The Group
also encourages employees to attend external seminars
such as annual regulatory updates and newly implemented
ordinances which are organised by professional institutions to
enhance the employees’ competitiveness and improve their
working quality through continuous learning.
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RE  #HEBRERRS

V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) V.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
B.4. Labour Standards

HETEEYE (&)

EBERSTERE)
B.4. % T X8|

The Group strictly abides by the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC and other related labour
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and PRC to prohibit any
child and forced labour employment. To combat against
illegal employment on child labour, underage workers and
forced labour, prior to confirmation of employment, the
Group’s human resources staff requires job applicants to
provide valid identity documents to ensure that the applicants
are lawfully employable. The Human Resources Department
is responsible to monitor and ensure compliance of latest
and relevant laws and regulations that prohibits child labour
and forced labour. If the Group discovered such case, the
employment will be immediately terminated.

OPERATING PRACTICES
B.5. Supply Chain Management

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital to
maintain and manage a sustainable and reliable supply chain.
The Group’s supply chain management is consistent to its
sustainability in establishing a mutual trust and understanding
with its business partners. Its main suppliers in provision
of software platform are the telecommunication service
providers. In selecting suppliers, comprehensive assessment
is performed over different criteria including but not limited
to reputation, price, technical capabilities, business size and
product quality. The Group normally executes a contract with
the selected supplier and places orders on a project basis.
Warranty on quality of services is to be provided by suppliers.
To avoid any disruptions of supply chain, the Group maintains
a close dialogue with the suppliers and at least two suppliers
for each of supplied services if there are available suppliers in
the market. Meetings are held periodically with the suppliers
to share market information and product updates. This
effectively prevents monopoly of suppliers and maintains
stable and long-term relationships with different suppliers.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.5.

B.6.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

The Group expects its suppliers are in high quality and operate
in compliance with applicable local environmental laws,
ordinances and regulations. By selecting reliable supplier,
the Group is committed to conduct business with the
suppliers which are socially responsible to meet the ethical
expectations.

For any non-compliance with expected standards of the
Group, the Group would propose suppliers to take remedial
actions immediately to rectify the problems. The Group would
closely monitor the implementation of the remedial measures
to ensure that they are carried out properly and effectively.

Product Responsibility

Software Platform

With regard to the Group's product safety, advertising and
labelling, the Group is strictly in compliance with the related
rules and regulations in Hong Kong and PRC such as Trade
Description Ordinance. The Group is committed to offer
high-quality communications software platform, electronic
learning products and software related services. The Group
provides IT solutions which aim to facilitate government
departments and corporations to communicate with their
customers using websites, telephones, mobile phones using
voice (e.g. IVR Interactive Voice Response System) and data
(e.g. Mobile Apps) channels. The project team communicates
closely with customers to assess and review the progress and
to identify and resolve any problems or issues which may
arise during the course of the services. In order to precisely
ensure product safety to the public, engineers conduct
quality control tests in different stages and technical support
department performs acceptance inspection for final check
before delivery to the customers.
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RE  #HEBRERRS

V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) V. EHEY(E)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) ZEEM (&)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. EmEE (&)
Software Platform (Continued) B FE(E)

For mobile games development, the Group is engaged to
develop and own mobile games in Hong Kong. To reduce the
risk of over reliance upon a single geographical market whilst
increasing the marketability of the games, the Group has sub-
licensed the games to operators in designed territories as well
as third party internet platforms such as Apple’s App Store
and Google Play, subject to the contractual terms agreed with
them. The Group provides technical support to the licensed
operators/customers on an as-needed basis to enhance
game optimisation. This typically comes in the form of in-
game maintenance, updates, upgrades as well as debugging
exercises. The game development team will generate the
demo version of the game for further testing, internal review
and optimisation. We typically choose from a pool of out-
sourced service suppliers that we have engaged previously or
which we find their quality of work to be acceptable.

The Group receives customers' complaints through 24 hours
hotline, email, review on Apple’s App Store and Google
Play and customer services team. Complaints are handled
by the managers and relevant departments by carrying out
data analysis on collected feedbacks and recording the
details of the complaint in an accurate, attentive and timely
manner under standard procedures. Findings and proposals
of enhancements are proposed to the senior management
for final decision. All of these measures strengthen product
offerings and service quality, and consequently enable the
Group to stay competitive in the market.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

Money Lending Business

The Group was granted a money lenders licence by the
licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Group adopted the money lending policy and procedure
manual which provide guidelines on handling and/or
monitoring of money lending procedures according to the
Money Lenders Ordinance. The Group has set up internal
procedures and manuals such as Money Lending Procedures
Manual to ensure that the services comply with the
requirement of the aforesaid rules and regulations. The Group
is committed to provide clear and balanced information to
customers. Service features, terms and conditions, and any
associated risks are clearly communicated to the intending
borrowers by the Group’s employees, in particular the terms
in relation to repayment, through letters and telephone.
Meanwhile, the Group allows customers to review and
consult the terms of contract and relevant documents with
their legal advisers. In addition, the Group performs “Know
Your Customer” procedures and obtains information from
customers in assessing their financial background and
risk tolerant level to provide suitable services. Customers
who are interested in the Group’s services would sign the
acknowledgment on the terms and conditions including the
associated risks.

The Group strives to provide a prompt response to customers'
complaints and opinions. The audit committee members
are responsible to handle the complaints. After internal
discussion, a formal reply will be issued to customers in
writing if necessary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE  #HEBRERRS

V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) V. HE0EEM(E)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) EEEN(E)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. EmEE (&)
Money Lending Business (Continued) MEFEE(E)
The Group rEH

The Group emphasises the importance of protecting the
privacy of the customers and commits in abiding by Hong
Kong's Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and other relevant
local laws and regulations at all times in collection, use
and holding of client information. The Group prohibits the
provision of consumer information to a third party without
authorisation from the clients. If there are any requests for
client information or the business, internal department will be
consulted to ensure the appropriateness of disclosure under
the law and policies.

Advertisements of the Group do not include any statement,
promise or forecast which is false, misleading or deceptive
to our customers which comply with the relevant laws and
regulations for local operations. Prior to public release
of advertisement, the materials are reviewed by senior
management for final approval to ensure that there are no
erroneous statements. Information provided by the Group is
committed to be true, accurate and not misleading and makes
disclosure of all relevant and material information which
complies with the relevant laws and regulations such as Hong
Kong's Trade Description Ordinance. For the advertisement
in relation to the money lending business, the Group strictly
complies with the requirements under the additional licensing
conditions of Money Lenders Licence which the advertisement
shall contain the licensee’s telephone hotline for handling
complaints and a risk warning statement.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)
B.7. Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working
environment, the Group strictly adheres to the laws and
regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery irrespective
of the area or country where the Group is conducting
business such as Hong Kong's Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance. The Group has formulated and strictly enforced
the Code of Conduct that the Group will not be tolerated any
form of corruption. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and they are
required to abstain from engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering activities or any activities which might
exploit their positions against the Group's or client’s or impair
their interests. Declaration should be made by the directors
of the Company in writing to the internal department for
any financial interests, directly or indirectly, in any business
which competes with the Group or with which the Group
has business dealings. Breaching of the rules will be
disciplined and such employee may subject to termination of
employment. Where criminality is suspected, a report is made
to the relevant regulators or law enforcement authorities if to
be necessary.

Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to immediate
supervisor or Audit Committee members for any suspicious
activities including any request, receipt or acceptance of
any forms of benefits from any persons, companies or
organisations having conflict of interest with the Group
and misconduct behaviours which are related to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money-laundering. The Group advocates
a confidentiality mechanism to protect the whistle-blowers
from fear of threatens and any disadvantage to the whistle-
blowers’ employment relationship.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY

B.8. Community Investment

The Group places great emphasis on cultivating social
responsibility awareness among its staff and encourage them
to participate in charitable activities. The Group devotes
to environmental protection and make contributions to
environmental protection activities. The Group sponsored
Sky and King Global Enterprises Limited on the e-Touring
Car Challenge event on 8 October 2016, which is the first
electric touring car racing event in Hong Kong advocating the
concept of “Environmental-friendly and Energy-saving” by
using the zero-emission electric cars.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAERGTE

As at date of report, the biographies of Directors and senior management
are set out as below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan"), aged 33, has been appointed as an
executive Director, authorised representative and compliance officer of
the Company since 13 October 2014 and a deputy Chairman with effect
from 16 October 2015. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Information System
and a Master Degree of Accounting from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. Mr. Chan has been appointed as a committee member of
the 9th Committee of Maoming City of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since December 2016. Mr. Chan is currently
an executive director of Green Energy Group Limited (stock code: 979),
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chan was the chairman, executive
director, authorized representative and compliance officer of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8201), a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange from June
2015 to July 2016. He was also an executive director of China Taifeng
Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange from July 2016 to August 2016. Mr.
Chan has extensive experience in information technology, accounting,
finance, corporate governance, strategic planning, as well as merger and
acquisition.

Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan (“Mr. Hung"), aged 38, has been appointed
as executive Director with effect on 2 March 2016. Mr. Hung holds two
Master Degrees in Civil Engineering and in Business Administration. He
is specialized in commercializing recycled products in the construction
industry and in waste tyres solutions. Mr. Hung has more than 10 years of
experience in China and established extensive network with government
officials and executives, investors, entrepreneurs, professionals and
academics in Asia, America, Europe and the Middle East. Mr. Hung has
been the Deputy Secretary General of the Preparatory Committee for the
World Summit of Chinese Entrepreneurs since 2005, and has been taking
up senior management positions in different organizations including
statutory body and multinational corporation. Mr. Hung is currently an
alternate director of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022)
which is listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREEBAERHE

Mr. Mui Yuk Wah (“Mr. Mui”), aged 32, has been appointed as an
executive Director with effect on 23 February 2016 and was a company
secretary from 23 February 2016 to 3 August 2016. He obtained Bachelor
Degree in Economics from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Mui
has worked for international accounting firms for 8 years, with extensive
experience in financial reporting, auditing, mergers and acquisitions and
initial public offerings. Mr. Mui is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong Chi Yan (“Ms. Wong"), aged 35, has been appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 27 May 2015. She is currently
the authorised representative and was a company secretary from 29
April 2010 to 18 January 2016. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Accounting from Hong Kong Baptist University
and a Master of Laws in International Corporate and Financial Law from
The University of Wolverhampton, UK. Ms. Wong is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She is currently
an executive director of Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 907) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and is company secretary of Flyke International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1998) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was also an executive director, company
secretary and authorised representative of PPS International (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 8201) whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange from June 2015 to July 2016. She was also the executive
director of China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from July 2016
to August 2016. Ms. Wong was an independent non-executive director
of Prosten Health Holdings Limited (stock code: 8026) whose shares are
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from June 2015 to October 2015
and was also an independent non-executive director of Co-Prosperity
Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange from October 2015 to January 2016. Ms.
Wong was the company secretary and authorised representative of
U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited (stock code: 627) whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from September
2013 to April 2016. Ms. Wong has extensive experiences in auditing,
accounting and financing as well as merger and acquisition.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung”), aged 29, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 23 February
2016. He has been engaging in financial services sector for over 6 years,
along with ample experience in an international accounting firm and an
international bank. He currently serves as a corporate finance principal for
a professional firm. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Social Sciences
from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2009. Mr. Leung is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung is
currently an independent non-executive director of Evershine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8022) whose shares are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric (“Mr. Fok"), aged 33, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 2 March 2016.
Mr. Fok has over 10 years’ experience in financial advisory industry, with
ample experience in asset management and risk management. Mr. Fok
obtained a bachelor degree of banking and finance from the University
of London and currently serves as a senior financial advisor at an
international insurance corporation.

Dr. Lee Nim Wai (“Dr. Lee”), aged 64, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 16 March 2016.
Dr. Lee is a dental surgeon in Hong Kong with over 37 years in dental
practice, with special interest in cosmetic dentistry. Dr. Lee obtained the
Bachelor Degree from the University of Washington in 1975, and later on
the Doctoral Degree of Dental Medicine from the University of the East in
1979. Dr. Lee actively engages in charitable activities and he has been the
vice-chairman and a director of Yan Chai Hospital from 1991-1999. He
is the founder of Imperial Dental Group which provides premium dental
services both in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwong Wing Heen, Gaberial (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 36, is the
executive director of First Surplus Investments Ltd. and its subsidiaries,
responsible for business management, development, and creative
direction. He graduated from University of California Berkeley, Bachelor
of Electrical Engineering and Computer Science, and he was deeply
influenced by and exposed to the tech startup culture of the Silicon
Valley. In 2004, Mr. Kwong founded his first tech startup in Hong Kong,
specialized in tech innovation and digital entertainment. In 2005, Mr.
Kwong developed Asia’s first web based virtual world social platform,
Sooff.com, in which he, as the Producer and System Architect, made the
earliest attempt to implement concepts like micro-transaction, freemium,
gamification, and advertising through social network, which are all game
industry norms nowadays. From 2006 to 2009, Mr. Kwong worked with
various 4As advertising agencies, such as TBWA, Ogilvy & Mather, and
McCann, as the Digital Creative Director to design and develop game
projects and award-winning digital advertising campaigns for brands like
Intel, Cartoon Network, Levi’s, VTech, and Nokia. In 2010, Mr. Kwong
switched his focus from web game to mobile game and founded Mooff
Games Limited, a mobile game company that currently has accumulated a
total game downloads of 6 million worldwide and has games featured by
Apple App Store and Google Play featured multiple times. From 2010 to
2016, Mr. Kwong also took the role of Game Producer for clients such as
Disney, TVB, MTR, Culturecom, and Mission Hills, to develop mobile game
titles. Mr. Kwong has 20 years of experience in technology development
and creative production, and over 15 years of experience in tech startup,
game development, social community, gamified advertising, and project
management.
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Mr. Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (“Mr. Mo"), aged 57, was an executive
Director and the CEO from 31 December 2012 to 8 October 2015,
and currently the director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Mo founded his first company CompuFont Limited in 1989 to develop
Asian language technologies for display and printing, which were later
licensed by Microsoft for use in its nascent Chinese version of Windows
3.0 product for personal computers. CompuFont Limited was in 1991
acquired by a Taiwan based software technology company, Dynalab
Inc. which was engaged in the development and sales of solutions on
local language computing for Chinese, Japanese and Korean (CJK) for
electronic and internet publishing, where Mr. Mo continued his service as
the managing director of Hong Kong branch of Dynalab Inc. and various
management roles until 1999 when he left to found KanHan Technologies
Limited (“KHT"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Mo
is an expert in CJK language font technology for PC and professional
publishing market. Mr. Mo holds a degree in computer science from
the University of Toronto, Canada and has over 30 years experience in
technology development, selling and business startup in the information
technology industry and over 10 years experience in the development and
sales of solutions on local language computing for Asian languages and
for electronic and internet publishing.

Mr. Mak Ka Ming (“Mr. Mak"”), aged 38, is the project director of
KHT. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Bachelor of
Manufacturing Engineering. Mr. Mak joined KHT in Oct 2013 having over
10 years' IT and Project Management experience, and now responsible for
product development and service delivery.

Ms. Leung Ching Man (“Ms. Leung”), aged 30, has been appointed as
company secretary of the Company with effect from 3 August 2016. Ms.
Leung joined the Company in March 2016 and she obtained a Bachelor of
Business Administration from Lingnan University in 2009 and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has over
7 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

TERHEE(TREE]) 575 RZTE—=
F#+-_A=+—BZF_ZE—HE+AN\BAH
TEZRTHEH  BRAARRAZHKE AR
ZEE BRAEER—NNANERIEERAA]
CompuFont Limited » AR E 2 M B 5 R & ED
Rl AT - BB EEARERAZK 2R
3.0 MY EfF X Hx » CompuFont Limited
RN —FE—RE BRI A AERR
BARE ERAMEARNEHAELEES
FREBBEREKAEZ2F - B - BiE55
BERAFR  RAELBRENRERRRARES
DITETESRLE  TETZEEERY -
HER—AANFER - VWAL ARBZE2E
MEARBEEREARAR([FEERK]) - &
FERBABKMEREELRTZ 2P - B - 8
BEFBRNER - RAEHENERAZREZ
AREFHBES+ 2 - NEARIREZ Bl
g HERBIEFTAHAR=TFLER I
RAZEREETMNETHERATRARET
K BB A8 P AR 375 7 E A 8 T F A5 o

ERF{([EXRE]) 385  REERKIER
BE - REENFBEBEIRE  HEHETRE
BELBY - REZB-=F+AMATER
R ARBBETFEANRKIBREEERLR
BABEMMENMREEZ -

RBEZT((RzL])  30m BE-F—RF
NAZBREZERETARRRWE - BRE
RZB-—REZAMARRR - BRR-ZBTN
FEEMASMGIREESELEN Y AT
BEIMAEZEE - RNBE - MK
ERETEERBCFLR -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on
the Group's future business development are provided in the Board of
Directors’ statement on pages 4 to 5 and the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 6 to 14. The principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
page 11 and disclosed in the section headed “Financial risk management
and fair values of financial instruments” in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Important events affecting the Group is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 14 and disclosed in the section
headed “Non-adjusting events after the reporting period” in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements since the end of the financial year
under review.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-years Financial
Summary on page 200. The Group is committed to supporting the
environmental sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources and energy saving. Green
initiatives and measures have been adopted in the Group’s operation.
More details are disclosed in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 33 to 45.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group recognizes
that our employees, customers and business partners are the keys to our
sustainable development. The Group is committed to establishing a close
and caring relationship with our employees, providing quality services to
our customers and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the major
customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year under
review is as follows:

TREFRHER

FHAEERODBEMBFENREIERR
RHEBZHERDRITREEB 2 HE IR
BEHEIIMT :

Percentage of the Group'’s total

EAREEAEZES T
Sales Purchases
The largest customer BAEF 10%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREF &R 30%
The largest supplier A ER 18%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate TAREEE AT 65%

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the Company’s
affairs for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 199.

DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$222,862,000 (2015:
HK$172,227,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT % BERRKRE
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group REBYE BMEMBREBEZEHABTHNEGEE
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. W R M3 -
SHARE CAPITAL IR 2
Details of movements in the share capital during the financial year are set AMBEEZRANEEHFBEHNGETHERE
out in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial statements. MizE27(a) °
DIRECTORS HE
The changes of Directors during the financial year and up to the date of RAFRFERBEEAREHRAZESEEM
this report are as follows: S &
Resigned/
Appointed on Retired on

=1 BT ERE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chan Wai Kit BRIZGES & 13/10/2014 N/A 3 F
Ms. Wong Chi Yan BEHEBEZ L 27/5/2015 N/AZ i A
Mr. Zhang Weijie SRIBGESEAE 16/10/2015 9/3/2016
Mr. Guo Kegin e E LA 16/10/2015 9/3/2016
Ms. Lam Kit Yan WRB L+ 18/1/2016 23/2/2016
Mr. Mui Yuk Wah WEELE 23/2/2016 N/AZ~E
Mr. Hung Tat Chi, Alan BER AL 2/3/2016 N/ATNE

Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau EWIRE A 17/3/2010 16/3/2016
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert ERChE 7/5/2015 2/3/2016
Mr. Lam Wing Tai MKTEAE 16/10/2015 18/1/2016
Mr. Zeng Shigquan BARREE 18/1/2016 23/2/2016
Mr. Leung Man Chun B 23/2/2016 N/AA 3 A
Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric ERE A 2/3/2016 N/AT 38 A
Dr. Lee Nim Wai ToEEE 16/3/2016 N/AT 3
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In accordance with Article 108(A), one-third of the Directors shall retire at
each annual general meeting from office by rotation. Further, according
to Article 112, any director appointed by the Directors to fill a casual
vacancy in the Company under that article shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election at the meeting.

Biographical details of the Directors are set in the section “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the AGM in accordance with the Articles and the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

Neither the existing executive Directors has entered into service contract
with the Company nor appointed for a fixed term for the year ended 31
December 2016. Each of the INEDs has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years unless terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company, had, was deemed to have any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
“SFO"), (Chapter 571 under
the laws of Hong Kong)) (i) which were required to be notified to the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE
THEIR INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2016, the
following persons, other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, had, or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were expected to be
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group:

TERREEMATARE
HRA QR R F 2

FERR

BEEMAM R-_TE—-—RF+-A=+—
B TIAL(ESEHARREIETHRAER
SR KRR D TR - KRS E
BARBESMEGRPIEXVERE2 M3 B 6
X AMARR R E 2 SRR
o T8 A B $5 o AR M R Y S A N AT AT 1S
ATEAEBEMKRERRZBRAG LKRE
ZAEHERIR A ES % 3UA £ 2 e

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares  shareholding
TERREE BB 514 ROBE BBAREBDL

(Note 1)

(HiaE1)
Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung Beneficial owner 120,892,000 (L) 13.33%
RIS A EmEaA
Mr. Wong Tai Kuen Beneficial owner 85,620,000 (L) 7.86%
FARRESLE EmEaA
Mr. Lau Yu Beneficial owner (Note 2) 75,380,000 (L) 6.92%
WFEE EmEBANHiT2)
Noble Ace Investments Limited Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 63,700,000 (L) 5.85%
Noble Ace Investments Limited RIS E e (M at2)
Boyraci Osman Beneficial owner 46,550,175 (L) 5.13%

Boyraci Osman EmEAA

Notes: Hiat -

1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the shares of the Company. 1. [LIFEZR AR BRMDEFR ©

2e Noble Ace Investments Limited (“Noble Ace”) was interested in 63,700,000 2. Noble Ace Investments Limited ([Noble Ace]) A

shares of the Company in the capacity of beneficial owner and Noble Ace is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Yu. As such, Mr. Lau Yu was deemed
to be interested in all the shares of the Company held or interested by Noble Ace
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of other
interests or short positions of any other person (other than the Directors
and chief executives and the substantial shareholders of the Company)
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2016.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) whereby the Board may grant share options to employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any person, at
its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognize and motivate their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is valid for a period
of 10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. Details of the Share Option
Scheme were set out in the circular of the Company dated 27 March 2013
and note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of “Eligible
Participant” of the Share Option Scheme and the definition of “Invested
Entity” be added to the Share Option Scheme (“Amendments to the
Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Amendments to the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 April 2016
and the Company’s circular dated 13 April 2016.

The total number of share option that could be granted was 75,600,000
shares at par value of HK$0.04 each, representing approximately 10%
of the total issued shares of the Company on the date of passing the
resolution to refresh the Share Option Scheme limit at the annual general
meeting on 30 May 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to date of this report, the
Company had not granted any options and no outstanding options under
the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, in which the Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years is set out on page 200 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and management and shareholders of the Company
(within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the CG Code contained in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
Details of the CG Code adopted by the Company are set out in the section
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company has good corporate governance practices.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established audit committee with written terms of
reference which was amended on 7 January 2016. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review, in draft form, the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly reports and to provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board. The audit committee is also
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process,
risk management and internal control of the Group. As at the date of this
report, the audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Leung
Man Chun, Dr. Lee Nim Wai and Mr. Fok Kin Fung, Eric. Mr. Leung Man
Chun is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the public
float requirement under rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 9 March 2016, the Company and a purchaser who was a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SPA”) in relation
to a proposed disposal of entire equity interest of NH Group (the “NH
Disposal”). As the NH Disposal is only a connected transaction between
the Company and a connected person at the subsidiary level on normal
commercial terms, given that (i) the Directors have approved the NH
Disposal; and (ii) the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the terms of the NH Disposal is fair and reasonable, the NH Disposal
is on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole, such connected transaction is exempted from
the circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the
NH Disposal are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 9 March
2016 and 29 April 2016. The NH Disposal was completed on 30 June
2016. Details of the completion of the NH Disposal are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 16 June 2016 and 30 June 2016,
and the circular of the Company dated 31 May 2016 and note 31(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

On 25 November 2016, the Group and a purchaser who is a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules entered into the agreement pursuant to which the vendor has
agreed to sell to the purchaser the entire issued share capital of KHE at
the consideration of HK$5,000,000 in cash (the “Disposal of KHE"”). The
Disposal of KHE constituted a connected transaction of the Company. As
the relevant percentage ratios under the GEM Listing Rules did not exceed
25% and the total consideration was less than HK$10,000,000, the
Disposal of KHE is exempt from the circular and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Disposal of
KHE was completed on 19 December 2016. Details of the Disposal of KHE
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25 November
2016 and note 31(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EVENTS AFTER END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after end of reporting period are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Wai Kit
Deputy Chairman

14 March 2017

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

RZE—ARF+—AZ+HB  AEEHEEH
(REIERLETARUNEETRARBIMNBERZ
BEAL)INhE Bl BEAREMEA
HEFBEHENEBOBITRA  REARS
5,000,000 L ([ HEBEHRE]) - HEBEH
EBRARRZHAERS - fEAI ¥R LT RAY
T HEEE SRR HBiE25% RAERE
A 710,000,0008 7T - HEBEHE I ERE
BSTAIFER ETAR RSS20 18 T i B R AR Bt
HEZHRE - HEBEHBER=-Z—X~E+=A
THEZEK - HEBZHBEFBHIRARF
BSAE-ZT—"F+—AZ+RAZAERER
A BEHERMFE31() -

BEFFRERX

REARBEARSE AR IHEAERE - HEE
BREEXRFEMARRRHE AN ERF
MEAARBR L) ZEFRRRAZELTR
EHEXER(THRETRARAHEMRFET
i) e

BB

ABEBGHMEBHAERDAEERTRE
REER - FRBRRBEEGITMEBHMAE
[RARAARRZEE ZRBRBGNENHE B
MRFBAFAE LIEL -

BEMREE

5 MR FIE 2 HERN R A BTSRRI 34 -
REEES

EEY

R

—E—+HF=A+WmAH



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG | RHi# s

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) set out on pages 75 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BAZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter
FTEENSBE

Business combinations

ESH
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RERFMNBRHE  TERFETERLEY
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEREGFSENG E

Refer to Notes 2(d), 2(e) and 29(b) of the audited consolidated financial statements

AL E G AR S IAHT2(d) ~ 2(e)%29(b)

The Group acquired First Surplus Investments Ltd. and
its subsidiaries (the “FS Group”) during the year. The
acquired intangible assets of mobile games were valued
by using discounted cash flow methods. In applying
these methodologies, the Group made a number of key
assumptions and estimates relating to the intangible asset,
including growth and attrition rates, discount rates and
product life cycles. The identification and valuation of
acquired intangible assets requires judgement and is sensitive
to the assumptions used.

B EERNARFEE AU BEFirst Surplus Investments Ltd. B £ K
BAR(IFSER]) - FrEa FHEE EF & ERBFE AL
BHRSREZFETHE - ERAZS R - ESERERE
E(PRERERBEER  BEXREREMBHELET
FTEMBRMET - HAKENEREENZR REEEEH
B - 30 FT6E R A R ER ELGIURRE o
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Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

HAE T ERETEF SR (BT ER)

e assessing the independency and competency of the
external valuation specialist appointed by the Group to
calculate the fair value of the acquired intangible assets,
the non-cash consideration, the contingent consideration
payable and the redemption option;

Aty EREZREMINHEEERNAEMEBNETLE
ENAE  FFRERE  BAIARERBERENE
AVAEYL 2



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BUZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEENEHE

Business combinations (Continued)

6 (E)

TEFTBRE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERETSHENG R

Refer to Notes 2(d), 2(e) and 29(b) of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

FRHEFERE BRI E2(d) - 2(e)R29(b) (&)

Amounts not allocated to acquired assets, including acquired
intangible assets, are allocated to goodwill. Goodwill is not
amortised and affected the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income only on a future
impairment.

AESREZUBEE(BEMUBHNETLEE) NEBRR/ED
@Eiﬁ@ BEBESEE  YEERRRERTZERAE
sREMEERER

|}4

Further, the consideration for the business combination
includes non-cash consideration (promissory notes payable),
contingent consideration payable and an embedded
redemption option to sell back the equity interests to the
vendor should FS Group fails to meet the profit guarantee
as specified in the sales and purchase agreement. Such
contingent consideration payable and redemption option
are measured at fair value on initial recognition and as at
31 December 2016.

AN EREHNRECERFERERE(BNEALER)

ﬁji%fﬂﬁ&rlJ?%Eﬂx%ﬂ’\]ﬁfx)\fﬁﬁi‘éﬁ@%ﬁ%(fms%lik
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assessing the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used by management to the external experts by
challenging and corroborating the market data and
information from similar transactions and the process for
identifying intangible assets;

BB E R FE BRSNS BIE R E R A RSB
BEMNBIE  FEEEEEIIMNIEREAOEABIRNE
I M AERA I

assessing the robustness of the cash flow forecasts to
changes in assumptions, including sales growth beyond
the 2017 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and
discount rates in the model to assess the appropriateness
of the value of acquired intangible assets, goodwill,
contingent consideration payable and redemption option
recognised at the acquisition date;

AHERERERAHRRB(CNRRYE - BFENEE G
“ELFRFARANEERE  REERXRAA
T AFEAEBNETEE B8 BIRARENE
El RIS B IR EER DA E

reviewing the documentation surrounding the acquisition
to ensure the consideration paid and contingent
consideration payable has been recognised in accordance
with relevant accounting standards;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) TEFTBRE)
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
FTEEFEE RMEEETEENG *

Business combinations (Continued)

6 (F)

Refer to Notes 2(d), 2(e) and 29(b) of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
EREEEFE RS BFREZNZ2(d) ~ 2(e) 2 29(b) ()

e reviewing the agreements relating to the business

combination;

BIEA XA Bra e -

e examining the accounting entries for the business
combination prepared by management and determine
whether they were in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised)

“Business Combinations”; and

BEEREMRAENEBEHETLE  LREEEERN
BEEBMBHRERNEIREEIDIEBEH] R

e assessing the adequacy of the disclosures about the
business combination in accordance with HKFRS 3

(Revised).

REBEEMHERELEANEIR(RET)FEEBEEEH

MERBRERE °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BUZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEENEHE

Disposal of subsidiaries
HEME AR

TEFTBRE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERETSHENG R

Refer to Notes 2(c), 2(e) and 31(b) of the audited consolidated financial statements

AL FECAT B EIRE M E2(c) ~ 2(e)K31(b)

The Group disposed of Native Hope Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “NH Group”) during the year. The disposal
has been classified as a discontinued operation which has the
effect of reporting both the results of the business up to the
date of disposal and the profit/loss on disposal as a single
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. There
is a risk that revenue transactions, and the associated costs
completed just before and after the date of disposal were
incorrectly recorded, which in turns affected the accuracy of
profit/loss on disposal.

BEXEBERFALERZARAAREMNBAR(IAREE
B ZHECHOBRORIEKRERT  HUABEHEE
ANEBEEREGESBRRTE-—HANLERT,HE
EWREFE - WERFAREHE B HATER TR AR AR
AR AR RIBRTHENER - T ERHE R, BEN
RN o

Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:
HZMEL T ENEEFEE(HFPRE)

e reviewing the agreements relating to the transaction, re-
performing the calculation of profit/loss on disposal and
forming our own view on the accounting for the disposal;

BERRSAMNGE - ENFELENRT, BB - I
BHERMHEESDENERL

e checking the accuracy of the inclusion of costs relating
to the transaction within continuing operations,
discontinued operation and profit/loss on disposal, by
reference to the reasons for the business incurring such
costs; and

BRSEXBELAZSENANRE  BREERFBELE?
% EREKEEBREEEN,ERINALRRSHE B
PRASHOERENE ¢ T2

e assessing the recognition of the results of the disposed
operations for the appropriate period.

AHMEEEE PR HERLE R EHER
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BAZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEENEHE

TEFTBRE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERETSBHENTG R

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwiill

SEEENRENRERNEEAE

Refer to Notes 2(e), 2(k)(ii) and 16 of the audited consolidated financial statements

DEEEFCAE BRI E2(e) ~ 2(k)ii) 16

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s carrying amount
of goodwill was allocated to two cash-generating units
("CGUs"), namely, software platform and mobile game
business, which arose from the acquisition of KanHan
Technologies Limited and its subsidiaries (the "KH Group”)
and FS Group respectively.

R-B—XRNE+-A=+—0 BL£EEENEEEIE
EMERSEHBM([RESEREMN]) EHETFERFH
HEES  EHRRAKREESERNEARARRENBAR
([BFZEEE])RFS&EHE -

The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill is based
on the future business prospects and forecast business
performance of the two businesses.

BB R A B U RFHE I ER MR ER R KRB AR R FEH
ESE

Due to its inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are the basis
of the assessment of recoverability, this is one of the key
judgemental areas that our audit concentrated on. There is
the risk that the key assumptions, estimates and judgements
on which the calculations are based are inappropriate and
that goodwill is overstated as a result.

MR EAETRR R BE IR R IR £ & 77 H % K A R S REE 1
(ARHEAT IR EE) -t ARMBAAMBAINERH
B <Rl 2 — o MIRIRUL EEAET ENE BRR - (At kA
BTEE  MerasAmEnaAR -
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Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

HAEL T ERETEF R (BT ERA)

e evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by
the management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

AHAEEEMERNRRNIITE  FhHfREHEEERER
HBTREIR KBRS T70% ¢

e assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;

AERKBEEEARAENRSRERR  BREMGER
BT REERENE  YHBTERGEREZFRELT
KB HERERANEE

e assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2017
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of the goodwill; and

AHATRRAE BRRZBENRRYE  BERERPHN T+
FRAEFMBANFEELR  RAERERBEEE - AFHE
HENRAEREGEE ' &
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BUZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEENEHE

TEFTBRE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERETSHENG R

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

SERENRERNERBRNEEAE ()

Refer to Notes 2(e), 2(k)(ii) and 16 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

DELRELAETFER M E2(e) ~ 2(k)i1) 216 ()

e assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

AR ERRENAEREBRNBRREANKELLR
o HZEHEETHEIRESREERBREZENR

o

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets

BRENEENRENABRNEZHE

Refer to Notes 2(h), 2(k)(ii) and 15 of the audited consolidated financial statements

BRREE G BRI E2(h) ~ 2(k)i) 15

The Group has generated significant intangible assets of
mobile games from acquisitions, whose recoverability is
dependent on the ability of the businesses to which it relates
to generate sufficient future economic benefits. There is a
risk that this will not be the case which would result in an
impairment being required. The most significant risks of
impairment in this category relate to mobile games within the
Group balance of HK$66,768,000.

BEEEBRBTEETAEFREBNEBILEE - @K
HBURREMBBERBELTR TR REERSEMNEED Bt
HiF B EBREEERBNARRLERSENBRABIERE
BRNER - WWEAIPREANBERRER BERBE&EH
#366,768,00078 7T Z AR FHE B[

Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

BAEL D ENEAREFEE(HPeRE)

e evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by
the management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;

AHAEEEERANBRERETTE - KilE
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BAZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEENEHE

TEFTBRE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERETSBHENTG R

Key judgements relating to the impairment testing on intangible assets (Continued)

EEFLEENRENRBRENEZAE (&)

Refer to Notes 2(h), 2(k)(ii) and 15 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

FRHEFERE BRI E2(0) - 20k)(1) R 15(/&)

The intangible assets have been fully written off by
HK$1,097,000 in the year reflecting a level of decline in
revenue in software platform developed by KH Group. The
carrying amount of the mobile games, which has not been
impaired in the year, is dependent on the business being able
to generate revenue from the paying players and platform
owners for the games developed by FS Group.

BB ERFANIA1,097,0008 TEBEE - RHBEZEEE
R F 8 r sk F TR o RFRARBE R T H#
HERAEFBRRZEBLEBFSERMAENBERNETIR R
FamEEEL R -

Impairment reviews are performed by the Group when
there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be
supported. The impairment reviews are based on discounted
cash flow projections reflecting a number of assumptions
and estimates which require judgement and are inherently
uncertain.

= HIRREERESFHOBER SEFETRERRN &
BEMHDENMBERSRERE - KRR T ZRFEHEHNR
et - FEABBNTHEEE -
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assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;

TR EEEMRREORS R BTN a%ﬁ%m
BB R - LB KA REREEY

BN EREEINES

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2017
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates in the model to assess the appropriateness of the
carrying amount of the goodwill; and

AHATRAS R B ENBRYE  BENERPH T —+
FREMRANHEER  RPERERBRE - D
BENEEERDTEE &

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

?EEZ ERENASRERRNBRREMANKERLLR
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BUZBMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
FEENEHE

Valuation and existence of loan and interest receivables

ERERRAENHERETE

TEFTBRE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRERETSHENG R

Refer to Notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 2(n), 18, 19 and 28(a) of the audited consolidated financial statements

FRREFEREEMBEIREZMZ2000) - 2(m) ~ 2(n) ~ 18

The Group has stepped into the money lending business since
2015. The Group recognised loan and interest receivables
recorded initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the loans
receivable and interest receivables were HK$165,320,000
and HK$3,995,000 respectively.

=l

EEEE T AFREARCEREEY - BHRERK
AFBARARPERNTARFEL R ZEREREFE
YHEBEIRBERAER R_E—A"E+_A=+—8"
JE U B SR K FE Y I 2 A9 BR T 1B 9 B & 165,320,000 7% 7T &
3,995,000/8 7T ©

The impairment assessment on the loans receivable and
interest receivables require estimates and significant
judgements to be applied by the management such that
changes to key inputs to the estimates and/or the judgements
made can result, either on an individual loan or in aggregate,
in a material change to the valuation.

4 R B TR B R BT T B e IR R (I AT R
BRI - MRS HHE R KA E B8 ABRBH B
BB TS AR SR LB REALD -

19/28(a)

Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others:

HAEL T ERETEFBR(ET )

e obtaining and reviewing a sample of loan agreements and
agreeing to the principal amount, interest rates, maturity
dates and other information to the Group’s accounting
records;

ERREEERGHES - LAE
RS  FIE  BAREER

BEREMEtRET

e testing of controls designed and applied in the process of
approving and granting of loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and loan extension, if any;

B RIR BB AR P T RRAET I R A0 i TR
A RREmREFRERERER(NE)

e recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis;

B B R ERA B WA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) TEFTBRE)
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
FTEEFEE RMEEETEENG *

Valuation and existence of loan and interest receivables (Continued)

ERERRRSNEERFE(E)

Refer to Notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 2(n), 18, 19 and 28(a) of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)
BRI E R MBEREZNZ20k)0) ~ 2(m) ~ 2(n) ~ 18 ~ 1928(a)(#&)

Further, as the loan and interest receivables comprised of a e obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the

significant number of individual loan balances, there is a risk borrowers; and
that net assets could be misstated should the loans not exist.

EEBAERANERER : &
A BRERERRFEBERE[MABERKRK - HMEK

PEE - BEFAENEFERERRAMNRE e reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiring with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any

unsettled past-due balances.

EEHEMEE NS YHEEEANER TR KRE
&

BHRERE BREBEENREA -

OTHER INFORMATION Hisr

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other EZAFHMER c HMENBEFRARAT
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but BER - BETBREGRE W BREREMOZE

does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s R o
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover BPEGENBRENEATBIEEMLER -

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance i B I3 5t R R AR
conclusion thereon.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

HtEH ()

BRARMAESEMBRERNES - RANKE
ERE R EMER - WENBETEEEM
ENEDREAMBRAIEMESRSTAE
BONBEFERT—BMER - HATREUAE
1t 73 AR E A SR RRERA ©

WIRER MAETOTIE  RMRALSE
EREEEAEREL - BRMARSZ
B o RN E T E LIRS -

EERAEENGEMBERREA
AENEE

il
==

BERREEARERETESFMASRMZ
BFEMBRELENREE(RBED) B ER
TEAm BB BT AT R BN AR & B 75
R REEERRRESEAVBREMVEDN
NEPEE - WEH A M B RR I FERRKGE
HIRR MG B 2 BEAFRBRAL

EREEAVBMEE  EFFEEFNE &
SEBELERT  BREMER) BFEK
EEBNERMERRFBERLEEENEFR
R BRIFEFHS BEEEFRIMUIELER
o RERBETERRR I EEEE R E
BEMBRITEA -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

BRBMHETREMBRRNE
£ (&)

- HESERAFELLSERNEEMHE

s WIRBFAESHESZR EEE
ERFHEENEY BERERAEKLEMNE
NELBARENEBEEHRIBFEANEX
THEEEMN - HEMEEFEERNTEE
% BPAERBRENRE P HERS MR
RIEAFRBREREEAET L - KM%
EWRBEIRD - HABRELRRMANESR -
B AT DENBEZBENRE B HI-
?%?%E’\J%EW*F o AT+ REFEHHIER
AREEH BERBERILHELE -

-  FHERAMBHRERNEERY  BBRA
R(BEHE) ARGEEMBRRRER
R2IIRREER S RERE -

-  EEREAHE BSEEANERIERTHN
MBEMNERBEENEAER - LR
EUMBHRRERER - HMBE B&KHE
BRNIEE  BEERETT - RAYBEAE
RAEZIEME -

HPEREEREE(ET ) 8nEtE
ERREREAREREFER(BRUMES
AHER AR SRR ERNEMNEARRE)ETE
i o

HPERETRNELIENERBEBRENX
RIEERMER  YHARKSERATE

BB AR EMEMEIR - ARIER

BB g A (WER) SRR EETRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 March 2017

Tong Wai Hang
Practising certificate number P06231

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= A4
?vT 3%
For the year ended 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B

(RETTIIR)

#

NETZA=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
— NI —ET—HEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mtat FET FHET
(Re-prefented)
(B¥FZE5))
Continuing operations BEQEER
Revenue Wz 4 33,938 18,596
Cost of sales FHE AN (7,179) (6,627)
Gross profit EH 26,759 11,969
Other revenue Hith Wz 6 613 175
Changes in fair value of: NEES
— prepayment option embedded in —BETEARZEMTE 2
promissory note issued RATERE (107) =
— consideration payable for business —¥BEHEMNRE
combination (2,632) (1,345)
— contingent consideration assets for —¥BEHIAREBEE
business combination (1,393) -
Administrative expenses ITHF X (43,556) (31,309)
Research and development expenses R (8,460) (4,824)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERZ (3,305) (2,966)
Loss from operations e e (32,081) (28,300)
Finance costs B & KA 7(a) (405) (49)
Loss before taxation [S/JFX)EE*LE% = 7 (32,486) (28,349)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEREe (%) 8 428 (1,064)
Loss for the year from BEREERFEERIR
continuing operations (32,058) (29,413)
Discontinued operation E*%JJ:%“:"“%Z%
(Loss)/profit for the year from ERIEREXERCFE
discontinued operation (Eﬁ?ﬁ)/mﬂ 9 (8,237) 3,448
Loss for the year FEEE (40,295) (25,965)
Attributable to: L)(TA:':EE :
— owners of the Company S N/NEIEZZ SN (37,986) (20,131)
— non-controlling interests — IR RS (2,309) (5,834)
(40,295) (25,965)
HK cents HK cents
Al il
(Restated)
(=35)
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EER) BR
From continuing and discontinued BN DA R
operations
- Basic and diluted —ERKEE 12 (5.22) (4.84)
From continuing operations RIS E TS
— Basic and diluted —EARR#E 12 (4.29) (7.07)
From discontinued operation BRI e
— Basic and diluted —EARRE#E 12 (0.93) 2.23
The notes on pages 82 to 199 form part of the consolidated financial EYE 199 MM ARG A M ERE ZHEK
statements. 54 .
A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBaRHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—-Z— R F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFEITHIR)

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mat FHET FHET
Loss for the year FEEE (40,295) (25,965)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ HitFEE2E(FX) WA -
income for the year, net of nil tax BB EBE
Items that may be classified subsequently HigrJgeHfEE BRI 2IEE
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences: R ERE
— on translation of financial statements —BREINAEBR B RERZ
of foreign operations HMER (1,089) (6,951)
— released upon disposal of —EHEERIEEEEB 2
discontinued operation 54, R 2= R 31(e) 7,410 -
— released upon deregistration of —RBAfEEER—KME AR
a subsidiary HIRZE R 6 (46) =
Total comprehensive expense FEZHBXEHE
for the year (34,020) (32,916)
Attributable to: LU A FELS
— owners of the Company A /NCIEZZS DN (31,679) (26,478)
— non-controlling interests — FEPE A (2,341) (6,438)
(34,020) (32,916)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income Z<2A T EA AEEEE
attributable to owners of (BX) MABERE :
the Company arises from:
Continuing operations SIS E T (31,273) (29,427)
Discontinued operation BRI e (406) 2,949
(31,679) (26,478)
The notes on pages 82 to 199 form part of the consolidated financial FL2E199E MM I AR GEAS BRI ZHK
statements. B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R &

As at 31 December 2016 R-—ZE—X F+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFTTHIR)

2016 2015
—EB-RE T —AhF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k= FET FHT
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMRE 13 51,141 6,316
Properties under development BREPYE 14 - 2,804
Intangible assets B EE 15 67,370 13,065
Goodwill EES 16 109,669 90,510
Contingent consideration assets for EBEHKARBEE
business combination 29(b) 17,971 -
Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEYE  WENMK&RE
plant and equipment e 3,000 -
Loans receivable W E = 18 5,000 -
Deferred tax assets EERIEBEE 24(b) 4,793 =
258,944 112,695
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =g 44 37
Trade and other receivables JREE LT B 5 e L i JRE LS 3R 17 11,231 9,101
Loans receivable FEWE K 18 165,320 111,800
Interest receivables JE U F) B 19 3,995 1,382
Prepayment option embedded in BB ITA N ER AT 8
promissory note issued TR A8 R 29(b) 837 =
Current tax recoverable AU B BN ERR 1R 24(a) = 79
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 20 11,500 38,725
192,927 161,124
Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables JE - BR 3% R EL At FE A< 3% 21 3,269 2,481
Financial assistance from government BT B B IR B 22 114 325
Deferred income RIEUA 4,201 3,272
Consideration payable for business EBSHFEMNRE
combination 29(b) - 9,879
Current tax payable FEAT BN R 18 24(a) 89 1,174
7,673 17,131
Net current assets REBEEFEE 185,254 143,993
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABER 444,198 256,688

REFPREEEGRAA
F#H 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RE BRI 3R R

As at 31 December 2016 R-ZE— X E+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFETTHIR)

2016 2015
—E-AF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mat FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Financial assistance from government AT B BRI B 22 - 46
Interest-bearing borrowings {OPSREN 23 28,000 =
Deferred tax liabilities RERIERE 24(b) 11,131 2,707
Consideration payable for business ERAEFENRE
combination 29(b) 106,623 18,368
145,754 21,121
NET ASSETS EEFE 298,444 235,567
Capital and reserves ERR G
Share capital A& 7N 27(a) 36,288 20,160
Reserves B 239,971 210,789
Total equity attributable to owners AAREEARLEREE
of the Company 276,259 230,949
Non-controlling interests IR 22,185 4,618
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 298,444 235,567

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 14 March EEeN S —+F= A+ mAKEREET

2017 % o
Chan Wai Kit Wong Chi Yan
B {2 5% BEER
Director Director
EEa 0

The notes on pages 82 to 199 form part of the consolidated financial $82E 199 H MM T ARG A B ERE ¥ 4HK
statements. 25y o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GeRRESBX

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_-_Z—XRE+_-_A=1+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFITHIR)
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREAER
Non-
Share Share Capital Capital  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total interests Total
. gx gx o84 o . FER K
Bx  RBERE Rl Bi BE  ZHER @it Bi it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tikn T Tk Thn ThR T TR Tt T
(note (note (note (note
27(b)i) 2000) 2700 27(6)v)
(M (HsE (M (HsE
a00)  20)) 270 27(b)i)
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-A-H 12,000 142,285 2,427 16,699 (103) (56,396) 116,912 11,056 127,968
Loss for the year EEEE = = - - - o1y (0130) (5838)  (25965)
Exchange differences on translation  BESNEIEBERRR
of financial statements of foreign 7 RAZH
operations - - - - (6,347) - (6,347) (604) (6,951)
Total comprehensive expense for ~ FE2ERREE -
the year, net of nil tax BARERE - - - - (6347) (20131 (26479) (6438  (32916)
lssue of shares (note 27(a)i) TRiAE e (MEE27(ali) 8160 132,35 - - - - 140515 - 140515
8,160 132,355 - - (6,347) (20,131) 114,037 (6,438) 107,599
At 31 December 2015 W-8-I1%
t-R=t-A 20,160 274,640 2,427 16,699 (6,450) (76,527) 230,949 4,618 235,567
At 1 January 2016 WZE-xE-A-H 20,160 274,640 2,427 16,699 (6,450) (76,527) 230,949 4618 235,567
Loss for the year EEER = = = - - (3196 (37,986) (2309 (40,295)
Exchange differences: RAEE
- on translation of financial -HENEEBHBRR
statements of foreign operations - - - - (1,057) - (1,057) (32) (1,089)
-~ released upon disposal of -RHERAHEEEE
discontinued operation LRRERER - - - > 7410 = 7410 = 7410
-~ released upon deregistration -RBiEEh-Z0E
of a subsidiary KA AEEER = = = 4 (46) 7 (46) = (46)
Total comprehensive (expense))  EERE(ER)/
income for the year, net of nil tax WA EHNBERE = r - - 6,307 (37,986) (31,679) (2,341) (34,020)
Issue of shares (note 27(a)(vi) RGEF(HEIEM) 16,128 60,361 = & 2 N 76,989 - 76,989
Derecognition of non-controlling ~ REER A G4
interest upon disposal of SHBERRD
discontinued operation (note 31)  SEFERTRIE(F3E31) - - - - - - - (3,108) (3,108)
Non-controlling interest arising on R E £EAHHIFER
business combination (note 29(b)) 1 (Kt£29(b) - = = = = = = 23,016 23,016
16,128 60,861 - - 6,307 (37,986) 45,310 17,567 62,877
At 31 December 2016 RoB-RE
+=H=t+-H 36,288 335,501 2,427 16,699 (143) (114,513) 276,259 22,185 298,444
frRa M EmR 2K

statements.

The notes on pages 82 to 199 form part of the consolidated financial F82E199B MM T AL
b

B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"NF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFEITHIR)

80

2016 2015
— i —E—FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mtat FET FAET
(Re-presented)
(BEFE5))
Operating activities R EE
(Loss)/profit before taxation: S Ria (&), aA :
— From continuing operations —RFEREER (32,486) (28,349)
— From discontinued operation —BRIEREER (7.865) 1,621
Adjustments for: FHE
- Changes in fair value of prepayment — B BITAN ZIRMES Z
option embedded in promissory note RAVEFEATEE
issued 107 -
- Changes in fair value of consideration fii‘i/\{ﬁfﬁfﬂ Z
payable for business combination NEEEE 2,632 1,345
— Changes in fair value of contingent fii‘”\{ﬁ‘k%fﬂ BEZ
consideration assets for business N EEE
combination 1,393 -
— Interest income from money lending —HUEEBF B WA 4 (14,138) (1,382)
- Bank interest income —IRITFEHA (3) (10)
— Other loan interest income —HMERFEUWA = (184)
— Cumulative exchange gain reclassified — — 853l — Bt B A R1E %
from equity to profit or loss upon BmBENoBEER Y
deregistration of a subsidiary 2 ETHME W a5 6 (46) =
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — I EME A R 6 (545) =
- Finance costs — AR 7(a) 405 49
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B S 2,591 7,717
- Depreciation of property, —WE  BEREEINE
plant and equipment 3,312 756
- Impairment of goodwill —HERE 7(c) 1,430 -
— Impairment of intangible assets —EREERE - 9,299
— Impairment of property, plant and —ME - BEERRERE
equipment 7(c) - 214
— Loss on disposal of —BEER IS ETEEE
discontinued operation 9 3,867 -
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEYME  BEREXEEE
plant and equipment 7(c) 2,225 258
— Write-off of intangible assets —MEEREE 7(c) 1,097 3,786
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, — &R &iB)2 & %58
net 67 (388)
Operating loss before working EESSEHA 2 KEEFR
capital changes (35,957) (5,268)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEm), RS (7) 1
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JFEE L2 B 5 e L At B SRR
other receivables () R (8,134) 731
Increase in loans receivable JE UG B 138 (58,520) (111,800)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and 7 {<F BR X % EL b B A5 3R
other payables (BA),/ % (1,248) 558
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income EIEYAIE I, G 980 (1,298)
Net cash used in operation BEMARS T (102,886) (117,076)
Interest received from money lending Eﬁ(ﬁ%fxﬁﬁ S A BHA 11,525 =
Income tax paid: =N A"R
- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid —BNES 7‘F‘J1—ﬂ‘ﬁ = (244)
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid —BERHREREMREH (509) (209)
Net cash used in operating activities & EBHFIABRL RS (91,870) (117,529)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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AN =
REREMRER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z—"NF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAFITHIR)
2016 2015
—RE —T—H0F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat FTHET FHET
(Re-presented)
(B¥FZE5)
Investing activities REED
Interest received [mAlIP=) 3 194
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMREMEHIE
plant and equipment 2,300 -
Payment for purchase of property, BEME  BERSEZ(NHE
plant and equipment (3,453) (5,685)
Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEME  BEERHFEE e
plant and equipment (3,000) -
Additions to properties under development Z%E ¥ 7 140 = (2,804)
Expenditure on projects development THE MBS (24) (1,719)
New loans to third parties ETE=FTRER - (6,038)
Repayment of loans from third parties BiEE=AMER = 11,300
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEHBLRZBELRASE
subsidiaries 31 52,465 -
Net cash outflow from asset acquisition WEEE RS R F5 30 (26,672)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEEHTE AR 2R R F5E
subsidiaries 29(b) (39,236) -
Net cash used in investing activities  REZFEBFARSTFE (17,617) (4,752)
Financing activities mEES
Interest paid ERFLE (405) (49)
Proceeds from issue of shares ZATIRAD P15 3RIE 27(a) 76,989 140,515
Repayment of financial assistance EEBUT I BURE
from government (257) (312)
New loans from a third party REH—BE=FRIFER 28,000 3,000
Repayment of loans to a third party BET—RE=ZFNER (22,000) (3,000)
Net cash generated from REEEMESRE TN
financing activities 82,327 140,154
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERALEEWRED)
and cash equivalents 120 % HE (27.160) 17,873
Cash and cash equivalents R—AR—BZzRERAEEEY
at 1 January 38,725 2l 139
Effect of foreign exchange EXSHZE
rate changes (65) (287)
Cash and cash equivalents Rt-A=+—-HZHER
at 31 December ReEEY 20 11,500 38,725
The notes on pages 82 to 199 form part of the consolidated financial ES2E199E MM T ARG A MG RE 7 HK
statements. 25 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company has its registered office at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands. On 5 January 2017, the principal place of
business of the Company was changed from 22nd Floor, Hua Fu
Commercial Building, 111 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong to 21st
Floor, Henan Building, 90 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

NEEHR

BEFREEERAR([ART])BRH
ERETMA I 2 EREERAF - HR
NEBEBEXZMBR AR (B
BIZER([AIZEMR]) £ - AR Az
#HE B 2 Hoik 2 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands * R =F
—tF—ARB ARRIZEEEEE
REBEEREANIFESHEANE22
B AR B EFHEBIOR BB RNE2
o

RABBIREERAT - ENERRIZE
DS E R FESS ©

BE-_Z—RFt+-_A=+—BI-5E&
BB RRBEARARN A RENB AR (&
A IAEE]) -

BREEFTHAEIN - RAE ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁ%?%ﬁ
((:F/;FSEJ)E#& /%ﬁ( ;Pffﬂ )/Eﬁ$
ZREEMRAER 2 2REE -

TESHEE

(a) BHIEH
HEGEVBERREREAETES
A ag([EREEMAE])R
MM EERBEABMEREER
(IEAMBREER]) (BEMRA
EREAMBHRERED - FEEE
ER(TER E.ﬁ/iﬁlu)& T2
) BEEERMANETRA R
BFERQ Tﬂﬂﬁ‘lZJ&&%%ﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁ”ﬁ%"
HER M B MR B TH A
ERFES EHAAN(TEIZRR LR
AIDRE 2 EREERX -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

- Contingent consideration assets or liabilities arising
from a business combination (see note 2(d)); and

- Derivative financial instruments (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

2

TESHEE(E)

(a)

(b)

EHIEHE)
BEGHMAGERMETERE
AR B AR AN S A IR BT R
REFET REETEAMBRESE
Al - ME3RHEABE LEAERNE
RER » BAKERRNZFERE
MHHmENASH BRI LE—EE
AHRA M EBER G BRE
BEER

AEENEEGFBERBURINT ©

ARG EUMBRREE

REGEVBERRZAEEERE
SERARELE - U TEERBER
THleFRERLZ A FEZT

- EBAHARAREEEXA
BE(RME2(d) « &

- {TEEmIARHE2) -

RENEBERBREENNES
MBHER  TEEEREELHE
et MR - MULF M - fAat R
BREFESHBRORA - LR
BE  BfE WARRAXHZHRS
B ool SR RIBBERR TV IABE
KBREASERERBRL NBEEEN
ZEEMEARRER  BRGERS
B A% T AR A 1t L At 2R B RS AN Y
BENE EREEE D H @ £
it o BERERAIEBRINZE AR -

REFPREEEGRAA
F#H 2016

83



84

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(c)

financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12, Income taxes, and HKAS 19, Employee benefits,
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to the
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-based
payment awards are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2, Share-based payment; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations, are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's
previously held interest in the acquire; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date.

2

TESHEE(E)

(d)

RHE0H(R)
FHBEATRENEZE :

iy FEERENIFERKK
BOmMERFEREZSR
R AN 62 ) S B 0 4R KRR 0T B
FriEmm A FERAM ; H

(i) WEBHIRUEBRRAEN
AHNEERABNHRFF
& o

(i) () - RIZRBIRRIEEA
R AEERBEYS -

e RRR M 25 1 2 B 4 0 T o S
LU C DL E V2
ZAFEIE © HREERTFE)
2R -

HARBREBEHTER ZKE
BREIARBLUAEEZEES
B AIRAREDREKBRAHZ
RNVERFE  LRBELS—EHEKS
HEBRZHMORE - SERIEFE
HRARZKAREBEZAFEE

Ty AR - WHEEELAES
- EHRAZSNENHEE
BRERKEBEMEFELEMH IR
BZRINERMERZHE - B
STEHNEBEKER MR TSHB8
*Eo

REFPREEEGRAA
F#H 2016

87



88

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
arising from a business combination for which the acquisition
date is before 1 July 2014 and that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement, or HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration arising from a business
combination for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 July 2014 and that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value, with
the corresponding changes in fair value being recognised in
profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see note 2(d)) less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or
hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(k)(iD)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings 12 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computers and other equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Properties under development

(i)

Properties under development are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs including cost of land use
right, construction costs, professional fees and other direct
development expenditure that are directly attributable to the
construction or acquisition of the property are capitalised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
2(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date when they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Development costs 3 years
Technical know-how 5 years
Programming codes 5 years
Online platforms 5 years
Software systems 5 years
Mobile games 3 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to
the borrower a concession that the lender would
not otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the debtor or
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor or borrower; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the portfolio,
including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio; and

(2) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables, loans
receivable and interest receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against these financial assets directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(i)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measureable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0

(m)

Inventories
Inventories, which represent merchandises for resale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note 2(k)

().
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted
to borrowers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of interest receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note

2(k)(D)).

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(k)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Trade and other payables

(r)

(s)

(t)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Financial assistance from government

The Innovation and Technology Fund (“ITF”) of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region government has provided
financial assistance to the Group to assist in a specific product
development. The funding is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable to ITF when revenue is generated from the specific
product. The amount repaid, if any, will be in stages and
calculated with reference to the revenue generated and
received.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents contractual billings/amount due
in excess of recognised revenue resulting from services yet
to be rendered or in respect of the unexpired terms of the
relevant contracts/arrangements, or for which the applicable
revenue recognition criteria are not yet satisfied. Revenue
is recognised and deferred income is released to profit or
loss when the relevant services are rendered or on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the relevant contracts/
arrangements, or when the applicable revenue recognition
criteria are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Employee benefits

(v)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Income tax (Continued)
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(w)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2016

2 FESTEHE(E)

(w) ERHMBEREF  BERIA
8EE)

(ii)

RERIARE
ABER-—FHUBAEE
IADEHR AR EE
- MEERSEETLS
BUS B FIZ R B AR A
SiEE MANEUASET
A H i A E R R
HEEnBEEREX - Al
RIS BB AR R AR
R -

i 1S KT B 7 M AL A A
& AHERSBEIEAE
ety - MIAMEEHRE
REARBE  BRIFEENZE
T FTREMERRIR o B AT AR
ZRERGFEENH A
ZHEARAREMH 2 HREAEHE
E)MBBERIAAE - BRIE
REOBRERR 2 AT BE AR DK o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Provision of software platform includes:

M

3)

4)

Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and titles has
been passed, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

Software maintenance service income received or
receivable from customers when the maintenance
service contracts are entered into, which is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the maintenance service contract;

Software rental and subscription income from
software application and website development,
which are recognised when the relevant services
are rendered; and

Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development
deriving from providing software application
and electronic learning platform to customers,
which is recognised when services are rendered.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in
respect of the deferred income over the term of
the service contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. When a loan and
interest receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

(iii)  Income from mobile gaming includes:

(1) Income from online game platform owners, which
is recognised on net basis from platform owners
when the paying players purchase the game
credits for the mobile games after deducting pre-
determined commissions.

(2) Service income from the provision of mobile
games development and related services are
recognised when the services are rendered.

(3) Revenue of licensing income is recognised in
accordance with the terms of agreements.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on the acquisition of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantive period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(aa) Discontinued operation (Continued)
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.

(ab) Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ab) Related parties (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1

2)

(5

(8)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ac) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 38).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

4 REVENUE 4 Wi
Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services supplied WS BREFHFEeHETFTREENE
to customers from the provision of software platform, interest m M ARISHEEBE  MEEBEFE
income earned from the money lending business and income WA KRB G TF IR AT ¢

generated from mobile games development, as follows:

2016 2015
—E-AE —ZT—FRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Continuing operations BESEER
Provision of software platform REHEFES 19,689 17,214
Interest income from money lending A& S P LW A 14,138 1,382
Mobile gaming income FHBEEIA 111 =
33,938 18,596
5 SEGMENT REPORTING 5 ZEE|E
The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports REBIREE & BREARESIERE
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, which are used to LEHREETHEEN -
make strategic decisions.
The Group has three (2015: two) reportable segments. The AEBAE=@(ZZ—RHF : M@E) AR
segments are managed separately as each business offers different ENEc RS EBRETRER &R
products and services and requires different business strategies. % TR ERRBEERER - o3 E
No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision- RIEER o FER EZKEIE’JT#E%%-D‘EHT :
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments FEEERARENEEMBRINEEDE
of the Group. The following summary describes the operations in BE  AKBEFZUMED B2 EHB a0
each of the Group’s reportable segments: R

REFPREEEGRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations

Software platform — developing and marketing of patented
server based technology and the provision of communications
software platform and software related services.

Money lending — provision of money lending business through
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which is a money
lender licensed in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Mobile gaming — game publishing, development of mobile
game, application, related intellectual property and platform,
and provision of related solutions.

Discontinued operation

Software platform — the custom-made software development
services including urban grid management system, internet
marketing of online peer-to-peer (“P2P") lending system and
other projects.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTER)
5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 2IikE(E)
(a) Business segment (a) ¥¥oE
2016
ZE-RE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
24
BESEEYR REXK
Software Money Mobile Software
platform lending gaming platform Total
BHELA HE FRER gHya @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TER

Revenue from external customers  RESNRZ P 7 e 19,689 14,138 m 521 34,459
Reportable segment (loss)/profit — A3RE D E(EE)/

el (4,782) 617 (1,944) (8,237) (14,346)
Amortisation of intangible assets B/ A& 2,006 - - 585 2,591
Depreciation of property, n% BERSERE

plant and equipment 326 42 21 29 418

Write-off of intangible assets WHEVEE 1,097 - - - 1,097
Income tax (credit)/expense FER(EE), /X (150) 59 (337) 372 (56)
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 7,527 183,068 72,766 - 263,361
Additions to non-current assets  FEEEIEEEM 169 1,306 34 1" 1,520
Reportable segment liabilities REHHaE (4,483) (475) (12,877) - (17,835)

BRETEEEBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTER)
5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 2IikE(E)
(a) Business segment (Continued) (a) =B I (E)
2015
—E-1E
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRI
HEREEY BEEHK
Software Money Mobile Software
platform lending gaming platform Total
"HFa W& FHRE gTEa @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TET TAT FAT
Revenue from external customers  REINREE 7 Wiz 17,214 1,382 = 22,672 41,268
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A& D (EE),/
el (9,775) 151 = 3,448 (6,176)
Amortisation of intangible assets  EFEEZE 2,996 - - 4,721 7,717
Depreciation of property, n% - BERSERE
plant and equipment 368 - - 60 428
Impairment of intangible assets B AERE 1,299 - - 8,000 9,299
Write-off of intangible assets MiEEVEE 3,786 - - - 3,786
Income tax expense/(credit) FigwiHEY/(E8) 1,034 30 - (1,827) (763)
Reportable segment assets RENHEE 12,070 113,382 - 30,399 155,851
Additions to non-current assets  IEREEEEM 1,956 - - 2,818 4,774
Reportable segment liabilities HRELHEE (4,425) (110) = (4,291) (8,826)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

5

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 ¥R (E)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHRESEWE - 82 - BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities REEZHE
2016 2015
—E-RE ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Revenue from continuing operations SEZE %7~ %
Reportable segment revenue AR E D MUk R 34,459 41,268
Segment revenue from discontinued ERIERE XD E =S
operation (521) (22,672)
33,938 18,596
Loss for the year FEEBR
Reportable segment loss from A EDBARFELE
continuing operations ETEEE (6,109) (9,624)
Segment (loss)/profit from discontinued — B AR IFRE LT 7 5P
operation (E518) % F) (8.237) 3,448
Unallocated corporate income and ROBEERAR
expenses X (25,949) (19,789)
(40,295) (25,965)
Total assets EEAE
Reportable segment assets from A EDMARELEED
continuing operations ZEE 263,361 125,452
Segment assets from discontinued REERIEREERZ
operation DEPEE - 30,399
Unallocated corporate assets ANBETEELE 188,510 117,968
451,871 273,819
Total liabilities EEAE
Reportable segment liabilities from AR D BRI B AL X5
continuing operations ZBfE 17,835 4,535
Segment liabilities from discontinued KEERIEREERZ
operation DEERE = 4,291
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBECEBRE 135,592 29,426
153,427 38,252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

5

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

()

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly
include changes in fair value of consideration payable and
contingent consideration assets for business combination,
staff costs and legal and professional fees of head office. The
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities mainly include
goodwill, property, plant and equipment, deposits and
prepayments, deposits paid for purchase of property, plant
and equipment, contingent consideration assets for business
combination, consideration payable for business combination
and interest-bearing borrowings. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of
performance assessment and resource allocation.

Geographical information and major customers
The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
properties under development, intangible assets and
goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the assets, in case of property, plant
and equipment and properties under development, and the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in case
of intangible assets and goodwill.

5

7 ERE ()

(b) AIHmED MBS - B - BE

(c)

REEZHKR(E)

ADECEWRARAXTEBRE
BEHENREAFEZH RN
REEE BRFREIXNARE
MEBROERENERER - ROl
TEEERBBAIEZEERE
M BB LR R RIANK
B BEVE BERREEKS
NiES  EBaHARKEEE -
EBAFRNRERMEMER - 1t
DR RBAFEREROEAEEE
BARAREZERTA -

HWEERREEREF
TREINEBOAKERBINE
Pz¥aERiNVAEEZYE - BE
kiR BRPYE  BREER
BE((EEFRBEE]) MELER
ZEM - HWEFRBEEMELER
REEERMEME CAME - BE
BEMERTYEMS)  ARE
BREMR(AEBTLEERBEM

Bk P

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREF 2 W& EEFRBDEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-RE —T-1F “B-AE b S5 517
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THEL THET THT
Hong Kong B 33,929 18,428 223,320 31,640
Mainland China R B i 530 22,840 8 81,055
34,459 41,268 223,328 112,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 5 ¥R (E)
() Geographical information and major customers () HEENRFEEF (&)

(Continued)
Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for

KBEEXEFPHWES (S BHHEK

10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: #@10%k A _E)EFIT -

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Customer A BEA N/ARER* 7,500
Customer B =FB N/ATE A 6,180
Customer C =FC 3,511 N/A 33 A *
# The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the # R RIS ME B AR 10% 3 | o
total revenue.
6 OTHER REVENUE 6 Huazx
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations BEKEEL
Bank interest income H|ITFEBA = 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 31) HEM B A WS (H5E31) 545 =
Other loan interest income H A B R A = 160
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified from BT —=xMBARE
equity to profit or loss upon deregistration RIEREHDBERERZ
of a subsidiary ZE Rl 46 -
Sundry income IR A 22 14
613 175

REFPREEEGRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7 BREAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: MRIEAIEED IR T 718 -
(a) Finance costs: (a) BB :
2016 2015
ZEB-REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Continuing operations BREREER
Interest expense on financial liabilities not I IFIR A FEFEW T AEBZF
at fair value through profit or loss ZeRmBaBEZMNERX
— Interest on loans from a third party —HE=ZFERZFE = 49
— Interest on borrowings —EBRAE 405 -
405 49
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration (b) EIRS(BRESME (M
(note 10)): 10)) :
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations BEKEER
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHMETR 24,054 18,571
Contributions to defined contribution [EE H AR IR 2 3R
retirement plan 1,211 851
25,265 19,422

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Iy Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7

(c) Other items:

BRBLATE 18 (4])

(c) HAIER :

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Continuing operations BEKEER
Auditor’s remuneration IZEREN BN & 690 562
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEBE 2,006 2,996
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREETE
plant and equipment 3,283 696
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment [E518 2,225 258
Impairment losses on BB E 1S
— goodwill — g 1,430 -
— intangible assets —mEEE = 1,299
— property, plant and equipment —W% - BB REHE = 214
Operating lease charges: BEBLZHE -
minimum lease payments BRME L FIA
— property rentals —MERS 4,865 1,690
Write-off of intangible assets MWiHER B E 1,097 3,786

REFPREEEGRAA
F#H 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

8 INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING

8 KEKEXBHEBAED

OPERATIONS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEBBZRZBERE
profit or loss represents:
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong BERSiIE — BB
Provision for the year REFERE 59 201
Over-provision in respect of prior years AT EEBEEE (26) =
33 201
Deferred tax (credit)/expense EERIE (K R) Bx
(note 24(b)) (HfzE24(b))
Origination and reversal of EENEDEREERE
temporary differences (461) (57)
Write-down of deferred tax assets WIS EEE A 2 BIER TS
arising from tax losses EE - 920
(461) 863
Actual tax (credit)/expense ERFEGER) X (428) 1,064

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated
at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits

for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman lIslands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the respective tax jurisdictions.

No provision for Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") has been made for 2016 as the
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC have estimated tax losses

for the year (2015: HK$Nil).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

8 INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING

8 FHEAKEXBHEBRENR

OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) (%)
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense (b) BK(ER) BXHESHTER
and accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BIBEASHRYEER
2016 2015
—E—xF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation from continuing BB EEE BT AEE
operations (32,486) (28,349)
Notional tax credit on loss before taxation, KFiRIE BN AETRIEE R -
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate 1% 51| 5t & &8 R85 &
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 16.5%(—ZF—HF : 16.5%) (5,360) (4,677)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR R 2 g & 1,540 107
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBWAZRIGTE (2) (51)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not B AR FER AR B AT IS B 18 2
recognised M2 2,778 4,600
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not &M@ RERIHIEEIE Y
recognised previously M2 (46) -
Tax effect of temporary differences not BARERREEZRE Y
recognised M E 255 42
Over-provision in respect of prior years LT FERERE (26) -
Write-down of deferred tax assets WEHIRER A& = = 920
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries /& /A T E# R 7 748 433 123
Actual tax (credit)/expense EEREHE(ER) FX (428) 1,064

REFPREEEGRAA
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(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 9

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 9 March 2016, the Company entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire interest in Native

Hope Limited and its subsidiaries (together, “NH Group”), which is

principally engaged in the provision of software platform including
urban grid management system, internet marketing and other
projects. The disposal was completed on 30 June 2016, on which
date control of the operations passed to the acquirer. Details of the
assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the loss on

disposal, are disclosed in note 31.

The results and cash flows from the discontinued operation
included in the (loss)/profit for the period/year are set out below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

ERLEEEXRZ2FE(E
8), R

—E-XEZANA  ARAFTLEMBHE
ERLERATREMBAT (RBAA
PEE ) AR B IREBE RS - %
PEEIERFRERUTL - RERD
BIRICETR  OBHBEMRAMER - %
BHEERE-AEARA=TRRMR -
RA - @R B ERES - 5
BHEEERABRIERSHERAY
STETEZ BB M3 -

ERIEREXHRERRESREGHAR
B FE(EBR),JEF)&IIT

1.1.2016 to 1.1.2015 to
30.6.2016 31.12.2015
—E-XEF —E-NF
—BA—R=E —H—H=®
ZEB-XRF —E—RF
~A=tA +-A=+—AH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Loss)/profit for the period/year from B, FECKRIEEEEK
discontinued operation (F518), %7
Revenue Uz 521 22,672
Other revenue H b Yz 8 83
Expenses 53 (4,527) (21,134)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BE A (ER), & (3,998) 1,621
Income tax (expense)/credit Frssi () R (372) 1,827
(Loss)/profit from operating activities, KEER) (BB IR Fl
net of tax KR TBIE (4,370) 3,448
Loss on disposal of discontinued operation, HED R IEEEEKEEE -
net of nil tax (note 31) R ZRIE (FE31) (3.867) =
(Loss)/profit for the period/year from HARS,FEE RIS T
discontinued operation (E518) % F) (8,237) 3,448

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

9 (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 9 BERUEKEXBZFE(H
DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) E)/ﬁiﬁﬂ(ﬁﬁ)
1.1.2016 to 1.1.2015 to
30.6.2016 31.12.2015
—E—REF —E-NF
—A—R=E —H—H=
—E-AE —T—hF
ARA=+H +=-H=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Attributable to: AR AT e :
— owners of the Company —ARBHEEA (6,759) 9,282
— non-controlling interests — IR (1,478) (5,834)
(8,237) 3,448

Cash flows from discontinued operation ERIEREEBRERE

Operating activities K TEE) (8,701) 15,728
Investing activities KEEE (10) (1,522)
Financing activities BEEE = =
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on EXEHHRERREE

cash and cash equivalents BYzE (44) (266)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow for the period/year B EEERe (RH),
AR (8,755) 13,940

BRETEEEBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTYR)

10 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 10 EEM <
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of BEBERAMEAIE383(1)E ~ AFI(K
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies BEZNmER)HYE25 REIZER EH
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation HAFFRBEZESMEWT -

and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance Retirement
Directors' fees and benefitsinkind ~ Discretionary bonuses  scheme contributions Total
Ezhe §¢  RRRENAE ]2 RARGTRIR Eh

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
S2AF | CT-hE (SR CF-RF | SSaF T-RF | S2AF | CT-hF SRk CE-1f
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS§'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000
Térn TEn TEr TR TEr TRl TEr  TEi TRn  TER

Present directors g
Executive directors YTEZ
Chan Wai Kit RiEk - = 1,080 742 52 100 18 15 1,150 857
Hung Tat Chi, Alan (note 1) HER () - - 299 - - - 15 - 314 -
Mui Yuk Wah (note 2) EEEE)) - - 512 - - - 16 - 528 -
Wong Chi Yan LR - - 965 575 12 81 18 1 1,095 667

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES

Fok Kin Fung, Eric (note 3) ERE(I:3) 100 = = = = = = = 100 =
Lee Nim Wai (note 4) AR 95 - - - - - - - 95 =
Leung Man Chun (note 5) 23k (H35) 102 = - = - = - - 102 -
Former directors fikis £

Executive directors #7E%

Guo Kegin (note ) $78(Hto) - - 206 26 - 3 4 4 0 253
Lam Kit Yan (note 7) WE2B(MT) - = 87 3 - A - - 87 _
Mo Wai Ming, Lawrence (note 8) WEm(Hizs) = - - 370 - - - 14 - 384
Wen Jialong (note 9) BFE(H39) - = = 03 = 100 = 7 = 530
Zhang Weijie (note 10) REHE(0) - - 29 25 - 25 4 4 233 281
Zhang Xiaozheng (note 11) FME(FE1) - - - 47 - - - - - 47
Non-executive directors FHTES

Chan Tik Yuen (note 12) B (Mi&E12) - - = Iy o - - - - 4
Lan Hong Tsung, David (note 13) ERE(ME3) - - - 353 - - - - - 353
Xu Zhigang (note 14) BERIME14) - - - 66 - - - - - 66

Independent non-executive directors B TEES

Chui Kwong Kau (note 15) ERR(HzH15) 25 120 - - - - - - 25 120
Chui Chi Yun, Robert (note 16) EEC(fitH16) Al 78 = - - i - _ 2 78
Chan Wai Fat (note 17) BER(MwE7) - 4 = - - . - - : )
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (note 18) SEIE(fit18) = 94 - . - = - E _ 9%
Lam Wing Tai (note 19) MR (HE9) 6 25 _ _ _ p _ _ § 25
Zeng Shiquan (note 20) BE5(H20) 12 - = . - _ . y 12 -

361 359 3,378 3,09% 164 329 75 55 3,978 3839

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

Appointed on 2 March 2016

2. Appointed on 23 February 2016

3. Appointed on 2 March 2016

4. Appointed on 16 March 2016

5. Appointed on 23 February 2016

6. Appointed on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016

7. Appointed on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016
8. Resigned on 8 October 2015

9. Resigned on 7 May 2015

10.  Appointed on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 9 March 2016
11.  Appointed on 27 May 2015 and resigned on 16 October 2015

12. Retired on 7 May 2015

13.  Appointed on 6 March 2015 and resigned on 8 October 2015

14. Resigned on 6 March 2015

15.  Resigned on 16 March 2016

16.  Appointed on 7 May 2015 and resigned on 2 March 2016

17. Retired on 7 May 2015

18.  Resigned on 13 October 2015

19.  Appointed on 16 October 2015 and resigned on 18 January 2016
20.  Appointed on 18 January 2016 and resigned on 23 February 2016

No directors waived any emoluments during the year (2015:

HK$NIl).

10 EEM<(H)

BEEE

20.

RZBE-—R"E=A-BEZE
R-B-REF_A-_tT=REZHE
R-ZF-RNF=ZA_REZRE
RZBE-—RE=ZR+EEEE
R-B-—RFEF_A-_T=HEZE

RZB-—AFTHA+RNAERME ER=
Z-REZRANEEME

W%

RZE—NFE—A+TNBEZE  TR=
—RNEZAZ+=BEE

RZT—RAF+ANBEE
R-E—AFHALHET

R-Z-AF+ATRNBERE ER=
E-RNEZRANBEIE

W=F—HERAZTHABEE R
TRt ATARRE

RZZE-—RAFAALRRE

RZB-—RAF=ARBAEEME IN_-F
—RF+ANBERE

RZZ—RAE=ARNBHE

Nz

H

NEZATRBEEE

N EFERAEHEZE IN=-F

=&

—RE-AZHEHT
R-T—AFRALARE
RZT—AF+A+=HEF

E/\\ T-HAF+A+NBERMT TR=
—RNEFE-ATN\HEHE

REFPREEEGRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 BRSHMA L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2015: REAEERhEZZRTMALTES - =5
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10. (ZE—RF: ZR)ESz2MeFER
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining two MIEE10HE - 8 TME(ZE—RF : W
(2015: two) individuals are as follows: BVER AT Z IS @EIT -
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMEME 1,119 852
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHEER 29 36
1,148 888
The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: two) individuals with MTIME(ZE—0F : ME)RaFMz
the highest emoluments are within the following band: BAMALZBENFUATEHE :
2016 2015
—E—RF ZE—hF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH BB AZ
HK$Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 ZAITE 1,000,000 7T 2 2

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

s Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

(b)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation is based on the loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$37,986,000 (2015: HK$20,131,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
728,200,607 (2015(restated): 415,733,469) in issue
during the year.

From continuing operations

The calculation is based on loss for the year from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$31,227,000 (2015: HK$29,413,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 728,200,607 (2015(restated): 415,733,469) in issue
during the year.

From discontinued operation

The calculation is based on loss for the year from
the discontinued operation attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$6,759,000 (2015: profit of
HK$9,282,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 728,200,607 (2015(restated):
415,733,469) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for 2015

above has been adjusted retrospectively for the share

consolidation and open offer which were completed on 22
February 2016 and 17 May 2016 respectively (see notes 27(a)
(iv) and 27(a)(vi)).

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 is the same as the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in issue.

12 BR(EE) BF

(a)

(b)

BREX(EE) BF

(i) KEFERBARIUILEE
Vi
FREABBEBDIERAAR
AEBEABREFTFEEIE
37,986,000 T (= — A
120,131,000/ 7T) M FERX
BETEBR 2 INETIHEH
728,200,607 R (=T — A F
(E%) : 415,733,4690% ) 5t

st
B o
>t

(i) KEFFELEER
FRERNBEDNIEAR A E
EABLBEREEB 2T
[EE51831,227,0008 L (=&
— A £ : 29,413,000 7T )
MEARNBBETERK Z NE
15 #728,200,607 % (==
—RF(F) : 415,733,469
fRIETE -

(i) HEEAEIEAREET
ERERNBEBIIEAR A
BABBERIEEEER 2
FJZE5186,759,0008 7T (=
T —FHF : @ 519,282,000
BIL)RFRNEHITEBER
Z DN #E F 15 728,200,607
B(ZZE—AF(F5) :
415,733,4690% )5t & -

i =T —AFaEmRAR G 2N
BIEHHERR=_ZE—-~F_A
T+ ZARZE=-R"FRATLtH
BN & R AREE (R
27(a)(iv) K227 @) (i) 1EE B % -

SREE(BER) BR
HAETAEE#HEIERHTER
e BE-Z—XFR=F—H
F+A=Z+T—HIEFENER
BE(BR) BNESRER(E
18),/BAMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13 Y% - BERRE

Computers
Land and Leasehold Furniture and other Motor
buildings improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
ERR
THREF HENEEE HAREE At RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin TR THER TEx TiEn
Cost BA
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%—-A-H - 379 226 1,144 698 2,447
Additions NE - 5 12 273 5,395 5,685
Disposals He = (272) (47) = = (319)
Transfers #Ez = (61) 56 5 = =
Exchange adjustments INEFE - - - 7 - (7)
At 31 December 2015and ~ R-Z—HF+-A=1+—H
1 January 2016 k=B-"E-A-H - 51 247 1,415 6,093 7,806
Additions NE 49,434 2,503 450 250 250 52,937
Additions through business ~ BBZKAHNFE
combination (note 29) (M3E29) = 4 29 76 S 147
Disposals HE - = (32) (169) (4,780) (4,981)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBAR = (15) (78) (218) (558) (869)
Exchange adjustments INEFE - - ) (12) - (14)
At 31 December 2016 WZE-—A"E+-A=t-H 49,484 2,581 614 1,342 1,005 55,026
Accumulated depreciation 3t TERFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-R%-A—-H - 38 52 457 35 582
Charge for the year REEAR - 53 70 393 240 756
Eliminated on disposals R ER L = (56) (5) = = (61)
Impairment loss HEER - - - - 214 214
Exchange adjustments SNEZE - - - (1 = (1
At31 December 2015and ~ R=Z—RF+-F=1—H
1 January 2016 k=Z-~%—F—H - 35 17 849 489 1,490
Charge for the year AEEMR 2,405 79 70 358 400 3,312
Eliminated on disposals R ER L - - (8) (129) (319) (456)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (7) (52) (141) (243) (448)
Exchange adjustments N 2R - - 3) (10) - (13)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+-f=1—H 2,405 107 124 927 322 3,885
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—7E+=A=1+—H 47,079 2,474 490 415 683 51,141
At 31 December 2015 RZE-R%+-f=1—H - 16 130 566 5,604 6,316

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

13

14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016, land and buildings of the Group with
carrying amount of HK$47,079,000 (2015: HK$Nil) have been
pledged to secure interest-bearing borrowings granted to the
Group (see note 23).

The analysis of carrying amount of land and buildings of the Group
is as follows:

13

M - BB K&RE (&)

MNZZE—RFE+-_F=+—8 K&EBHL
R F 2 BREE47,079,0008 L (==
—hF  TET)EEBUMEERAEE
B M BER(RMEE23) -

AEE L NMETFREESTMOT

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHT

In Hong Kong — Medium-term lease REE—PHHEE 47,079 -

Impairment loss

As at 31 December 2015, the directors assessed the recoverable
amount of a motor vehicle and as a result the carrying amount of
the motor vehicle was written down to its recoverable amount of
HK$310,000. An impairment loss of approximately HK$214,000
was recognised in “Administrative expenses”. The estimate of
recoverable amount was based on the motor vehicle’s fair value
less costs of disposal, by obtaining a formal quotation from a car
agent. The fair value on which the recoverable amount is based
on is categorised as Level 1 measurement. The motor vehicle is an
unallocated corporate asset for segment reporting purpose. It was
disposed by the Group through disposal of subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balance as at 31 December 2015 comprised prepaid lease
payment for the land use rights, professional fees, amortisation of
prepaid lease payment capitalised and other related fees and taxes
with respect to the development of the properties. The leasehold
land held under operating lease included in the carrying amount of
properties under development is situated in the PRC under medium-
term lease.

On 30 June 2016, the Group derecognised the properties
under development with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,652,000 through disposal of subsidiaries.

14

REEE
R_ZE—HF+_A=+—8 B=TH
AEzARESRE - A SEREERE
A Y B £ 58310,00078 7T © £9214,00078
TLHYREEER (1T X JHER - aJik(e
SRNERREATFENRBBE—RARE
RIEBIEXREMBHLEXNER - 518
ARESEAERKENAFESEAE R
A2 AERIHBMEMS ARAILAF
BE YHREE_Z—R"E+-A=1+—
HEFERASEBRAEEMB AR
£ o

BRPUE

RIZE-AF T+ A=+ —HOSKREERE
TiERERNEERER EXEARE
AMEBENBEFRR 2 B MECAEER
;EBRYERERRATE - K2HEREH
HE LB RA R EE LR BEER N
FAEMERTYEZEEE -

R-ZE—ARFNA=1+H mEERB
HENBRARAKRIEREESHEAY
2,652,000/ TTHIZE R R % o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BREEE

132

Development Technical ~ Programming Online Software Mobile
costs  know-how codes platforms systems games Total
RRRAE BT BAGE Brya LA ks Eh
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR T T Thn Tt Tk ThR
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (b)) (note (0)
(M3 (a)) (P3E(b) (MEE (b)) (M3 (b)) (M3 (b)) i)
Cost A
At1 January 2015 RZF-1%-A-H 8,181 1,023 2,663 1,104 23,605 - 36,576
Additions through internal BANTERAE
development 1,719 - - - - - 1,719
Write-off (note (¢)) M (ER) (3,786) = = = = = (3,786)
Exchange adjustments SERE = = = = (1,680) - (1,680)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-18+-A=1-H
1 January 2016 k=-~5-A-H 6,114 1,023 2,663 1,104 21,925 - 32,829
Additions through business EREBAMAE
combination - - - - - 66,768 66,768
Additions through internal EANTERAE
development - - - - 2 - 4
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (3812) = (305) (501) (21,671) = 26,289)
Write-off (note (¢)) i (FEe) (124) - (370) (603) - - (1,097)
Exchange adjustments HERE = = = = (278) - (278)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-R 2,178 1,023 1,988 = = 06,768 71,957
Accumulated amortisation I ERRAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 RZF-1%-A-H 1,516 410 864 114 194 - 3,098
Charge for the year TEEMR 2,038 205 53 0 4 = 1717
Impairment loss (note (g)) AEEE (M) 1,299 = = = 8,000 = 9,299
Exchange adjustments INERZ - - - - (350) - (350)
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-18+-A=1-H
1 January 2016 k=E-~E-A-H 4853 615 1,396 335 12,565 - 19,764
Charge for the year TEEMR 1137 205 498 166 585 - 2,591
Disposal of subsidaries HERBAR (3812) - (305) (501) (12973) - (17,591)
Exchange adjustments SNERE - - - - (177) - (177)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+-A=1-H 2,178 820 1,589 - - - 4587
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"ETZA=1-H - 203 399 - - 66,768 67,370
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA=1-HR 1,261 408 1,267 769 9,360 - 13,065
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Development costs

Development costs represent expenditure incurred for
developing electronic software products that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(i) and are internally generated.

Technical know-how, programming codes,

online platforms and software systems

All of the Group’s technical know-how, programming codes,
online platforms and software systems were purchased as
part of business combinations in prior years.

Included in software systems as at 31 December 2015 was an
amount of HK$8,896,000 and HK$464,000 representing the
carrying amount of the urban grid management system and
the P2P lending system acquired in the NH Acquisition on 17
December 2014. They both have a remaining amortisation
period of 4 years as at 31 December 2015.

On 30 June 2016, the Group disposed the entire equity
interest in NH Group and the carrying amount of software
systems (comprising the urban grid management system and
the P2P lending system) of HK$8,698,000 was derecognised.

Mobile games

On 25 October 2016, the Group acquired 60% equity interest
in First Surplus Investments Ltd. (“First Surplus”) and its
subsidiaries (together, “FS Group”). FS Group is principally
engaged in game publishing, development of mobile game,
application, related intellectual property and platform, and
provision of related solutions. Intangible assets of mobile
games of HK$66,768,000 was identified and arose from this
business combination.

There is no amortisation charge of mobile games for the year
ended 31 December 2016 as the intangible assets are not yet
available for use.

15 BREE(HE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EEIDEN
BREUAERBETRHTERME
E2RX  FHERXEREBEEHK
(B FE2()) R RN A AR E
o

Bt - BARE - A LF
BERBRHRSR
AEBMAMRMMAE - BAR
B WLEFEREMHRGDRBE
FEFRBESDEANN—#D -

RZE—RAFE+ZA=+—HA
R G A © 58 58,896,000/8 7T
464,000 7T © HRIREKRP =
T-MFE+_A++EHAARBWES
B EAR RS EERERER

—HEF+-A=+—H  ZZFEHR
ZER T EIEHRME o

RZZE-—RFEXNA=1+H £&H
HENRREEEZ 2 A - WK
IR M R (BB TERLEE
BRGMHEHEERR)RESHE
8,698,000/ 7T °

FHRIEER
RZE—RETAZ+HA &%
& Y BEFirst Surplus Investment Ltd.
([First Surplus]) K& E Bt 8 2~ 7 (48
MR FSER]) 260%MHE - FS&
B EHEHEREIT  FHER
ERAERF HAMNSEERTAH
FEARREEBERE R o FH#
L) T & E66,768,00075 7T F
IAHER - WEZEBEHMESE -

RE-T-AE+TA=A AL
G0 A AT D 0 8
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A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(d) The amortisation charges for the year are included in

(e)

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Impairment loss and write-off

On 30 September 2016, the management realised that certain
electronic software previously developed does not fit to the
requirements of the customers and does not generate as
much revenue as previously expected. As a result, the carrying
amount of the electronic software of HK$1,097,000 was fully
written off in “Administrative expenses”.

On 1 October 2015, the management abandoned certain
electronic software development projects due to the fact
that experienced staffs were occupied by these development
projects which ultimately and adversely affected the
deployments of other projects and deteriorate the profits
generated from the ongoing business. As a result, the
carrying amount of the development costs of HK$3,786,000
was fully written off in “Administrative expenses”.

As at 31 December 2015, the management realised that
certain electronic software previously developed does not fit
to the requirements of the customers and does not generate
as much revenue as previously expected. The Group assessed
the recoverable amount of those electronic software and
as a result the carrying amount was written down to their
recoverable amount of HK$1,261,000. An impairment
loss of HK$1,299,000 was recognised in “Administrative
expenses”. The estimates of recoverable amount were based
on the electronic software’s value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management. The cash flows are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(e)

Impairment loss and write-off (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the management noticed that
penetration of the provision of the development services of
the urban grid management system into the governmental
market is not satisfied. The provision of internet marketing of
the P2P lending system has also been adversely affected by
the enhancing standards of the PRC regulatory requirements
over such kind of online financial services, the operating costs
and profitability of the business generated by the P2P lending
system has been adversely affected. The Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of these software systems and as a result
the carrying amount was written down to the recoverable
amount of HK$8,896,000 and HK$464,000 respectively.
An impairment loss of HK$4,298,000 and HK$3,702,000
respectively was recognised in “Administrative expenses”. The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on the software
systems’ value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management. The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax
rate of 37.8% and 44.2% respectively.

15 BREE(HE)

(e)

WAE B 18 & A 8H (48)

RZFE—RF+=ZA=+—8
ERERARTHEABLELEERR
FERSAELSENBNMSE - B
AL BMEEBEERRIIXF
EHZERLERBREERRESH
EEERBREFE  MBHHEE
REGPTEEMNLERAR R ER RN
BENMZE AmFE o AEBTM
ZEBHRGzAMESE - Al
HEAES MR ET B KRS E
8,896,000/ 7T &2 464,000/8 7T © 3%
4,298,000 7t &% 3,702,000/ T &Y
WEBER [TTHRAZ IFER - ATl
EeRBOERRGREMNFERER
AEME c REREDREEEE
HEZMBEEMEHZ2RERE
TERIFTHETT - WE MR AR
R37.8%MN44.2%EHIE ©

16 GOODWILL 16 BE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
At 1 January m—H—H 90,510 95,783
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries BB A RIFTEE & 89,433 -
Impairment loss B E 18 (1,430) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE AT (67,972) =
Exchange adjustments SN (872) (5,273)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=1+8 109,669 90,510
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16 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
(“CGUs") identified according to country of operation and
operating segment as follows:

16

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

EE (&’

BEHECREELEUZRE
A
BENEEAEERECEMERRIE
EoMBNZREELBU([REELS
fir]) - FHBOT

2016 2015

—EB-RE —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Software platform — Hong Kong (“Unit A”) B4 E —FE(EZAL 20,236 20,236
Mobile gaming — Hong Kong (“Unit B") FiE— &8 ([ ELB]) 89,433 -
Software platform — the PRC (“Unit C") A —FE([EuC]) - 68,844
Software platform — Hong Kong (“Unit D) HHEa -BHB([EMD]) - 1,430
109,669 90,510

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 as follows:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based on value-in-
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3.0% (2015:
3.0%). This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 22.2% (2015:
21.9%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which included budgeted sales, such estimation is based on Unit
A’s past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development including the fluctuation in software platform
business in the current economic environment in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
Unit A to exceed its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB TTHIR)
16 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 16 BHE(H)
Unit B (7B

The recoverable amount of the Unit B as at 31 December 2016 is
determined based on value-in-use calculation. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3.0% which is consistent with the forecast
included in industry reports. The growth rates used do not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the business in which Unit
B operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate
of 23.2%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to Unit B. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which included budgeted sales, such estimation is based on Unit B’s
past performance and management’s expectation for the market
development including the fluctuation in mobile gaming business in
the current economic environment in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
Unit B to exceed its recoverable amount.

Unit C

The recoverable amount of Unit C is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of
3.0%. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the market in which Unit C operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 35.4%. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to Unit C.
Other key assumption for the value-in-use calculation relates to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted
sales, such estimation is based on Unit C's past performance and
management’s expectation for the market development including
the fluctuation in software platform business in the current
economic environment in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2015, the recoverable amount of Unit C
calculated based on value-in-use exceeded carrying amount by
approximately HK$5,028,000.

BABR-_ZE—R"E+A=+—H 2
e EBIRERAEECHEEE - %%
ATENREESEEBI A VSEE - F4
HERFHEMNRSREENET - AF
EBERRESRENEAMGE INEEEERE
B0%EE (HEAREEITERESHIRA—
B o T 28 RET BB EAIBATAA &
X omigRATIERE - BERET
1223.2% 2 BEIRFARIE o FRE A 2 BhIR =
AR WkMEBMBEBEZHEER
B o stEFRAEERRAZEHEBER
FRBERA ARG (BIEBEHEE
) BT EREMBRBERREER
EHmEERNAE(BESBERLE
IRIGHR F R ESARE)) o

EZRERERRZENIEES KIS
BYEMNBRAEBAREA OIS -

BuC

B CzARESRIEERERZFEE
ZEFERIBE R ERE 2 VTR
g ERRELFHENBESRETRNE
17 - AFERNBESRETE AL INEF
IR REI 0% EHE - IEAZEREL
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16 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Unit D

The recoverable amount of Unit D as at 31 December 2015 is
determined based on value-in-use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3.0%. This growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the market in which Unit
D operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate
of 20.0%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to Unit D. Other key assumption for the value-in-
use calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which included budgeted sales, such estimation is based on Unit
D's past performance and management’s expectation for the
market development including the fluctuation in software platform
business in the current economic environment in the Hong Kong.

On 30 September 2016, the management realised that the
performance of software platform business under Unit D was
worsen than expected due to the tough market competition.
After the assessment on the respective date, the management
determined to recognise a full impairment of Unit D in respect of
the decline of operating performance. As a result, impairment loss
of HK$1,430,000 was recognised in “Administrative expenses”.

Based on the assessment results, the directors are of the opinion
that there are no indications that the carrying amount of the
goodwill has to be impaired, except for Unit D as described above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17 FEWRRR R H B WK

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trade receivables JFELBR 3R 4,814 6,344
Deposits and prepayments e R 6,367 2,240
Other receivables H UK 50 517
11,231 9,101

All of the Group's trade and other receivables, apart from certain
deposits of HK$878,000 (2015: HK$309,000), are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

B4 % 5878,0008 L (T —RHF
309,000 C) 2 & FTiRE I - NEBFT
BREWEBRR M bR - TBEIRT A —4F

AU E RS o

(a) Ageing analysis (a) FRERZ#T
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis P B A R IR RARIR
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of BEHBRINRREREE KRR
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: AT
2016 2015
—E-KRF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month DR —1E A 2,217 2,949
More than 1 but less than 3 months mHER—EAELHN=EA 1,364 1,642
More than 3 but less than 6 months mEHEBE=EAELREA 522 1,108
More than 6 but less than 12 months mEHBENEAELR @A 541 532
Over 12 months +=@AUE 170 113
4,814 6,344

Trade receivables are normally due on presentation of billing
or within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

FEU R R — RN R R E R ARAER
HIESt30R AR - AREFEEK
R B ZFIFRNMIE28() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BRI R H AW (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) FEWIRFBE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded JE UG BR 3K 2 Rk (B BT 1B PR R ER A
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied B 0 AN B (S 4 UK [0 57 3R 0B B
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the 2WIEAIRIN - EZBEAT - RE
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly 548 B 58 50 FE U BR FRM8E (BB 5
(see note 2(k)(i)). 2(k)(0)) °
No impairment losses were recognised on trade receivables BHE_T—RER-_ZT—HF+=
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. A=+—HItFE &M ERERR

HERBE RS

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired () RAEFEWER
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither 3 % 85 98 ol kR AR AR E 2 FE IR
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as BER VBRI OO T -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Neither past due nor impaired fm e BR R (E 2,217 1,832
Less than 1 month past due ‘mE DR —(E A 949 1,603
1 to 3 months past due wmE—=={EA 859 1,567
More than 3 but less than 6 months mEHBBE=@EABRLIRN
past due 7~ E A 110 722
More than 6 but less than 12 months BmEAEE N E A E DR
past due +—18A 587 507
More than 12 months past due mHER+—EA 92 113
2,597 4,512
4,814 6,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 FEWRRFR R H B Wk (4]
(CONTINUED)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) RFBEEWERR(E)
(Continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to ‘B MR E 2 RGBT EDR A
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. RAGCBEZEFHR -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate A HVE SR (E 2 B YR B E T8
to a number of independent customers that have a good VEFEH  2FEFEAKES
trading record with the Group. Based on past experience, RIFEEWDH - BEBELR &
management believes that no impairment allowance is fﬁ’:n/uﬁﬂiﬁﬁ‘jﬁm#:nﬁ‘?f’ﬁﬂjﬂi@
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been B RARGEEKTFILEERE
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still B MaFEHKDEE S EHRK
considered fully recoverable. [ e
18 LOANS RECEIVABLE 18 EWER
The Group’s loans receivable arise from the money lending business FAEENEKERBARRZENB AR
of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned subsidiary REBREEFRNRERGREL - A%
of the Company. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over B sk E R EE RN E SRS BRRE
its outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue fl - LFRERDEERRE - SHKRERE
balances are reviewed regularly by management. BETHES -
2016 2015
TE—XRF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Secured loans by personal guarantees EARRZIERER 66,000 35,000
Unsecured loans EIRFE R 104,320 76,800
170,320 111,800
Current portion included under current assets ~ RBEEE NEENRBEH (165,320) (111,800)
Amounts due after 1 year included under EMBEEE NEEN—FE
non-current assets F ARy K08 5,000 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 10% to
36% (2015: 10%) per annum and repayable on maturity date under
the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in writing by the
Group.

(a) Ageing analysis
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due date:

18 BRWEK(HE)

JERERBZEMNEENTI0%E36%
(20154 1 10% )T B » WAANEBERE
HABRBEARBZIERIAZTEMERE

(a)

ARl 0 AT
REDITIRIEA R RS

2016 2015

—E—RF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired 4 8 i sOp B 152,220 111,800
Less than 1 month past due wmE DR —EA 6,625 -
1 to 3 months past due BBl —Z= =18 A 11,475 -
18,100 -

170,320 111,800

The credit quality of loans receivable that are neither past
due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical
information about counterparty default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the past.

In respect of loans receivable which have been past due, the
amounts mainly represent occasional delay in repayment and
they were fully settled subsequent to the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the management is of the opinion
that no impairment allowance on these individual loans is
necessary.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

BERMYRENEREEFRNERE
R2EERRZ RN ZBE
BRHER - BEXRZTBELE
RER o

HRBHNERER  HeBER
RBBEHER  YERRBREDR
REHEE - At ERERBRE
TR AL ER ERIE LR ERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

19

20

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group's interest receivables arise from the money lending
business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Interest receivables, apart from the interest receivables derived from
loan balances of HK$66,000,000 (2015: HK$35,000,000) which are
secured by personal guarantees from the borrowers’ guarantors,
are unsecured. All of the interest receivables are repayable on
maturity date under the terms in contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, all of the interest receivables are neither
past due nor impaired, and are wholly repayable within one year.

19

FE W R 2

AEBNEKRNEBEARRZENE AR
REBRBERNRERBHEL

B B fE A 2 IR A B4 #:66,000,000
It (—Z—H4F : 35,000,000/ 7T ) fE1E
ABRZEZTHEWF BN  BNFEE
EI o FTA BT 2R E R REIE
THREZIHASAEBRLEEERE
BNRF(EE o

RZB-—XRE+-ZA=+—8 FAEEK
MEWEBHSRE - WAR—FAEH

fEI& o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEZEY
2016 2015
—E-AF i
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#T FiET
Cash at banks and on hand FBITRFHEES 11,500 38,725

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$111,000 (2015: HK$3,602,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RZFE—ARE+-_A=+—8 4~&E
RARB(TARDFEZRE KRS
ZEMBIN00BL(ZE—RHF
3,602,00087T) - ARBTEEERABRE
Hib &’ - R ARIEP B A2 SNEE
BIEFIARLEIE - EERMNESERTE
ANER B O] R I R 1T INE 375 2 $R1T
BARBHBAHMER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BE{TEESR AL RE(
All trade and other payables are expected to be settled or B RMANEREREMEMAKERER—FA
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand. EERERABMATIRENRERE -

22 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM 22 BUF S BEBD
GOVERNMENT

2016 2015
ZEB-REF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assistance from government T 87 I8 4% By 114 371
Current portion included under current liabilities JREhBEE N BEEARBIE D (114) (325)
Amounts due after 1 year included under FERBABEETNEERN
non-current liabilities —F & EIE 2 F0E = 46
In the opinion of the directors, an amount of approximately EERE BAR—FRNMRAIFEERRE
HK$114,000 (2015: HK$325,000) will be repayable to ITF within SEEXNE114,0008 T (=T —HF :
1 year by reference to the forecast revenue generated from the 325,000/ 7T) BEHFELREREEMM
specific products. EAE 2 TRRIES -
In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amount of financial FEERE BNV EER ZEREEREER
assistance from government approximates its fair value. FEMEE
23 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 23 MEMER

As at 31 December 2016, the interest-bearing borrowings represent
a loan of HK$28,000,000 granted by a finance company to a
subsidiary. The loan was secured by the Group’s land and buildings
with a carrying amount of HK$47,079,000 and corporate guarantee
from the Company. The loan carries an interest rate of the Best
Lending Rate from Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited plus 3% per annum and is wholly repayable on or before 28
November 2018. The relevant loan agreement does not contain any
repayment on demand clauses.
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ExmAEB st R EF(FEERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

24 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX

BALANCES

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

of financial position represents:

15

24 EIEFIE K EVHIR E L R

(a) #HREMBARREBR 2 ENHABIEA

2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FRNBRBRET 2 B
for the year 59 1,339
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EEFER = (244)
59 1,095
Balance of Profits Tax provision B FFEERBNRIEH 2 B
relating to prior year ek 30 -
89 1,095
Represented by: BTYEEERT
Current tax recoverable AT el BN AR 18 = (79)
Current tax payable & BN ER R 18 89 1,174
89 1,095
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

24 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised

The component of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

24 JF it % R K B) A B OIR 4 BR
(&)

(b) EEACELEHBEEE, 8E
Rz & BB kR RE #R

LR

REE/(AB) B RFANEHE

SR

Depreciation Fair value
allowance  adjustment
in excess of on
the related intangible
Tax losses depreciation assets Total
Deferred tax assets/ EEHBEE BBEREITE BREE
(liabilities) arising from: (BE EES: BIEEE NITERE ZOAFERE #@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THT THET
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—aF—H—H 926 - (6,277) (5,351)
(Charged)/credited to profit (%), /FTARBELL
or loss from continuing 2 miass (M3E8(a))
operations (note 8(a)) (920) - 57 (863)
(Charged)/credited to profit (F0B&),GTAB &KL
or loss from discontinued B % 0B
operation (6) - 3,180 3,174
Exchange adjustments HNE R - - 333 333
At 31 December 2015 and A-E—RHF
1 January 2016 TZA=+—HK
—T—R"F—A—H = o (2,707) (2,707)
Additions through business BREBEHAE
combination 4,454 (13) (11,017) (6,576)
Credited/(charged) to profit (GTA) /B ELE
or loss from continuing Egi SR Ea
operations 339 (2) 124 461
Credited/(charged) to profit (5t A)/HIBRE& I
or loss from discontinued FE 4 0biFay
operation - - 146 146
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB QR - = 2,314 2,314
Exchange adjustments ANE FFR - - 24 24
At 31 December 2016 RZT—REF
+=-—A=+—H 4,793 (15) (11,116) (6,338)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

24 DEFERRED TAX AND CURRENT TAX

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has cumulative tax losses
of approximately HK$95,177,000 (2015: HK$63,051,000).
Of which, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses to the extent of approximately
HK$29,049,000 (2015: HK$Nil). The Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the remaining
tax losses of approximately HK$66,128,000 (2015:
HK$63,051,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. Other temporary differences are not material.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following years
ending 31 December:

24 JF fE %R K B) A B OIR 4 BR
(&)

(c) HARBRZELEHRBEE AE
RZE—RE+-A=+—8" K
& B 2 51 7% B3 18 4995,177,000
BT (ZZF—ARF 63,051,000
JL) o Hep - AEEGZIBEEIERE
SRR IE T IR & EE 929,049,000/ 7T
(ZZE—FHF - TBL) c HRKRK
a M AROR AR - AEBIWER
466,128,000 L ( — T — A F :
63,051,000 7T ) W e T IB & 18
EREMRLEHIBEEE - HMEHE
MEBWLFEK o

AERZREBEBERTINEE
TZA=tT—HIEFERER:

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—AF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

2021 —E R 977 =
2020 —E-TE 1,206 3,542
2019 SE—NE 790 2,599
2018 —ZT-N\F 319 1,749
2017 —T—+fF 180 1,411
2016 TE—XE - 153
No expiry date 37 % i B HA 62,656 53,597
66,128 63,051

REFPREEEGRAA
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25 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the basic
salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and has
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement benefit scheme represents for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016
and 2015 in respect of the retirement of its employees.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

ERBHRRNKEE

AEBREBEEB LD FEISSERHIERTE
SR EED AZ B S RBIEHEEN A
ERNTEREERY BRI ATES
E([oaEeaTEll) - REBESFEA—IEH
BYUZEABTENEREFRAKGTE - B
BHaEStE BEXRHEEESAERE
BHRBKARS%AFEIRR a2 AT
A FERIUR A HY30,000/8 7T © sHEIEFRBNES

=g -

AEBEHENEARNEE A EAED
THAEREENBERERAKSEMN
KE - MEBRRAREREZEAFHEZ
ETBEDLMRRKREEIHRK - BREREH
N - BEAAEGBERERARSNRIE
RBREE - EE - BRKEBRKEF
AEEMRREEXNZ2HEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting regarding the termination of the old share
option scheme which was adopted on 25 November 2003 (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the board of directors
of the Company may, at its discretion, grant share options to the
eligible participants including any employees, directors, suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person in the sole discretion
of the board of directors for the primary purpose to recognise and
motivate their contributions to the Group.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
at the extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of
“Eligible Participant” of the New Share Option Scheme and the
definition of “Invested Entity “ be added to the New Share Option
Scheme (“Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme”).

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of the
Company, the maximum number of shares available for subscription
under Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
option scheme adopted by the Company is subject to:

(i)  The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted under
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of its issued share capital from time to time; and

(i)  The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
Amendments to 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the approval of the New Share Option Scheme/at the date of
passing the relevant resolution in general meeting.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.

26 URAEEZRDKS

RIZ—=FRANB  XRAREFRE
FREBBAMKRLEBBRES(E
BREE ] DR-BT=F+—7
“TRARM) 2 ERRER - WRAH
B 8I ([ 3B ERTEL) - Bt - K
ARAEFEUNBERNAER2EE (B
BE 2% HERW  FHER KER
BERREFTE2RBBREZEMAL)
RhBEkE  SESEREBRELAE
B{ELERL -

RZZ—XR"FEMAZ+NA  AAFARK
RENAS LHBEETRRER - 498
BB T AER2EE IRIKREER
B E TSR AN A KT BB B AT &) [
RSt BIEAT ] -

BRIER AR RIRRAS LEBRALE - 1
B I ARRT BB RT A R AR 2 (T &
iR IR TR HRB 2 KR RN B
BXBERATEE:

() ARBRBEHBRETENS T A
N EVER AN 7 AT ] E A B AR A AT B3R
2 e IR AT RS AT RE B 1T
ZARRNRIRMHEE LR - TEEA
HARBEEITRAZ30% : &

(i) - RIBFBRESEETRAKEE
MEMLBRESESTREZME
BREETER A EEEITZ DR
A X TEEBBERG OB
Bl AT RLIER HRBDR B BR
AREERBENHEBERETROZ
10% °

PMER+ (8 A 8 - RIBERAER [RE
FRERSEALTEHTZESBROEES
BETRNZ1% @ BRIFNA R RIRA
B BRI EBIERIER ©
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Any grant of options under Amendments to the New Share Option
Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates must be
approved by independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the proposed grantee of
the options).

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration
for a grant of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by the board of
directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board
of directors providing that the price shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
offer, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme was granted or
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27 EXRKGHE
(a) Share capital (a) B
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) EEREZETRA
Number
of shares Amount
R5EE &8
‘000 HK$'000
T A% FHT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares il
At 1 January 2015 of HK$0.02 each R=-_ZT—HF—H—H
SHREEO0.02/ 7T 2 I D 2,000,000 40,000
Share subdivision (note (ii)) A& 53 3 (B #E (i) 8,000,000 -
At 31 December 2015 and R_ZE—RF+=-_A=+—H
1 January 2016 of HK$0.004 each r=ZZ—X"F—H—H
FRXMEEO.0047E T 2 ix 10,000,000 40,000
Share consolidation (note (iv)) A& & B (B EE(v)) (9,000,000) -
Increase in authorised share capital £ BRI 10 (HTEE(v))
(note (v)) 2,000,000 80,000
At 31 December 2016 of RZBE—ARE+ZA=+—H
HK$0.04 each FREEC.04B T2 H 3,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares LR
At 1 January 2015 of HK$0.02 each R-_ZT—HAF—H—H
FRRMEEO.02B L2 1D 600,000 12,000
Share subdivision (note (ii)) A& 19 53 7 (B (i) ) 2,400,000 N
Issue of shares (note (jii)) A1 2% 17 (B 5 (i) ) 2,040,000 8,160
At 31 December 2015 and R-_E—RF+-A=+—H
1 January 2016 of HK$0.004 each N =]
BREEO0.00448 T2 KD 5,040,000 20,160
Share consolidation (note (iv)) R% 10 & B (B 5% (iv)) (4,536,000) -
Issue of shares (note (vi)) A% 17 3517 (B FE(vi)) 403,200 16,128
At 31 December 2016 of A S I SRR
HK$0.04 each FRXME{EO.0478 T 2 1D 907,200 36,288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share subdivision in 2015

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 5 January 2015, every issued
and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.02 each was
subdivided into five new ordinary shares of HK$0.004
each (the “Share Subdivision”). Following the Share
Subdivision which became effective on 6 January
2015, the Company’s authorised share capital was
HK$40,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.004 each, of which 3,000,000,000 ordinary
shares were in issue and fully paid.

Issue of shares in 2015

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 600,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each on the basis of one
new share for every five existing shares then held (the
“Bonus Issue”). These new shares were credited as
fully paid by capitalisation of HK$2,400,000 standing
to the credit of share premium account. Details of
the Bonus Issue are set out in the Company’s circular
and announcement dated 17 December 2014 and
19 January 2015 respectively.

Pursuant to the placing made by the Company on
29 April 2015, the Company issued 600,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$58,909,000.

Pursuant to the placing made by the Company on
11 November 2015, the Company issued 840,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.10 per share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$81,606,000.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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27 EXK#HEE)
(a) MR (M)

(i)

(iif)

TE—AFRGSHT
BER-_ZE-—RAE—AAAR
BOZEREFIASRBAN
—IEETERER BREE
0.02BLHE BT RAREST
TRROFAARESREE
0.004B T LB (IR
MAFE]) - RIDHERZF
—RAF—AXNBEME K
A \) VA JE & AN & 40,000,000
7 7T 9 /& 10,000,000,000
A% & A% T {5 0.004 78 7T 2 I&
7 HH3,000,000,000f &
BRAEEITREE -

—E-AFRGET

R-ZTE—RF—A+hAB "
7N A 7] # 47 600,000,000 f%
F R EEO0.0047% T L@
R BEERERERAEAR
WERMITEZE —RFTR
(M4IR%EE1T]) - ZEFRE
FBBRERER DR ERER
2,400,000 7% Tt A BR 7l &
BB o AIRBEITHBIHNARN
AAIBEA R AT —UF
+-_A+tBER-_ZE—RF
—A+hBMBEREAEA -

BERARAAR-_ZT—AFH
AZ+hBEFTZEREE - &
A A)#17600,000,000 8% & I
EfE0.004B TR LB « R
BEASBRI0E T I8
FIBFFE#958,909,000/8 7T °

BEARIR-_ZTE—RHF
+—A+—BEFTZES
KX A1E£17840,000,000 i &
REE{E0.0047 T By E A%
REEAERK0I10B T AT
15 3K T8 ) B8 49 81,606,000 78
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share consolidation in 2016

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 19 February 2016, every 10
issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.004
each were consolidated into 1 new ordinary share of
HK$0.04 each (the “Share Consolidation”). Following
the Share Consolidation which has become effective
on 22 February 2016, the authorised share capital
of the Company was HK$40,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.04 each, of which
504,000,000 shares were in issue and fully paid.

Increase in authorised share capital in 2016

Upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$40,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each to HK$120,000,000
divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04
each by creation of additional 2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.04 each.

Issue of shares in 2016

On 17 May 2016, the Company issued 252,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.24 per ordinary share on the basis of one new
share for every two existing shares held (the “Open
Offer”), resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$57,680,000. Details of the Open Offer are set out in
the Company’s prospectus and announcement dated 22
April 2016 and 16 May 2016 respectively.

27 EXK#HEE)
(a) MR (M)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

—E—NFRGEGF
BERZZTE—XR"EZA+1
HRBRRERFIAE LBBZ
THRABR BIORER
HE0.004B L ZE#EITR
KBITEBREAMHAE K
FREEC.AB T ZH LR
B(TkHEH]) - RHE
HR—_E—RF_A-_+=
HEBBARRZEER
7K /& 40,000,000 78 T © &
/4 1,000,000,000 % & A% ™
BE004B Tz iRty - HA
504,000,0000% & @ i% A& B 8
TRER -

ZFNFREIEERA

R EFERE XA
8] 20K R AN EE AR B A
2,000,000,000 M& & m
B004B Tz E@BBRMM
H 40,000,000 & 7T ( o A&
1,000,000,000 f% & % M &
0.047 7T 2 @R Rk 17 ) 38
HNZ 120,000,000 7T (9 A
3,000,000,000 f% & f% @ &
0.047 Lz EimA%)

ZE—NFRET
R—ZFE—XR"FRA++LAH "
ARARANEBHEMKRIRER
MR — R D 2 B2
EREBEESREBIR0.24%5
JC ° 3%£17252,000,000 0% &A%
HEM4B Tz ERKR(ITA
FEE]) - IBRIEBFELD
57,680,000/ 7C - A EE
FEEHINARAR RS
AMEZZE—ARFHNRA=-+=
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ZERRAE -

REFPREEEGRAA
F#H 2016

153



154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(vi)

Issue of shares in 2016

On 3 August 2016, the Company issued 151,200,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each pursuant to a placing
under general mandate at a price of HK$0.129
per ordinary share, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$19,309,000.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution
from shareholders in the form of interest-free loans.
The amounts are estimated by discounting the
nominal value of their non-interest bearing loans to
the Group at current market interest rate for similar
financial instruments. An early repayment of interest-
free loans represents a reduction in contribution from
shareholders and reduces capital reserve accordingly.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company
and the Group’s former subsidiary.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(y).
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27 EXK#HEE)
(a) MR (M)

(vi)

ZE—NFRIGET
RZT—A"FNA=H &
NABE — MR EEITER
& UERERER0.129% T
Z (B1&3£17151,200,000 % &
M E0.048 Tz L@ -
T 15 3% T8 )% B2 49 19,309,000
PEIT ©

S0

(b) RBZMERAE

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

7 i 8
BRERESHBERARNEE2E
(= NAR—FFIFAEM - &
e RERT)  ARRRM
BRZESAIDIKTARA
BR - ERERREIRERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes financial
assistance from government and consideration payable
for business combination), less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an ongoing basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$222,862,000 (2015: HK$172,227,000).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, loans receivable, interest receivables and
cash and cash equivalents. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. Trade receivables are normally due on
presentation of billing or due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 20% (2015: 17%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the largest debtor.

For loans and interest receivables, the Group manages and
analyses the credit risk for each of the new and existing
borrowers before standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses
the credit quality of the borrower based on the borrower’s
financial position, past experience and other factors. For
loans principal exceeding a predetermined amount, the
Group holds collateral against these loans receivable and
interest receivables in the form of guarantee executed by the
guarantor. Individual risk limits are set based on the value of
collaterals provided by borrowers, if required, and internal or
external ratings in accordance with limits set by the directors.
The credit quality classification of loans receivable and their
respective interest receivables using the Group’s credit rating
system is set out in the table below:

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

BHEREEREMIAR
FE (&)

(a) FERBRE)

2016 2015

—E-AF —T-1F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Performing % 156,215 113,182
Doubtful *ER 18,100 -
Loss &8 = -
174,315 113,182

The Group considers the loans and respective interest
receivables as doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or of
interest has been overdue and principal, accrued interest and/
or future interest may not be fully secured by the collaterals.
The Group considers the loans and respective interest
receivables as loss if the repayment of principal and/or of
interest has been overdue for more than 12 months and the
collection of principal and/or of interest in full is improbable.

The Group estimates and recognises impairment losses for
the loans and interest receivables considered as “doubtful”
and “loss”, taking into account of the fair values of
collaterals which are inadequate to cover the loans and
interest receivables. The amount of doubtful and loss of loans
and interest receivables were HK$Nil (2015: HK$Nil) as at
31 December 2016.
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e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
receivable considered as “performing” by grouping together
all its receivables with similar credit risk characteristics. The
impairment review is carried out on all those loans and
interest receivables based on the historical impairment rates.
Since the historical impairment rate is zero during the current
and prior year, the management therefore considers that the
collective impairment loss is HK$Nil (2015: HK$Nil) as at 31
December 2016.

The amount of provision for impairment is monitored by the
management on a monthly basis.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers constituted
approximately 21% and 52% (2015: 31% and 65%) of
the Group’s loans receivable balance respectively as at 31
December 2016.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required.

Cash and cash equivalents are normally placed at financial
institutions that have sound credit ratings and the directors
consider that the credit risk in liquid funds is limited.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables and loans receivable are set out in notes 17 and 18
respectively.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiEARBEEREMIAN
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REESRER
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible REBRNERSCESEEEEARSY
for their own cash management, including the short term ZHELEE  BERSRAZEH
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover KEREZIEMAEMNTESRIRS S
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly T REBZHRETHHELER
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains PESFR  UBRERZEZE®
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of HELEAEEES  UENHESE
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and BN EERBIESEN -
longer term.
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRHFVNAEBZzeRmEBENRHE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the AR 2R T EAE - T
Group's financial liabilities, which is based on contractual ERBETHARBR SR E (BEE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments RETHAR EETE 2 F B FIE » 3
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on 2B AIRBEREHEERF 2
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the WITARFAE)ARKREE e E
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: KNHRz&xFHH
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2016 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BT ARUR —FREH SH—F
—Z-X"E¥+=-A=+—H REE RERELE HIRER BLIRAEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET FTHET
Trade and other payables JE A~F BR TR % EL At FE AP R 3,268 3,268 3,268 -
Financial assistance from IR B R B
government 114 114 114 -
Interest-bearing borrowings |3ﬁ% BN 28,000 32,480 2,427 30,053
Consideration payable for ¥BAHEARE
business combination 106,623 121,000 - 121,000
138,005 156,862 5,809 151,053

BRETEEEBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BKEKREERESMIAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REVE SR (&)
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2015 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BAIAARMER —FREH SR—F
—E-RF+ZA=+—H REE ReRsEgs FRER  EBIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TRET TET TET
Other payables HAth FERT K 2,481 2,481 2,481 =
Financial assistance from B EE B
government 371 371 325 46
Consideration payable for EREHEMNRE
business combination 28,247 30,000 10,000 20,000
31,099 32,852 12,806 20,046

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BKEKREERESMIAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (o) RIZEmE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from loans REBZHEZRRIERAERE
receivable, consideration payable for business combination R EBEAHEMNKRELRKEE
and interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at fixed R EBMZEEERSAEEEY
rate and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest A AFEMNERRR MRS RE
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The FEER - EIREEIEANERE 2 F|
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management is KEEFINOT -

set out below.

(i) Interest rate profile

() FFEHEE

The following table details the interest rate profile of TRFRN RS AMERE
the Group's interest-earning loans and interest-bearing AEBEHEERKHEER

borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

ZRERBE -

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-0F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate % HK$'000 rate % HK$'000
BRFIE% THET EBME% THAT
Net fixed rate deposits
Loans receivable 10.0% -
36.0% 170,320 10.0% 111,800
Consideration payable for %A EMNAE
business combination 7.2% (110,000) N/ATEF =
60,320 111,800
Variable rate borrowings ZE{&
Interest-bearing borrowings Fff 2.1 8.0% (28,000) N/AEH =
Net exposure 32,320 111,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately HK$234,000 (2015: HK$Nil).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of the next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2015.

(d) Currency risk

The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management
considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BKEKREERESMIAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) £BTEER
2016 2015
—E—xF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets SRMEE
Contingent consideration assets for X EHIAREBEE
business combination 17,971 -
Loan and receivables (including cash B R ERFIE
and cash equivalents) (BERELESSEY) 199,080 160,109
Prepayment option embedded in B BT A = T A e
promissory note issued IR RIE K E 837 =
217,888 160,109
Financial liabilities = =L
Financial liabilities measured at LB AGEZ
amortised cost TR BE 31,383 2,852
Consideration payable for business XEEAHEARE -
combination, measured at fair value BATERFE 106,623 28,247
138,006 31,099
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(PABTTHIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Contingent consideration assets for business
combination, prepayment option embedded in
promissory note issued and consideration payable for
business combination include contingent consideration
are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period on a recurring basis. The fair value
measurements of these financial assets and liabilities
are categorised as Level 3, whose fair value is measured
using significant unobservable inputs, as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

The Group'’s finance department performs valuations
for the Level 3 financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the management and
the audit committee. A valuation report with analysis of
changes in fair value measurement is prepared by the
finance department with external valuation specialists
appointed by the Group at each annual reporting date,
and is reviewed and approved by the management.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with the
management and the audit committee is held once a
year.
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(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Fair value measurement (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

(i)

value (Continued)

The following table provides information about Level 3

fair value measurements:

Valuation techniques

EERR

28

BHEREEREMIAR
FE (&)

(f) AFEFAEGE)

() BRFEAEZDTHBEE

LEEE)
TERUAME=RATE
HEZAR

Significant unobservable input

EATABREG AR

Financial assets
CREE
Contingent consideration
assets for business combination

EBAHIRREEE

Prepayment option embedded
in promissory note issued

RELSRESE ikl
AR

Financial liabilities

TRBE

Consideration payable for business

combination

EBAHREEE

Binomial Lattice model

THEAHERA

Binomial Lattice model

“HEARERN

Discounted cash flow

MHRRERE

Discounted cash flows used to
derive the estimated fair value of
FS Group and the probability of
the Put Option (as defined in note
29(b)) being exercised

ARG EFSEBAFATENERREER
EURITEEER(ER RMFE29(b))
BRI e

N/A
TiER

Discount rate and the probability-
adjusted revenue and profit of FS
Group (2015: NH Group) used to
derive the discounted cash flow

ARAERRRSRE 2B EARFSE
B s B I AT BE ML R 2E (20154
REEHE)
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e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

The fair value of contingent consideration assets for
business combination is determined using binomial
lattice model and the significant unobservable input
used in the fair value measurement is the discounted
cash flows used to derive the estimated fair value of
FS Group and the probability of the Put Option being
exercised. The fair value measurement is negatively
related to the discounted cash flows, i.e. an increase
in discounted cash flows would result in a decrease in
the fair value measurement, and vice versa. Conversely,
the fair value measurement is positively related to the
discounted cash flows, i.e. an increase in probability
of the Put Option being exercised would result in an
increase in the fair value measurement, and vice versa.

The fair value of prepayment option embedded in the
promissory note issued is determined using binomial
lattice model. The fair value is insignificant to the
consolidated statement of financial position and any
changes to the unobservable input would not result in
significant changes in the fair value measurement.

The fair value of consideration payable for business
combination is determined using discounted cash flow
method to capture the present value of the expected
future cash outflows of the Group. The fair value
measurement is negatively related to the discount
rate used, i.e. an increase in discounted rate used in
isolation would result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement, and vice versa. Conversely, the fair value
measurement is positively related to the probability-
adjusted revenue and profit of FS Group (2015: NH
Group), i.e. an increase in probability-adjusted revenue
and profit in isolation would result in an increase in the

fair value measurement, and vice versa.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BKEKREERESMIAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) AFEEFEGE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) EAFEITECEHEE
value (Continued) REE(E)
The movement during the year in the balance of these FAN - ZE=ZBRATEFE
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: EHEEIT ¢
2016 2015
“E-RE “Z-1F
Contingent  Prepayment
consideration option  Consideration  Consideration
assets for  embedded in payable for payable for
business promissory business business

combination note issued  combination combination
2R

EREH RAZBMKE ERaft Ehatlt

FIAREEE  MRAEE ERRE ERRE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx THL TAR TAL
At 1 January n—RA—H = - (28,247) (26,902)
Additions NE 19,364 944 (105,744) -
Settlement by disposal BBLENBATLEE
of subsidiaries (note 31) (FzE31) - - 30,000 -
Total loss in profit or loss NeEm BiEES (1,393) (107) (2,632) (1,345)
At 31 December “+=RA=+-H 17,91 837 (106,623) (28,247)
(i) Financial assets/liabilities carried at other than (i) 1L FEXIMEESEZ
fair value eHEE B
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial PN PN N |
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are BEvemITANKAERER
not materially different from their fair values as at RZE-RFRZZE-—HF
31 December 2016 and 2015. TZA=+—HH R TFER
BEAER-

REFPREEEGRAA

£%2016 07



168

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

Acquisition of NH Group

On 17 December 2014, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in Native Hope Limited from an independent
third party (the “NH Purchaser”) at a nominal consideration
of HK$90,000,000 (the “NH Acquisition”). Details of the
NH Acquisition were set out in note 28(c) of the audited
consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 11
December 2014 in respect of the NH Acquisition, the partial
consideration of HK$60,000,000 had been settled in cash as
at 31 December 2014.

The remaining consideration payable of HK$30,000,000
is subject to adjustment based on the NH Group’s audited
consolidated profit after taxation but before extraordinary
or exceptional items attributable to the owners of the
Company (the “NH Profit”) of not less than HK$10,000,000,
HK$13,000,000 and HK$15,000,000 for the year ending
31 December 2015, 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2017 respectively (the “NH Guaranteed Amount”). The
consideration payable shall be reduced by an amount equal to
any shortfall.

The NH Profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 exceeds
HK$10,000,000. As at 31 December 2015, based on the
assessment of the director of the Company, the possibility of
shortfall of the NH Profit against the NH Guaranteed Amount
for each of the year ending 31 December 2016 and 2017
is remote, and consequently the fair value of contingent
consideration asset is HK$Nil.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of NH Group (Continued)

As mentioned in note 9 and note 31(b), the Company has
disposed of the entire equity interest in NH Group on 30
June 2016 to the NH Vendor at a nominal consideration of
HK$90,000,000. Of which, HK$30,000,000 was paid by
the NH Vendor by setting off the remaining consideration
payable of HK$30,000,000 due to the NH Vendor under the
NH Acquisition. Accordingly, the fair value of consideration
payable of HK$28,945,000 as at 30 June 2016 has been
derecognised and further assessment of the possibility of
shortfall of the NH Profit against the NH Guaranteed Amount
for each of the year ending 31 December 2016 and 2017 is no
longer necessary.

Acquisition of FS Group

On 25 October 2016, the Group, through Hyper Venture
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary (the “FS Purchaser”),
acquired 60% equity interest in FS Group from independent
third parties (the “FS Vendors”) at a nominal consideration of
HK$150,000,000 (the “FS Consideration”).

Pursuant to the agreement for sale and purchase dated 8
August 2016 entered into between the FS Purchaser, the FS
Vendors and the Company (as the “FS Guarantor”) in relation
to the FS Acquisition (the “FS Acquisition Agreement”), the
FS Consideration shall be paid by the FS Purchaser to the FS
Vendors (or its nominee(s)) as to: (i) HK$40,000,000 in cash
as refundable deposit to be paid within one-month after the
date of the FS Acquisition Agreement; (ii) HK$110,000,000
by the issuance of a promissory note at 5% per annum
(the “Promissory Note”). The principal and accrued interest
thereon are wholly repayable on the date immediate
following 2 years after the date of issue of the Promissory
Note to the FS Vendors (or their nominees) upon the
completion of the FS Acquisition (i.e. 25 October 2016) (the
“Completion”). Pursuant to the FS Acquisition Agreement,
the principal may be prepaid in full or in part by the FS
Purchaser at any time together with interest accrued thereon
without penalty by giving no less than 7 business days prior
notice in writing to the holders of the Promissory Note (the
“Prepayment Option”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 29 EKE6t(E)

(b) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued) (b) WEBFS&KE (&)

Pursuant to the FS Acquisition Agreement, the FS Vendors
guarantee to the FS Purchaser that the audited consolidated
net profit after taxation of FS Group for the twelve full
months immediately following the Completion (“2017 FS
Profit”) shall not be less than HK$14,200,000 (the “FS
Profit Guarantee”). The FS Purchaser shall have the rights
to sell the 60% equity interest in First Surplus (the “Sale
Shares”) to the FS Vendors at the price equivalent to the FS
Consideration, whereupon the FS Vendors shall have the
obligation to purchase the Sale Shares at such price in the
event that FS Group fails to meet the FS Profit Guarantee (the
“Put Option”) within a period of 6 months after the date of
approval of the audited consolidated financial statements of
FS Group (the “Exercisable Period”).

The FS Consideration comprises: (a) cash; (b) the Promissory
Note with an embedded Prepayment Option; and (c) the
Put Option. The fair value of the FS Consideration at the
Completion is as follows:

BIEFSU B i - FSEHAIFSE A
REFSEBMABZRERE T @R
BAZREGBBEG BN T8
([ZZE—LFFSEF ) BRLR
14,200,000 7T ([ FSi& PR 1) ©
INFSEE B AR BENFSEB K EREA
B RS TR AL A B BRSNS 8 A B R
(TAIATEEAR ] ) R FS i PR -
FSE BB HERFSE H AEERFS
RAB B EFirst SurplusZ 60%%
E(HERD]) MISEAKESR
TUAZEERBEEBEERNS (4
B -

FSREBTE : @RE : (b)EEITH
TRBIR T Z AR R © R(o) M
EHE - FSRERNTEKREZ A FEHR
Fgnk

Contractual
amount Fair value
oY k| NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Consideration settled by cash on RZZT—X"FNLALBMN
7 September 2016 ReX M zRE 40,000 40,000
Consideration payable by Promissory NK=ZZFE—RFE+A=+HH
Note issued on 25 October 2016 BITEARERES N2 KRE
(note (i)) (FEE)) 110,000 105,744
Prepayment Option embedded in the BT AR AR
Promissory Note issued (note (i) 2R (M EEG)) = (944)
Contingent consideration assets — SARBEE —
Put Option (note (ii) v R (B (i) - (19,364)
150,000 125,436

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTTHIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued)

Note:

)

(i)

The fair value of the consideration payable by Promissory Note
is measured as the fair value of the Promissory Note as if the
Promissory Note was issued without the Prepayment Option.

The fair value of the Promissory Note as if the Promissory Note
was issued without the Prepayment Option is measured by
discounting the total contractual undiscounted cash outflows
of HK$121,000,000, being the aggregate of the principal
of HK$110,000,000 and the accrued interest thereon of
HK$11,000,000, at the discount rate of 6.97% as determined by
the directors of the Company with reference to valuation carried
out by an independent valuer (the “Valuer”), as if it is to be paid
on 25 October 2018, being 2 years after the date of issue of the
Promissory Note. The discount rate of 6.97% comprises the risk-free
rate of 0.46%, a credit spread of 4.56% and a liquidity spread of
1.95%.

The fair value of the Prepayment Option as at 25 October 2016
is determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to valuation carried out by the Valuer and is measured based on
Binomial Lattice model. The Prepayment Option embedded in the
Promissory Note issued and the consideration payable by Promissory
Note form part of the Consideration, and are required to be
measured at fair value in accordance with HKFRS 3 (see accounting
policy set out in note 2(d)).

The fair value of the Put Option is determined by the directors of
the Company with reference to valuation carried out by the Valuer,
and is calculated by multiplying the value of the Put Option of
approximately HK$48,410,000 and the probability of the Put Option
being exercised of 40%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued)
Value of the Put Option
The value of the Put Option as at 25 October 2016 of
HK$48,410,000 is measured based on Binomial Lattice model,
with the principal assumptions as follows:

Market price HK$144,800,000 (note (i)
Exercise price HK$150,000,000 (note (ii))
Expected volatility 67% (note (iii))

Option life 23 months from 25 October 2016

to 25 September 2018

Vesting period 6 months from 25 March 2018 to
25 September 2018 (note (iv))

Expected dividend Nil
Risk-free interest rate 0.46% (note (v))

Note:

(i) The market price represents 60% of the estimated fair value of FS
Group as at 25 October 2016, being HK$241,333,000.

(ii) The exercise price represents the price that the FS Purchaser could
sell the 60% equity interest in First Surplus to the FS Vendors in the
event that FS Group fails to meet the FS Profit Guarantee.

(i)  The expected volatility of the market price of FS Group is
determined by reference to the average volatility in stock prices, as
obtained from Bloomberg, of several comparable companies.

(iv) The audited consolidated financial statements of FS Group are
assumed to be available in 5 months after the end of the period
of the FS Profit Guarantee (i.e. 24 October 2017). As such, the
Exercisable Period will be from 25 March 2018 to 25 September
2018.

(v) The risk-free rate is calculated by averaging of the 1-year and
2-years Hong Kong Sovereign Bond yield as at 25 October 2016, as
obtained from Bloomberg.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued)

Probability of the Put Option being exercised

The forecasted net profit after taxation of FS Group in the
cash flow forecast prepared by the directors of the Company
is assumed to be the 2017 FS Profit, which exceeds the FS
Profit Guarantee. The directors of the Company determine
that the probability that FS Group would fail to meet the FS
Profit Guarantee is 40%. Should FS Group fail to meet the FS
Profit Guarantee, it is further assumed that the FS Purchaser
must exercise the Put Option during the Exercisable Period
of the Put Option. The Put Option is an asset resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Such contingent
consideration asset forms part of the Consideration, and are
required to be measured at fair value in accordance with
HKFRS 3 (see accounting policy set out in note 2(d)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTER)
29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 29 ¥KSGF(E)
(b) Acquisition of FS Group (Continued) (b) WEBFS&KE (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired RIWERHBEREZEZHANEE R
and goodwill arose as at the date of the acquisition are as BEAFEURFIEENEEMT :
follows:
HK$'000
FET
Deferred tax assets BRERIAE E 4,454
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 147
Intangible assets B AR 66,768
Trade and other receivables P L B R e L A FE ALK 724
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESZED 764
Deferred income EFEWA (265)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEBE (11,030)
Other payables and accruals Hib R R EEHE (2,543)
Net identifiable assets acquired BB BRI FEE 59,019
Non-controlling interests* FEERR R A (23,016)
Net identifiable assets attributable to owners RAEIHEB AEGTHR
of the Company FEE 36,003
Goodwill arising on business combination ERAHELEZHE 89,433
Total consideration BRE 125,436
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W B B A 2 38 @ it RE
Consideration paid in cash BEfBReNRE 40,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BERENRERESEED (764)
39,236
# The non-controlling interests are measured at the non-controlling f SRR M DIRIEERER DR E
interests’ proportionate share of fair value of the identifiable net WEHBE AR A& FEEAFE

assets of the acquired subsidiaries. KL BIETE -

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

29 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The goodwill is attributable to the synergies of the acquired
businesses expected to arise after the Group’s acquisitions.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$2,307,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Included in the revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016 are approximately HK$111,000, attributable to the
additional business generated by FS Group. Loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 includes loss of HK$1,944,000
contributed by FS Group.

Had these business combinations been taken place on
1 January 2016, the directors of the Company estimate
that the consolidated revenue and the consolidated loss
from continuing operation for the year ended 31 December
2016 would have been HK$34,909,000 and HK$44,664,000
respectively. This pro-forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and result of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisitions been completed on 1
January 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

30 ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 30 ERWE—RBEKHE QR UWE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 27 May 2016, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
Viva Star International Limited (“Viva Star”). The acquisition was
completed on 27 May 2016.

Viva Star is principally engaged in property investment and its major
asset is an office property in Hong Kong classified as an investment
property at entity level which was leased out to another subsidiary
of the Group.

In the opinion of the director, the acquisition is in substance an
acquisition of the leasehold property, instead of an acquisition
of business and therefore is excluded from the scope of HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations”. Therefore, the acquisition was not
disclosed as a business combination in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 3.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through this transaction
are as follows:

BE
RZBE—XNERA-++8 Kx&EEK
B Viva Star International Limited ([Viva
Star]) 2 EBRHE - W EIER T —F
AAZ++EHZEK -

Viva StarE B EMERE - WEHFZ
BEREBBNNRLAEME WHEEAE
BEENREDE THERAFAEENS
—MMBAR -

EERn WEEEHLDEBRHEEYE - M
FWEET - AUtY NEFBMBRELE
R3S [XBAG IBER - Bt - %W
BYEREBEFEVERELNEIROE
RPABKBREBE G -

TRZGHBIEHNEERAEAEZBEW
s 8

HK$'000

FAT

Leasehold property KEYE 49,484

Interest-bearing borrowings Bt S E R (22,000)

Amount due to a shareholder JE (- AR B R IR (22,152)

Other payables H fth FE 3R (812)

4,520

Assignment of amount due to a shareholder i 2 FE AN AR R 3 TE 22,152

Total consideration satisfied by cash REXMTHBRE 26,672
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: W B B A 2 3R Bt R

Cash consideration paid BRI RE 26,672

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of Sky Castle Investment Holdings

Limited and its subsidiary

On 1 February 2016, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in Sky Castle Investment Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary, Sky Castle Holdings (HK) Limited (together, “SC
Group”) for a cash consideration of HK$310,000.

Disposal of NH Group

On 30 June 2016, the Company disposed of the entire
equity interest in NH Group to the NH Vendor for a nominal
consideration of HK$90,000,000. NH Group is principally
engaged in the custom-made software development services
including urban grid management system, internet marketing
of online P2P lending system and other projects and its
business is classified as “software platform” segment.

Disposal of KanHan Educational Services
Limited

On 19 December 2016, the Group disposed of the entire
equity interest in KanHan Educational Services Limited
("KHE") to a company which is wholly-owned by Mo Wai
Ming, Lawrence, a former director of the Company, for
a cash consideration of HK$5,000,000. KHE is principally
engaged in the provision of website development, education
and communications software platform which focuses
on the development of syllabus and contents for Chinese
Language and learning in primary and secondary schools and
enterprises. Its business is classified as “software platform”
segment.

31

HE K E A A

(a)

(b)

(c)

i £ Sky Castle Investment
Holdings Limited & i & 2 7
RZT—AR"FZA—H  AEEHE
Sky Castle Investment Holdings Limited
N E BB X FSky Castle Holdings (HK)
Limited (#7E78 [ SCERE 1) 2 2 BRAHE -

RERER310,00087T ©

HEAREEKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31 HEMEBAT(E)
(d) The assets and liabilities disposed at completion date (d) REBHEEnEERABAIE
comprise:

SC Group NH Group KHE Total

SCKE REEH BEHE mat

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET THT FAET

Property, plant and equipment YE - BB MRE 310 26 85 421
Properties under development BEDYE - 2,652 - 2,652
Intangible assets EREE - 8,698 - 8,698
Goodwill FEES - 67,972 - 67,972
Trade and other receivables JFE ST R 3 % L At LR - 3,727 4,256 7,983
Cash and cash equivalents RekR2EEY - 9,574 1,010 10,584
Current tax recoverable BIER AT UL Bl £ 38 = = 106 106
Other payables oAt e 3R = (778) (25) (803)
Deferred income BEEWA - - (832) (832)
Current tax payable PHARE (S 7718 - (1,143) - (1,143)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBAE = (2,169) (145) (2,314)
Net assets EEFE 310 88,559 4,455 93,324
Non-controlling interests R - (3,108) - (3,108)

Net assets disposed of HENEETHE 310 85,451 4,455 90,216

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31 HEWBAR(E)

(e) (Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries (e) HEMEBARWE (EE)
SC Group NH Group KHE Total
SCE® REER BEHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FAT FAT
Consideration KRB
- Consideration settled in —URERREZED
cash and cash equivalents SHZRE 310 58,745 5,000 64,055
- Assignment of amount —BASEMAL
from the Group to SEEE
NH Group %8 - 1,255 - 755
- Set-off of remaining —HEABWIEETHR
consideration payable TEARE
under the NH Acquisition - 30,000 - 30,000
- Disposal-related costs — BERBRAR = (1,006) = (1,006)
310 88,994 5,000 94,304
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (310) (85,451) (4,455) (90,216)
Cumulative exchange loss HEMHBARE
reclassified from equity to REZEFDEE
profit or loss upon disposal Bz REtIMEEE
of subsidiaries - (7,410) - (7,410)
(Loss)/gain on disposal HE(BE) e < (3,867) 545 (3,322)
The loss on disposal from NH Group is included in the (loss)/ HEAZEBEBEERERILELSE
profit for the year from discontinued operation (see note 9). EBFE(FER) w25 (R
9) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31 HEWBAR(E)

(f) Net cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries (f) HEMBARRERERE
SC Group NH Group KHE Total
SCEH REER BE¥E #@gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHET FET FEL
Consideration settled in UHREkBEEEY
cash and cash equivalents BB 310 58,745 5,000 64,055
Disposal-related costs HE R = (1,006) = (1,006)
Cash and cash equivalents HEMRE KBS
disposed of ZEY - (9,574) (1,010) (10,584)
Net cash inflow R AN £ 310 48,165 3,990 52,465
32 COMMITMENTS 32 E&IE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2016 (@ MZTE—RF+ZA=+—HFR
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements were e IMARBE 2 REE AR
as follows: I :
2016 2015
ZEB-REF T -NEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted for properties under ERUATETAERER Y
development - 396

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

=0 Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

32 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable
as follows:

32 EE(E)

by R-ZZTE—XRF+=-—A=+—8 R
BT MEGEHERNMNZARE
R FRIBEEEELDT -

2016 2015

—E-AF —T-1F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —F R 4,627 3,639
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 3,124 5,698
7,751 9,337

The Group is the lessee in respect of its office premises held
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
6 months to 3 years (2015: 3 years), with an option to renew
the leases when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company
as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 11, is as follows:

AEELSRBEEHERBZNA
EMEZABEA - EEBREZNS
HBRANEAZ=F(ZE—1F:
=F)  ERETERMAGRA
EEHE - HiERERZAEE -

33 EREELIRG RER

(a) FEEBAEFHMH
AEETEZEBEABHFMERENT
10 ERBEZENARBAEEHAR
MENFAREZENE T &5 M
BEZFIR - FHBMAT :

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FiBIT

Short-term employee benefits EHESET 4,382 5,258
Post-employment benefits BRI AT 93 99
4,475 5,357

REFPREEEGRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

33

34

35

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Except as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has not entered
into any material related party transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(c) Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company’s

statement of financial position in note 36(a).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed below, the Group does not have other significant
events after the reporting period.

On 10 January 2017, the Company issued 181,440,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.04 each pursuant to a placing under general
mandate at a price of HK$0.16 per ordinary share, resulting in
estimated net proceeds of HK$28,270,000

SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

33

34

35

ERBETRZRERE)

(b) Bz—2—RER-_FT-—AF+=
A=1T—HBLFE  BREeWBER
RWFEMEEEIN  REEW EE
TEMERBEEAIRS °

(c) HEREHARZABRIRENE36()

AR AR MK o

BEMRFARER

BRTXZHEEN  AEREAERRE
HIRBEEHEMEARNER -

RZZTE—+tF—A+8 ARARE—
EEBETSREERI6ETZME
BHNEEBRTERAEAR0MBILY
181,440,000% & @M% - BT ATISHIER
28,270,000/ 7T °

B B 22 &

TREFFELIEZEAEEES EEN
BENMBARZFE - BRA BRI -
FrA B D AR R A A o

Particulars
Country of of issued Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation and paid up ~ effective ownership effective ownership
Name of company and operation capital interest 2016 interest 2015 Principal activity
SRR BRTR BREGERELH BRESERSLA
DRER 2EREER BRRAE (ZB-1%) (Z2-1%) FTEEH
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
HE 583 Ef i
Aurum Pacific Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) 100% - 100% - Investment holding and provision of
administrative services
ROERERARA B 1R (1T RAZRRRETHERRS
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and provision of
(HK$7,200,000) software platform
BENBERAR &A 363,6368R 1R 17 REERREHEEAT A
(7,200,000%70)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTER)
35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 35 B AT (&)
Particulars
Country of of issued Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation and paid up ~ effective ownership effective ownership
Name of company and operation capital interest 2016 interest 2015 Principal activity
SRR BTk EBEREAEEGHA EREEEERLY
NREHR EEfRER BRRAFE (Z3-1%) (Z2-1F) FTEER
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
EHi 553 Ei 584
KanHan Technologies China Limited PRC HK$1,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Provision of software platform
(notes 1 and 2)
BMNEEMBARRR (HE1K2) el 1,000,007t REEMTA
KHE (note 6) Hong Kong 5,010,000 shares - - - 100%  Investment holding and provision of
(HK$5,010,000) software platform
EEHA (Mite) A 5,010,000 R 17 REERREH#EAT A
(5,010,000 7T)
KanHan Educational Services China PRC RMB1,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of software platform
Limited (notes 1, 2 and 7)
BNEERMRRARAT e 1,000,000 AR% REFHTE
(W31~ 2R7)
Aurum Pacific Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100% > 100%  Provision of money lending business
(HK$1)
BRGBAERAT i 1R REMEER
(187
First Surplus (note 3) BVI 50,000 shares of - 60% - - Investment holding
US1 each
First Surplus (fifz£3) EBRUES 50,0008 %1% RERK
BRIZET
Mooff Games Limited (notes 3and 4) ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 44% - - Development and provision of
(HK$10,000) mobile data solutions and related
Services
Mooff Games Limited (#i3£354) B 10,0008k A 17 FRERREBDEBRATRR
(10,000%7T) RBRS

REFPREEEGRAA
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35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

35 MEAR(E)

Particulars
Country of of issued Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation and paid up ~ effective ownership effective ownership
Name of company and operation capital interest 2016 interest 2015 Principal activity
EREIR BTk EBREAEEGNLA EREEEERLY
NAER EEfRER BRRAFE (Z8-%%§) (ZB8-1F) TEXH
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
Ef 553 Ei 5F
Side Quest Limited (note 3) Hong Kong 3,020,000 shares - 51% - - Development and provision of
(HK$4,510,001) mobile data solutions and related
services
Side Quest Limited (Fi{3£3) B 3,020,008 & 7 FEREABSHERAAEREA
(4,510,001%7) Bk
Smart City Technology Limited (note 3) ~ Hong Kong 12,000 shares - 60% - - Development of mobile games
(HK$1,010,000)
BERBHHRRA R (FF3) EE 12,0008 (3 FETRES
(1,010,000%7¢)
Top Banana Limited (note 3) Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - 60% - - Development of mobile games and
related services
BEER AR (f3) EE 1RBHB(1ET) FEFRERRIEERY
Viva Star (note 5) BVI 50,000 shares of - 100% - - Property investment
US1 each
Viva Star (FifE5) EBRAES 50,000/ B 13 NEER
BRIZET
Native Hope Limited (note 6) BVI 50,000 shares of - - 100% - Investment holding and provision of
US1 each software platform
RERBAA (fiizke) ERRTES 50,000/ 13 RABRRREEN T
BRIZET
Fair Respect International Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - - - 100%  Investment holding and provision of
(note 6) (HK$10,000) software platform
EHERERAR (Mize) BE 10,0008 (3 RABRRRHEAT R
(10,000/7T)
Shenzhen Xiaoke Internet Technology ~ PRC HK$1,000,000 - - - 100%  Investment holding and provision of
Company Limited (notes 1, 2 and 6) software platform
AN HBENEERAR el 1,000,000 7 REERREHEEATA

(HH3E1 ~ 21%6)

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA TTER)
35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 35 KA (&)
Particulars
Country of of issued Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation and paid up ~ effective ownership effective ownership
Name of company and operation capital interest 2016 interest 2015 Principal activity
EREILR BRIk EREGREEGLA EREAEERLY
NAER EEfRER BRRAFE (Z3-1%) (Z2-1F) TERH
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
Ei 553 Ei 584
Shenzhen Zhoufu Internet Technology ~ PRC HK$1,000,000 - - - 51%  Provision of software platform

Company Limited ("Shenzhen
Zhoufu") (notes 1, 2 and 6)

AN E SRR ARAT M 1,000,000 7T RERATE
(TRYME D (M1~ 2k6)

Maoming Yuexi Zhoufu Internet PRC RMBNil - - - 100%  Provision of software platform
Technology Company Limited
(notes 1, 2 and 6)

EEMERNERERHERAR e ARBER RERATE
(Htst1 - 216)
Jiaxing Jiajian Intelligent Technology PRC US$1,442,000 - - - 100%  Property development
Company Limited (notes 1, 2 and 6)
ERRREEHINERAA b 1,442,000 7T NEER
(H3t1 - 21%6)
Notes: fieE -
1. Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprise under PRC law. i BEPEEEFMAINEBEERE -
2. The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name P ENELEHRSE FXERAERCE
of the entity is in Chinese. T e
3. Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2016 through FS Group 3 RBE=ZT—"F+-AA=+—HIE
Acquisition. EBIBFS EEULEE -
4. Mooff Games Limited is a subsidiary of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of 4. Mooff Games Limited %745 B~ IE 2 & I
the Group and, accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the BARIZHE AR - B HR 5N SER
Group's control over it. EYHEHE—FERE AR -
5. Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2016. 5. REBEZE-_ZT-—R"E+-AA=+—HILHF
FE U o

6. Disposed during the year ended 31 December 2016. 6. REBEZE-_ZT-—RE+-AA=Z+—HILHF
BHE -

75 Deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2016. 7. REZE-_ZT—RE+-AA=+—HIEHF

B ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

35 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following table lists out the information relating to subsidiaries
of the Group which has material non-controlling interest (“NCI"”).
The summarised financial information presented below represents

35 KB E (&)
TREIEMEEBEAN RS ([ 5
RS ) AR E 2 B A AR AR -
THIM AR EER A AR #AT 0

the amounts before any inter-company elimination. £ o
2016 (Note) 2015
=Z—R"F (M) —T—hF
Shenzhen Shenzhen
FS Group Zhoufu Zhoufu
FS Group FIIMNE FIINE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET
NCI percentage ERERE DL 40% 49% 49%
Non-current assets EREBEE 71,720 - 32
Current assets mENEE 1,316 - 3,028
Current liabilities mEaE (4,930) = (655)
Non-current liabilities FREBAE (11,032) = -
Net assets BESE 57,074 - 2,405
Carrying amount of NCI FEVERR e TR AR A (B 22,185 - 4,618
Revenue Wz 111 365 4,803
Loss for the year/period FE/HfEE 18 (1,944) (2,578) (2,220)
Total comprehensive loss REEIEAE (1,944) (2,642) (2,493)
Loss allocated to NCI DR E IEIE R B 18 (831) (1,478) (5,834)
Dividends paid to NCI IR EIEE R AR B = = -
Cash flows generated from/(used in) K& EEE,(FTH)
operating activities, net WIR L EFEE 116 (859) (3,582)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from #&%&EE(FTA) A5
investing activities, net MR EFEE (34) - 1,224
Cash flows from financing activities, E& /ESFTARIR S
net = R - = =
Note: The results and cash flows information for the year ended 31 December sk : A ERFEBEE-_ZT—XR"E+-_A=+—8H

2016 presented above represent the post-acquisition results of FS Group
and cash flows from 25 October 2016 (date of acquisition) to 31 December

2016.

The results and cash flows information for the year ended 31 December
2016 presented above represent the results of Shenzhen Zhoufu and cash
flows from 1 January 2016 to 30 June 2016 (date of disposal in NH Group).

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

36 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36 RATZUHBESR
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (a) EMBEMRIEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB RRIZIRE 16 86,855
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E S 265,609 122,599
Deposits and prepayments e RIENE 201 1,236
Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEY 2,395 14,524
268,205 138,359
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfT BB A R 3kI8 4,681 164
Other payables and accrued charges H A R R FERHE A 520 546
Consideration payable for business ERSHFEMRE
combination - 9,879
5,201 10,589
Net current assets RBEERE 263,004 127,770
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERS 263,020 214,625
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Consideration payable for business E¥BEHEMNRE
combination - 18,368
NET ASSETS BEFE 263,020 196,257
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital N 36,288 20,160
Reserves i 226,732 176,097
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 263,020 196,257

REFPREEEGRAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

36 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

36 ARRZMBEN(E)

(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual components (b) AABERNEHEBRHHESEBN
of reserve during the year: T
Share Share Capital Capital  Accumulated

capital premium reserve surplus losses Total

e RiEE EUN-1 LY 2itER &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL ThL

(note 27(b)(i))  (note 27(b)ii))  (note 27(b)ii)
(&270)))  (REE27(0))  (BEE27(0) i)

At 1 January 2015 R-E-1f-f-A 12,000 142,285 2,261 1,609 (52,722) 105,433
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBER2EMS A%

expense for the year - - - - (49,691) (49,691)

Issue of shares (note 27(a)il) %47 A3 (BitE27(a)ii) 8,160 132,355 = = = 140,515

8,160 132,355 = = (49,691) 90,824

At 31 December 2015 R=B-RFtZA=1-A 20,160 274,640 2,261 1,609 (102,413) 196,257

At 1 January 2016 RZE-x£-F-H 20,160 274,640 2,261 1,609 (102,413) 196,257
Loss and total comprehensive ~ EESERZERTLEE

expense for the year - - - - (10,226) (10,226)

Issue of shares (note 27(a)il) ~ E77Rkt (BirzE27(a)in) 16,128 60,861 = S S 76,989

16,128 60,861 - - (10,226) 66,763

At 31 December 2016 R=B-~"E+-R=t-H 36,288 335,501 2,261 1,609 (112,639) 263,020

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

36 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

36 ARRZMBEN(E)

RZE—RF+=ZA=+—8" K
REIRF B AR MMBEARREZ
ERiEft(—CE—HE  TET)D

AER(RKIRE23) -

(c) Contingent liabilities (c)
As at 31 December 2016, the Company has issued a
corporate guarantee in respect of a loan made by a finance
company to a subsidiary (2015: HK$Nil) (see note 23).

REKUKEEFSEE % + KA RIFA
NafI B ARIFSE AT 2ELE
BRATATER(ZE—HFE T
7C) (RIFE29(b)) °

Upon the completion of acquisition of FS Group, the
Company has issued a corporate guarantee in respect of
the Promissory Note issued by the FS Purchaser, which is a
subsidiary of the Company (2015: HK$Nil) (see note 29(b)).

tER A M HmR A |IBEHZEER
MATE ABRARBEZRRM
FRHE BRI TERK -

The fair value of these guarantees has not been provided for
in these consolidated financial statements as the directors
of the Company consider the amount involved to be

insignificant.
37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 37 Eat{hEr R ¥
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

fat RAG SRHEETHE - WABER
BREMCAR(BREERXLEBRTEHRRK
EMHOAETE) BIKIE o

ERHSRAMBHRERE  FEZEIES
AAERREER RS BREREERN
HE R E A RETE R - ARTEMmESR
EEBRHXBEARBRRESTZE -
SHBCRE N T2 - AEERE - TIIE
ERIBE S R ERAEGE MK R
R R BAAET R HIE o

EA
="
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are reviewed annually in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the
value in use, the expected cash flows generated by the
intangible assets are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the level of future
software revenue and the amount of service costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of software revenue
and the amount of service costs, and discount rate.

Impairment loss on goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
Details of the impairment loss calculation are set out in
note 16.

AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MB|RMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETTIIR)

37 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses.
As these deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax benefits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management'’s assessment is constantly
received and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered; conversely, the carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets are disclosed in note 24(b).

Impairment loss on loans receivable, interest

receivables and trade and other receivables
Impairment loss on loans receivable, interest receivables and
trade and other receivables is assessed and provided based on
management'’s regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgement is exercised
by the management when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual borrower/customer.
Any increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debt would affect the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in future years.

Fair value of Level 3 financial instruments
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is
determined using valuation techniques including discounted
cash flow model and binomial lattice model. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. The judgements
include considerations of inputs such as discount rate, risk-
free interest rate, volatility and probability. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments (including contingent
consideration assets for business combination, prepayment
option embedded in promissory note issued and consideration
payable for business combination).

37 St e (8

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEBEEE
BEXERBEER RSB ARG EEE
HER - MNIRIEN IR E E(E1ERE
RIERBOEN - AERAARBAHIR
BB TR - BEBRMF
il AR SR ER A5 ) ) 22 1) BE 77 4 1 )
B o fisd R 2R AR M) B < I SE B IR
BEATRE - BIEREERET
Al - URERBINELERIREE -
Rz BERBREEZTEAE
B R ERT g A A A F0 R 1) =X
EMECHREEZENAR - A
RIEERAEENEE KREER
TEPAPTFE24(b) B EE ©

FEWER - BRI E K EWE
MR EA W 2 RERR
FEME TR~ A B K U AR R
Hp UK 2 MERE - HIREE
12 2 F B2 B AR e 0 AT I AT A M )
B BERRIA 2 AT RE ML T 4 H AT 0 R g
& - REHEERIET TR 2E28
FoBEWGRALERE - EEESEH
REHE - RERBEBBOEM
BR BEHARRBFE ZRAEE
WEHRRBUTE -

E-REMIEZNATE
ERGAMBRARZEREER
SREBEATETYRERTISZ
WE - 2SHEZETAERR
RenE Nk ZIBEAMEEEXSE
HEFTN &S MmER N TIERKR
BRI SRS EE(ER) © i
BT RAZSEENER &
EREATEBENESRE TRE
ZHE o REHEBIERER &
BRI EERRSEEERE - 2%
AERR2EHNUFELHTE
(BREEBAHZIRAREBEE -
TSR BRI AR ERR
XBEHIENRE) ZERAF
=R
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses!

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment: Classification and
measurement of share-based payment
transactions?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has
not completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified in
due course and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where there
are alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, calculation
of impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and (3) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") as follows:

The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit
or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated as
FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security will
be recognsied in other comprehensive income without
recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

38 HE-_ZE—-—X"FE+=A

ZSt-—HLEFECHEMGEHS
ARERZIET -  HEARR
BoBaEE(E)

BERUBHELENEIR BT
=1

BEENBHREENFEIRKMABH R
TRASHREENZNAAEAUETLGE
A% 395% - @RI A : ERNGE - &
B BRELNESRSIADERAES
BMEE ESREERERMPEE
BENMRE - »—TE BEMBHREE
AEIRMA(LBEL TR BERSF
HRFIREAERLR L ERTHTA
REBBEIENBRE - AEBLGRE M
BROTENMRENRBZENAT

(a) DHERFE
BB HRELEBFEIRBEES R
BENZMEIENHEER - T
M(NIREEK AN QBBESE
DFEFVTPL) . (3)iB B E fh 2 A U
IR N FE(FVTOC)ETE -

e BBRIEMSBREEET
BeMmEEMEBERXNUR
BEMEGHNESRERE M
BT MEEBIESES
FVTOCI » EEFE « HEK
BE N EEEERED
TR o

o EREBMESEAM -
A& AN 75 5 8 9 $8 39 BFVTPL ©
ME— B9 Bl ONE S = i 75 R AR
BEUVIIEBIEEEAEED
A B 3 2 S RL R AR T
ABFVTOCI o fidl % M 2N 38 25 1%
5 E ABFVTOCI » R % B
FH g B A S TE I8 25 P iR
R xBEENK £ BER
BB S E H A2 U S e
RATEEHEM -

IRIEA A - AEBETEE B Al
IR R RFVTPLET E M & BB
EBREBRESVEHRELERE9
HEAAESENDERETE ©

REFPREEEGRAA
F#H 2016

193



194

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of
a financial liability designated as FVPTL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s own credit risk to
be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). A more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses,
depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances. This
new impairment model may result in an earlier recognition
of credit losses on the Group's trade receivables, loans
receivable, interest receivables and other financial assets.
However, a more detailed analysis is required to determine
the extent of the impact.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace
the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its consolidated
financial statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group has identified the following areas which are likely to be

effected:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition
The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note
2(x). Currently, revenue arising from the provision of services
is recognised over time, whereas revenue from the sale of
goods is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identified 3 situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being transferred

over time;

(@ When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity's
performance, as the entity performs;

(b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(c)  When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)
(@) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the transfer of

control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward approach
to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach, it
is possible that the point in time when revenue is recognised
may be earlier or later than under the current accounting
policy. However, further analysis is required to determine
whether this change in accounting policy may have a material
impact on the amounts reported in any given financial

reporting period.

(b) Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received significantly in

advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not
common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when

payments are received in advance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)
(c) Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns and makes

and adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost
of sales when the customers have a right of return. However,
the new requirement to recognise separately a return asset
for the products expected to be returned will impact the
presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the Group currently adjusts the carrying amounts
of inventory for the expected returns, instead of recognising a

separate asset.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(j), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others as

the lessee.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their right and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term
is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease. As disclosed in note 32(b), at 31 December
2016 the Group's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$9,892,000 for
properties, the majority of which is payable between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore
need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to
perform a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new
assets and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on
adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of
the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LA TTER)

39 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 39 kEEF
As a result of the share consolidation and open offer which were HREMDEHRARREE SRR =-Z
completed on 22 February 2016 and 17 May 2016 respectively (see —RNF-_AZF+-HEZE—XRFHA
notes 27(a)(iv) and 27(a)(vi)), the loss per share for the year ended ++ B (RME27@)(v) % 27@@)Vi)
31 December 2015 has been restated. BE-_ZT—HRAF+-_A=1+—BHILFEZ

BREEEEEY -

Certain comparative figures, including figures in the consolidated ETHRET  BREGEGESRPURE
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit EEENEMEARERNOBEFTERNE
or loss and other comprehensive income have been re-presented as ANERIEEEEFMEBEITZY -

a result of the operations discontinued during the year.

REFPREEEGRAA

£%52016 07



FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFEPBRE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
SE—RF —T—hF —TMF —T-=F —T-_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHT FHT FHT FET
RESULTS E3
Revenue from continuing and 3548 R B4R FR&
discontinued operations T W 34,459 41,268 21,412 14,278 97
(Loss)/profit before taxation ML RT (&), Sm A (40,351) (26,728) (1,420) 4,505 (5,845)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfiie (%) 56 763 (735) 358 =
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BER),/EF (40,295) (25,965) (2,155) 4,863 (5,845)
Attributable to: LA AL
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ =N (37,986) (20,131) (1,978) 4,863 (5,845)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (2,309) (5,834) (177) = -
(40,295) (25,965) (2,155) 4,863 (5,845)
Restated Restated Restated Restated
Edl gl gl =7l
(Loss)/earnings per share G (E1E) &F)
Basic (HK cents) EARCEW) (5.22) (4.84) (0.63) 1.75 (3.80)
Diluted (HK cents) e OB(L) N/A RER NATEA NATEA NATERA NATEA
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERE 451,871 273,819 168,323 77,523 34,459
Total liabilities BEREE (153,427) (38,252) (40,355) (21,739) (42,782)
298,444 235,567 127,968 55,784 (8,323)
Total equity attributable to RARER AEG
owners of the Company MRS 4AEE 276,259 230,949 116,912 55,784 (8,323)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR RE 2R 22,185 4,618 11,056 - -
298,444 235,567 127,968 55,784 (8,323)
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